
  

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 
 

Greenview, Alberta     1 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
MEETING AGENDA 

 
Tuesday, May 18 9:00 am Administration Building 

Valleyview, Alberta 
 

 
#1 CALL TO ORDER 

 
  

#2 ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
 

  

#3 MINUTES 3.1 Committee of the Whole Meeting minutes held April 20, 
2021 
 

3 

  3.2 Business Arising from the Minutes 
 

 

#4 DELEGATION             9:00  
                                                                        

4.1 Valleyview RCMP Delegation  
 

7 

                                      9:20 4.2 Grande Prairie Regional Hospital Foundation 
 

9 

                                      9:35 4.3 AWN Indigenous Tourism Presentation 
 

11 

                                      9:50 4.4 Development Inquiries - Ratepayer Delegation  
 

36 

                                    10:05 BREAK 
 

 

                                    10:15 4.5 Operations Department Update 
 

38 

#5 NEW BUSINESS       
 

5.1 Spring Grant Requests 56 

  5.2 Bylaw 20-865 Sturgeon Lake Area Structure Plan – Public 
Hearing Concerns 
 

149 

  5.3 DeBolt Sani Dump 
 

220 

  5.4 Grande Cache Events Centre 
 

226 

  5.5 Greenview Logo Use 
 

230 

  5.6 Bylaw 21-873 Schedules of Fees 244 



282 

294 

#6 CLOSED SESSION 

5.7 Greenview Fiber Optic Presentation 

5.8 Action List 

6.1 Disclosure Harmful to Business Interests of a Third Party 
(FOIP, Section 16) 

#7 ADJOURNMENT 



Minutes of a 
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING 

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 
Administration Building 

Valleyview, AB on Tuesday, April 20, 2021 

# 1: 
CALL TO ORDER 

Chair Bill Smith called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. 

PRESENT Ward 8 
Ward 5 
Ward 1 
Ward 2 
Ward 3 
Ward 4 
Ward 6 
Ward 7 
Ward 9 
Ward 9 

Deputy Reeve Bill Smith 
Reeve Dale Smith 

Councillor Winston Delorme 
Councillor Dale Gervais (virtual) 

Councillor Les Urness (virtual) 
Councillor Shawn Acton 

Councillor Tom Burton 
Councillor Roxie Chapman 

Councillor Duane Didow 
Councillor Tyler Olsen 

ATTENDING Chief Administrative Officer 
Deputy Chief Administrative Officer 
Interim Director Community Services 
Chief Financial Officer 
Director Infrastructure & Planning 
Manager Communications & Marketing 
Recording Secretary 

Denise Thompson 
Stacey Wabick 

Dennis Mueller 
Aleks Nelson (Virtual) 

Roger Autio 
Stacey Sevilla (Virtual) 

Wendy Holscher 

ABSENT  

#2:  
AGENDA 

MOTION: 21.04.26 Moved by: COUNCILLOR TYLER OLSEN 
That the Tuesday, February 16, 2021 Committee of the Whole agenda be 
adopted as amended:  

6.1 Confidential Evaluations (Section 19) 
6.2 Harmful to Business Interests of a Third Party (Section 16) 

  CARRIED 

#3.1 
COMMITTEE OF THE 
WHOLE MINUTES 

MOTION: 21.04.27  Moved by: COUNCILLOR TOM BURTON 
That the Minutes of the Committee of the Whole meeting held on Tuesday, 
February 16, 2021 be adopted as presented. 

  CARRIED 
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#3.2 
BUSINESS ARISING  

3.2 BUSINESS ARISING FROM MINUTES: 
- Update and clarification on “Landowner Obstacles” RFD  
- Aquatera did an assessment of our equipment and process in Grande 
Cache and Grovedale. Will be having another meeting with them on Friday, 
April 23, 2021. 
 
 

#4 
DELEGATIONS 

4.0 DELEGATIONS 
 

 4.1 HARV PENNER  
 

HARV PENNER MOTION: 21.04.28   Moved by: COUNCILLOR ROXIE CHAPMAN 
That Committee of the Whole accept the information from Harv Penner as 
presented. 
                                                                                                                      CARRIED 
 

 4.2 ALBERTA ENVIRONMENT AND PARKS 
KAKWA TRAIL MOTION: 21.04.29   Moved by: COUNCILLOR LES URNESS 

That Committee of the Whole accept the presentation from Alberta 
Environment and Parks, Park Operations Division, Northwest Region, 
regarding the Kakwa Trail, as information. 
                                                                                                                      CARRIED 
 

 4.3 GRANDE CACHE RCMP 
GC RCMP MOTION: 21.04.30   Moved by: COUNCILLOR TYLER OLSEN 

That Committee of the Whole accept the presentation from Gord Hughes of 
the Grande Cache RCMP, as presented. 
                                                                                                                      CARRIED 
 

 Deputy Reeve Bill Smith recessed the meeting at 10:05 a.m. 
Deputy Reeve Bill Smith reconvened the meeting at 10:15 a.m. 
 

 4.6 ACCURATE ASSESSMENT GROUP LTD. – 2021 ANNUAL ASSESSMENT 
PRESENTATION 

ACCURATE 
ASSESSMENT 

MOTION: 21.04.31   Moved by: COUNCILLOR TOM BURTON 
That Committee of the Whole accept Accurate Assessment Group’s annual 
Greenview Property Assessment report for information 
                                                                                                                      CARRIED 
 
 
 

4



 Committee of the Whole Meeting Minutes  April 20, 2021 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 3 

 
 4.7 ASSESSMENT SERVICES BRANCH, LINEAR PROPERTY ASSESSMENT UNIT 

– 2021 LINEAR ASSESSMENT PRESENTATION 
LINEAR ASSESSMENT MOTION: 21.04.32  Moved by: REEVE DALE SMITH 

That Committee of the Whole accept the Assessment Services Branch, 
Linear Property Assessment Unit’s presentation for information. 
                                                                                                                      CARRIED 
 

 Deputy Reeve Bill Smith recessed for lunch at 11:52 a.m. 
Deputy Reeve Bill Smith reconvened at 12:32 p.m. 
 

 4.4 COMMUNICATIONS DEPARTMENT 
COMM DEPT MOTION: 21.04.33   Moved by: COUNCILLOR SHAWN ACTON 

That Committee of the Whole accept the Communications Department 
Presentation for information. 
                                                                                                                      CARRIED 
 

 4.5 IS DEPARTMENT  
IS DEPT MOTION: 21.04.34  Moved by: COUNCILLOR ROXIE CHAPMAN 

That Committee of the Whole accept the Information Systems Department 
Presentation for information. 
                                                                                                                      CARRIED 
 

#5 
NEW BUSINESS 

5.0 NEW BUSINESS 
 

 5.1 FIRE SERVICES BYLAW 20-858 
FIRE SERVICES BYLAW MOTION: 21.04.35 Moved by: COUNCILLOR TYLER OLSEN 

That Committee of the Whole recommend Option 1 for the Fire-Rescue 
Services Bylaw 20-858 to be presented for third reading at an upcoming 
Council meeting. 
                                                                                                                      CARRIED 
 

 5.2 2020 CAPITAL AND OPERATING YEAR TO DATE 
2020 CAPITAL AND 
OPERATING BUDGET 
 

MOTION: 21.04.36 Moved by: COUNCILLOR LES URNESS 
That Council accepts as information, the year to date Operating and Capital 
Budget reports for the period ending March 31, 2021. 
                                                                                                                      CARRIED 
 

 5.3 ACTION LIST 
ACTION LIST MOTION: 21.04.37 Moved by: COUNCILLOR TYLER OLSEN 

That Council accept the Action List as presented. 
                                                                                                                      CARRIED                                                                                                                      
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 6.0 CLOSED SESSION  
 

CLOSED SESSION MOTION: 21.04.37 Moved by: REEVE DALE SMITH 
That the meeting go to Closed Session, at 1:47 p.m., pursuant to Section 197 
of the Municipal Government Act, 2000, Chapter M-26 and amendments 
thereto, and Division 2 of Part 1 of the Freedom of Information and 
Protection of Privacy Act, Revised Statutes of Alberta 2000, Chapter F-25 
and amendments thereto, to discuss Privileged Information with regards to 
the Closed Session. 
                                                                                                                     CARRIED 
 

 6.1 Confidential Evaluations 
(FOIP, Section 19) 
 

 6.2 Disclosure Harmful to Business Interests of a Third Party 
(FOIP, Section 16) 
 

OPEN SESSION MOTION: 21.04.38 Moved by: COUNCILLOR TOM BURTON 
That, in compliance with Section 197(2) of the Municipal Government Act, 
this meeting come into Open Session at 2:17 p.m. 
                                                                                                                     CARRIED 
 

#7 
ADJOURNMENT 

7.0 ADJOURNMENT 

 MOTION: 21.04.39 Moved by: COUNCILLOR WINSTON DELORME 
That this Committee of the Whole meeting adjourn at 2:18 p.m. 
                                                                                                                     CARRIED
                                        

 
 
 
__________________________________                                    ______________________________ 
CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER                                                      CHAIR 
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REQUEST FOR DECISION 

20.04.09 

SUBJECT: DELEGATION – VALLEYVIEW RCMP 
SUBMISSION TO: COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE: May 18, 2021 CAO: MANAGER: 
DEPARTMENT: CAO SERVICES DCAO SW PRESENTER: 
STRATEGIC PLAN: Level of Service 

RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 
Provincial (cite) – N/A 

Council Bylaw/Policy (cite) – N/A 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
MOTION: That Committee of the Whole accept the presentation from the Valleyview RCMP for 
information, as presented. 

BACKGROUND/PROPOSAL: 
Staff Sergeant Michael Bourguignon will be providing the first quarter update for crime statistics in the 
Valleyview area and available to answer questions that Committee of the Whole may have.  

BENEFITS OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
The benefit of Committee of the Whole accepting the information as presented is Committee of the Whole 
will be aware of the current crime stats within the area, and how the Valleyview RCMP is addressing them. 

DISADVANTAGES OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
1. There are no perceived disadvantages to the recommended motion.

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED: 
N/A 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATION: 
There are no financial implications to the recommended motion. 

STAFFING IMPLICATION: 
There are no staffing implications to the recommended motion. 

PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT LEVEL: 
Greenview has adopted the IAP2 Framework for public consultation. 

7



 
 

 

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 
Inform  
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 
Inform - To provide the public with balanced and objective information to assist them in understanding the 
problem, alternatives, opportunities and/or solutions. 
  
PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 
Inform - We will keep you informed.  

 
FOLLOW UP ACTIONS: 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
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REQUEST FOR DECISION 

20.04.09 

SUBJECT: DELEGATION – GRANDE PRAIRIE REGIONAL HOSPITAL FOUNDATION 
SUBMISSION TO: COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE: May 18, 2021 CAO: MANAGER: 
DEPARTMENT: CAO SERVICES DCAO SW PRESENTER: 
STRATEGIC PLAN: Level of Service 

RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 
Provincial (cite) – N/A 

Council Bylaw/Policy (cite) – N/A 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
MOTION: That Committee of the Whole accept the presentation from the Grande Prairie Regional Hospital 
Foundation for information, as presented. 

BACKGROUND/PROPOSAL: 
Dawn Miller of the Grande Prairie Regional Hospital Foundation requested a time with Council to provide an 
update from the foundation. 

BENEFITS OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
The benefit of Committee of the Whole accepting the information as presented is Committee of the Whole 
will be aware of the current needs of the Grande Prairie Regional Hospital Foundation. 

DISADVANTAGES OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
1. There are no perceived disadvantages to the recommended motion.

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED: 
N/A 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATION: 
There are no financial implications to the recommended motion. 

STAFFING IMPLICATION: 
There are no staffing implications to the recommended motion. 

PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT LEVEL: 
Greenview has adopted the IAP2 Framework for public consultation. 
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INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 
Inform  
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 
Inform - To provide the public with balanced and objective information to assist them in understanding the 
problem, alternatives, opportunities and/or solutions. 
  
PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 
Inform - We will keep you informed.  

 
FOLLOW UP ACTIONS: 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
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REQUEST FOR DECISION 

21.01.22 

SUBJECT: Aseniwuche Winewak Nation – Presentation 
SUBMISSION TO: COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE: May 18, 2021 DCAO SW MANAGER: 
DEPARTMENT: COMMUNITY SERVICES GM: DM PRESENTER: 
STRATEGIC PLAN: Quality of Life LEG: 

RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 
Provincial (cite) – N/A 

Council Bylaw/Policy (cite) – N/A 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
MOTION: That Committee of the Whole accept the presentation from the Aseniwuche Winewak Nation 
regarding a proposed indigenous tourism initiative at the Smoky River Provincial Recreation area for 
information, as presented.   

BACKGROUND/PROPOSAL: 
The Aseniwuche Winewak Nation (AWN) are non-status Indians descended from Cree and Beaver tribes from 
the Northern Rocky Mountains (now Jasper National Park, Willmore Wilderness Park and the Grande Cache 
area).   

The AWN has an initiative planned for indigenous tourism within the Grande Cache area.  The AWN will 
present to the Committee the tourism vision phases, project methodology, community engagement, 
construction, training, product development, funding sources and the associated economic benefits of this 
initiative.    

The Aseniwuche Winewak Nation (AWN) is requesting Greenview consider relinquishing the Smoky River 
Provincial Recreation area lease to the AWN.  The AWN has recently met with the Province regarding the 
lease acquisition process.  Administration has reviewed the initiative and planned site for conducting their 
initiative within the Smoky River Provincial Recreation Area and will prepare a Request for Decision to be 
presented at the next Council meeting to consider relinquishing Greenview’s lease of the Smoky River 
Recreation Area to the AWN for this exciting initiative.    

BENEFITS OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
1. The benefit of the recommended action is that the Committee will be made aware of the planned

indigenous tourism initiative within the Grande Cache area.

DISADVANTAGES OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
1. There are no perceived disadvantages to the recommended motion.
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ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED: 
Alternative #1: N/A 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATION: 
There are no financial implications to the recommended motion. 
 
STAFFING IMPLICATION: 
There are no staffing implications to the recommended motion. 
 
PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT LEVEL: 
Greenview has adopted the IAP2 Framework for public consultation.  

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 
Inform  
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 
Inform - To provide the public with balanced and objective information to assist them in understanding the 
problem, alternatives, opportunities and/or solutions. 
  
PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 
Inform - We will keep you informed.  

 
FOLLOW UP ACTIONS: 
Administration will prepare a “Request for Decision” to be presented at the next Council meeting with regard 
to relinquishing the lease from Greenview to the AWN. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

• AWN Presentation 
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20.04.09 

SUBJECT: DELEGATION – ROXANNE PERRON 
SUBMISSION TO: COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE: May 18, 2021 CAO: MANAGER: 
DEPARTMENT: CAO SERVICES DCAO SW PRESENTER: 
STRATEGIC PLAN: Level of Service 

RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 
Provincial (cite) – N/A 

Council Bylaw/Policy (cite) – N/A 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
MOTION: That Committee of the Whole accept the presentation from Roxanne Perron for information, as 
information.   

BACKGROUND/PROPOSAL: 
Mrs. Perron would like to have a discussion with Council on whether or not the MD of Greenview is 
development friendly.  

BENEFITS OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
The benefit of Committee of the Whole accepting the information as presented is the opportunity to have 
candid and transparent conversations with ratepayers.  

DISADVANTAGES OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
1. There are no perceived disadvantages to the recommended motion.

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED: 
N/A 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATION: 
There are no financial implications to the recommended motion. 

STAFFING IMPLICATION: 
There are no staffing implications to the recommended motion. 

PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT LEVEL: 
Greenview has adopted the IAP2 Framework for public consultation. 
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INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 
Inform  
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 
Inform - To provide the public with balanced and objective information to assist them in understanding the 
problem, alternatives, opportunities and/or solutions. 
  
PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 
Inform - We will keep you informed.  

 
FOLLOW UP ACTIONS: 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
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REQUEST FOR DECISION 

21.01.22 

SUBJECT: Operations Update 
SUBMISSION TO: COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE: May 18, 2021 CAO:  MANAGER: JF 
DEPARTMENT: OPERATIONS GM:  PRESENTER: JF 
STRATEGIC PLAN: Infrastructure DCAO SW 

RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 
Provincial (cite) – N/A 

Council Bylaw/Policy (cite) – N/A 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
MOTION: That Council accept the update from the Operations Department for information, as presented. 

BACKGROUND/PROPOSAL: 
Administration will be providing Council with an update on various aspects of the Operations department. 

BENEFITS OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
1. The benefit of Council accepting the recommended motion is that Council will be informed of

Operations’ activities.

DISADVANTAGES OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
1. There are no perceived disadvantages

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED: 
N/A 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATION: 
There are no financial implications to the recommended motion. 

STAFFING IMPLICATION: 
There are no staffing implications to the recommended motion. 

PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT LEVEL: 
Greenview has adopted the IAP2 Framework for public consultation. 
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INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 
Inform  
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 
Inform - To provide the public with balanced and objective information to assist them in understanding the 
problem, alternatives, opportunities and/or solutions. 
  
PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 
Inform - We will keep you informed.  

 
FOLLOW UP ACTIONS: 
There are no follow up actions to the recommended motion. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

• PowerPoint Presentation 

39



O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 U

pd
at

e

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 o

f t
he

 W
ho

le
M

ay
 1

8,
 2

02
1

40



20
20

 R
ev

ie
w

•
20

20
 F

lo
od

in
g 

an
d 

Re
co

ve
ry

 W
or

k
•

14
4 

cu
lv

er
ts

 w
er

e 
in

st
al

le
d/

up
gr

ad
ed

 th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 

Gr
ee

nv
ie

w
 b

y 
th

e 
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
t i

n 
20

20
•

Co
m

pl
et

ed
 4

0 
Km

 o
f d

itc
hi

ng
•

Gr
av

el
le

d
60

0 
Km

 o
f r

es
id

en
tia

l/r
ur

al
 ro

ad
s

•
Ap

p l
ie

d 
1.

4 
m

ill
io

n 
lit

r e
so

f c
al

ci
um

 fo
r d

us
t 

co
nt

ro
l 

41



•
Sl

id
e 

Re
pa

ir 
on

 T
W

P 
RD

 
68

3 
Ea

st
 o

f 
HW

Y 
43

 
ut

ili
zin

g 
Ge

oc
el

l s
ou

th
 

of
 V

al
le

yv
ie

w

42



•D
itc

h 
cl

ea
ni

ng
 a

nd
 

re
sh

ap
in

g 
on

 T
W

P 
RD

 6
93

 in
 

Gr
ov

ed
al

e 
ar

ea

43



•
Li

tt
le

 S
m

ok
y 

St
oc

kp
ili

ng
 M

ar
ch

 2
02

1

44



•N
ew

ly
 p

av
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
FT

R 
sn

ow
pl

ow
ed

45



20
21

 W
or

k 
Pl

an
s

•
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

 S
ou

th
 (G

ra
nd

e 
Ca

ch
e,

 
Co

-o
ps

, F
TR

 a
re

a)
•

Cu
lv

er
t r

ep
la

ce
m

en
ts

 o
n 

Be
av

er
 

Da
m

 R
o a

d
•

Si
de

w
al

ks
 a

nd
 p

ed
es

tr
ia

n 
cr

os
s in

gs
 a

t h
os

pi
ta

l a
pp

ro
ac

h,
 

W
hi

sp
er

in
g 

Pi
ne

s,
 9

7 
Av

e.
•

Co
nt

in
ue

d 
W

or
k 

at
 W

an
ya

nd
ie

 
Ea

st
 S

lid
e

•
Cu

lv
er

t r
ep

la
ce

m
en

t a
t K

M
 1

14
 

on
 F

TR

46



20
21

 W
or

k 
Pl

an
s

•
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

 W
es

t (
G

ro
ve

da
le

 A
re

a)
•

Sl
id

e 
re

pa
ir 

on
 T

W
P 

RD
 6

92
 W

es
t 

of
 H

W
Y 

66
6

•
Sl

id
e 

re
pa

ir 
on

 R
G

E 
RD

 9
0-

Pr
ep

 
w

or
k,

 a
cq

ui
rin

g 
RO

W
, o

bt
ai

ni
ng

 
AE

P 
ap

pr
ov

al
•

TW
P 

RD
 7

01
 d

itc
h 

cl
ea

ni
ng

 a
nd

 
cu

lv
e r

t r
ep

la
ce

m
en

ts
 to

 a
dd

re
ss

 
ce

m
en

t c
ul

ve
rt

s 
an

d 
cu

lv
er

t e
nd

s 
th

at
 a

re
 b

ur
ie

d
•

RG
E 

RD
 7

0 
so

ut
h 

of
 H

W
Y 

66
6 

–
di

tc
h 

cl
ea

ni
ng

 a
nd

 c
ul

ve
rt

 
in

st
al

la
tio

ns
 to

 a
dd

re
ss

 re
cu

rr
in

g 
flo

od
in

g 
iss

ue
s

47



20
21

 W
or

k 
Pl

an
s

•
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

 C
en

tr
al

 (F
TR

, D
eB

ol
t, 

&
 

Pu
sk

w
as

ka
u 

ar
ea

)
•

Ap
pr

oa
ch

es
 o

n 
FT

R 
KM

 7
3,

 5
7,

 
50

 –
r e

pa
ir 

so
 th

ey
 a

re
 n

ot
 

fu
nn

el
lin

g 
w

at
er

 o
nt

o 
th

e 
ro

ad
w

ay
 d

ur
in

g 
ra

in
 a

nd
 m

el
tin

g
•

M
ul

tip
le

 c
ul

ve
rt

 re
pl

ac
em

en
ts

 
al

on
g 

RG
E 

RD
 2

2 
so

ut
h 

an
d 

no
rt

h 
of

 H
W

Y 
43

•
Co

nt
in

ue
d 

re
pa

ir 
of

 p
ro

bl
em

 
sp

ot
s  a

lo
ng

 th
e 

FT
R

48



20
21

 W
or

k 
Pl

an
s

•
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

 E
as

t (
Ri

dg
eV

al
le

y,
 

Cr
oo

ke
d 

Cr
ee

k,
 N

ew
 F

is
h 

Cr
ee

k,
 

Va
lle

yv
ie

w
, L

itt
le

 S
m

ok
y,

 S
un

se
t 

H
ou

se
/S

w
ea

th
ou

se
 a

re
as

)
•

Di
tc

h 
cl

ea
ni

ng
 a

nd
 c

ul
ve

rt
 

in
st

al
la

tio
n 

in
 H

am
le

t o
f 

Ri
dg

eV
al

le
y 

•
Sa

nd
y 

Ba
y 

Dr
ai

na
ge

•
RG

E 
RD

 2
25

 n
or

th
 o

f T
W

P 
70

4 
–

re
pl

ac
e 

ol
d 

ce
m

en
t c

ul
ve

rt
s 

an
d 

di
tc

h 
cl

ea
n

•
TW

P 
RD

 7
20

 W
es

t o
f H

W
Y 

49
 –

re
pe

at
 b

ea
ve

r/
flo

od
in

g 
iss

ue
s.

 
Co

or
di

na
te

 w
ith

 A
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

 to
 

ad
dr

es
s w

ith
 lo

ng
-te

rm
 s

ol
ut

io
n

•
RG

E 
22

5 
+ 

TW
P 

RD
 

67
4/

An
de

rs
on

 R
d 

–
Di

tc
h 

cl
ea

ni
ng

 a
nd

 c
ul

ve
rt

 w
or

k 
to

 
ad

dr
es

s r
ep

ea
t f

lo
od

in
g 

iss
ue

s

49



20
21

 W
or

k 
Pl

an
s

•
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

 E
as

t (
Ri

dg
eV

al
le

y,
 

Cr
oo

ke
d 

Cr
ee

k,
 N

ew
 F

is
h 

Cr
ee

k,
 

Va
lle

yv
ie

w
, L

itt
le

 S
m

ok
y,

 S
un

se
t 

H
ou

se
/S

w
ea

th
ou

se
 a

re
as

)

•
TW

P 
RD

 6
83

 W
es

t o
f H

W
Y 

43
 –

cu
lv

e r
t u

pg
ra

de
s,

 d
itc

hi
ng

•
TW

P 
RD

 7
22

 &
 R

G
E 

RD
 2

01
 –

cu
lv

e r
t u

pg
ra

de
s a

nd
 d

itc
hi

ng
 to

 
ad

dr
es

s r
ep

ea
t f

lo
od

in
g 

iss
ue

s

50



Du
st

 C
on

tr
ol

•
Pr

es
en

tly
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

13
5 

re
sid

en
tia

l 
du

st
 c

on
tr

ol
 a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
 n

ot
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
ar

ea
s g

en
er

al
ly

 d
on

e 
by

 
G

re
en

vi
ew

. 1
 in

qu
iry

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
re

ce
iv

ed
 re

ga
rd

in
g 

w
he

th
er

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
pr

od
uc

t w
ou

ld
 b

e 
ut

ili
ze

d 
w

ith
 

co
nc

er
n 

th
at

 it
 m

ay
 b

e 
da

m
ag

in
g 

th
e 

re
sid

en
t’s

 tr
ee

s.

•
Th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ch
ar

ts
 a

re
 a

 su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 so
m

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

pr
od

uc
ts

 a
nd

 
pr

ic
in

g

•
Ca

lc
iu

m
 C

hl
or

id
e 

is 
th

e 
m

os
t c

os
t-

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
so

lu
tio

n

51



Du
st

 C
on

tr
ol

 P
ro

du
ct

s
Ve

nd
or

 -
Pr

od
uc

t 
N

am
e

Pr
od

uc
t

Pr
ic

e
Ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
M

et
ho

d

Co
st

 P
er

 2
00

m
 x

 8
m

 R
oa

d 
Su

rf
ac

e 
fo

r P
ro

du
ct

 O
nl

y 
–

Re
si

de
nt

ia
l A

pp
lic

an
t’s

 F
ee

 is
 

$1
50

.0
0

Ti
ge

r C
al

ci
um

 -
Fo

rm
ul

a 
35

Ca
lc

iu
m

 C
hl

or
id

e
$0

.2
45

/li
tr

e
in

 ru
ra

l a
re

a.
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
$0

.2
85

/li
tr

e
on

 F
TR

.

Ty
pi

ca
l a

pp
lic

at
io

n 
fo

r d
us

t c
on

tr
ol

 
pu

rp
os

es
 is

 a
 su

rf
ac

e 
sp

ra
y 

of
 li

qu
id

 
pr

od
uc

t a
t 1

.5
 -

2.
0 

lit
re

s/
sq

.m
, 

de
pe

nd
in

g 
on

 th
e 

lo
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

if 
it 

ha
s b

ee
n 

pr
ev

io
us

ly
 tr

ea
te

d.
 

Pr
od

uc
t i

s a
pp

lie
d 

af
te

r g
ra

di
ng

 a
nd

 
w

at
er

in
g.

$7
84

 fo
r p

ro
du

ct
 in

 ru
ra

l 
re

sid
en

tia
l a

re
a 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
$9

12
 fo

r p
ro

du
ct

 o
n 

FT
R 

Cl
ea

nT
ra

ck
M

in
er

al
 O

il 
Ba

se
d

$1
.5

5/
lit

re
 F

O
B 

fr
om

 tr
an

sp
or

t 
tr

uc
k.

 $
1.

75
/li

tr
e 

FO
B 

de
liv

er
ed

 
in

 to
te

.

Su
rf

ac
e 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

of
 li

qu
id

 
pr

od
uc

t a
t ∼

1.
5 

lit
re

s/
sq

.m
 a

ft
er

 
gr

ad
in

g 
an

d 
gr

av
el

lin
g.

 P
ro

du
ct

 is
 

ap
pl

ie
d 

to
 d

ry
 ro

ad
, n

o 
w

at
er

 tr
uc

k 
re

qu
ire

d.
 V

en
do

r r
ec

om
m

en
ds

 
pa

ck
in

g 
po

st
-a

pp
lic

at
io

n 
fo

r b
es

t 
re

su
lts

.

$3
72

0 
fo

r p
ro

du
ct

 a
pp

lie
d 

fr
om

 tr
an

sp
or

t t
ru

ck
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

$4
20

0 
fo

r p
ro

du
ct

 a
pp

lie
d 

fr
om

 to
te

Ko
rt

ec
h 

-M
G3

0
M

ag
ne

siu
m

 C
hl

or
id

e 
Li

qu
id

$0
.3

0/
lit

re

Ap
pl

ie
d 

w
ith

 a
 su

rf
ac

e 
sp

ra
y 

lik
e 

ca
lc

iu
m

 c
hl

or
id

e.
 T

he
 p

ro
du

ct
 is

 
es

se
nt

ia
lly

 ca
lc

iu
m

 c
hl

or
id

e 
w

ith
 

ad
de

d 
m

ag
ne

siu
m

 h
yd

ro
xi

de
.

$9
60

 fo
r p

ro
du

ct
 o

nl
y 

*A
dd

 m
in

im
um

 $
20

0 
pe

r 8
m

 x
 2

00
m

 si
te

 fo
r a

dm
in

ist
ra

tiv
e 

w
or

k,
 g

ra
di

ng
, w

at
er

 
tr

uc
k.

 A
dd

 m
in

im
um

 $
20

0-
$5

00
 p

er
 8

m
 x

 2
00

m
 s

ite
 fo

r p
ac

ki
ng

, g
ra

ve
lli

ng
.

52



Du
st

 C
on

tr
ol

 P
ro

du
ct

s
Ve

nd
or

 -
Pr

od
uc

t 
N

am
e

Pr
od

uc
t

Pr
ic

e
Ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
M

et
ho

d

Co
st

 P
er

 2
00

m
 x

 8
m

 R
oa

d 
Su

rf
ac

e 
fo

r P
ro

du
ct

 O
nl

y 
–

Re
si

de
nt

ia
l A

pp
lic

an
t’s

 F
ee

 is
 

$1
50

.0
0

Re
ad

 o
n 

Ro
ad

s-
Li

gn
os

ul
fo

na
te

M
ag

ne
siu

m
 Li

gn
os

ul
fo

na
te

$0
.3

7/
lit

re

Li
gn

os
ul

fo
na

te
 is

 a
 c

on
ce

nt
ra

te
d 

pu
lp

 
an

d 
pa

pe
r d

er
iv

at
iv

e 
pr

od
uc

t. 
Sa

m
e 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

m
et

ho
d 

as
 C

al
ci

um
 

Ch
lo

rid
e.

 R
oa

d 
is 

gr
ad

ed
, w

at
er

ed
 a

nd
 

pr
od

uc
t i

s a
pp

lie
d 

at
 ∼

2.
0 

lit
re

s/
sq

.m
.

$1
18

4 
fo

r p
ro

du
ct

 o
nl

y 

N
ov

am
en

 -
DC

P-
C

DC
P-

C 
is 

de
sc

rib
ed

 b
y 

N
ov

am
en

 a
s a

 re
sin

-
m

od
ifi

ed
 e

m
ul

sio
n 

du
st

 
co

nt
ro

l t
ha

t i
s f

or
m

ul
at

ed
 

fr
om

 g
ly

ce
rin

.

$0
.8

0/
lit

re
 b

ut
 d

ilu
te

d 
1:

1 
w

ith
 

w
at

er
 in

 th
e 

fie
ld

. $
0.

40
/li

tr
e 

at
 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

sit
e

Sa
m

e 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
m

et
ho

d 
as

 C
al

ci
um

 
Ch

lo
rid

e.
 R

oa
d 

is 
gr

ad
ed

, w
at

er
ed

 a
nd

 
pr

od
uc

t i
s a

pp
lie

d 
at

 ∼
2.

0l
itr

es
/s

q.
m

.

$1
,2

80
 fo

r p
ro

du
ct

 a
ft

er
 

di
lu

tio
n 

in
 th

e 
fie

ld
 

N
ov

am
en

 -
DC

P-
O

B
DC

P-
O

B 
is 

de
sc

rib
ed

 a
s 

be
in

g 
w

ax
y,

 co
nt

ai
ni

ng
 

ol
ef

in
s a

nd
 p

ar
af

fin
s.

 
$0

.5
5/

lit
re

Pr
od

uc
t m

us
t b

e 
ap

pl
ie

d 
w

he
n 

it 
is 

be
tw

ee
n 

35
-4

0 
de

gr
ee

s c
el

siu
s,

 is
 

de
liv

er
ed

 to
 th

e 
sit

e 
ho

t a
nd

 is
 m

ix
ed

 
in

 w
ith

 su
rf

ac
e 

ag
gr

eg
at

e 
an

d 
bi

nd
s a

t 
its

 fr
ee

zin
g 

po
in

t o
f 2

8 
de

gr
ee

s c
el

siu
s.

  
Ap

pl
ie

d 
at

 1
.0

 li
tr

e/
sq

.m

$1
60

0 
fo

r p
ro

du
ct

 o
nl

y.
 

Ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

co
st

s w
ou

ld
 b

e 
m

uc
h 

hi
gh

er
 

*A
dd

 m
in

im
um

 $
20

0 
pe

r 8
m

 x
 2

00
m

 si
te

 fo
r a

dm
in

ist
ra

tiv
e 

w
or

k,
 g

ra
di

ng
, w

at
er

 
tr

uc
k.

 A
dd

 m
in

im
um

 $
20

0-
$5

00
 p

er
 8

m
 x

 2
00

m
 s

ite
 fo

r p
ac

ki
ng

, g
ra

ve
lli

ng
.

53



Du
st

 C
on

tr
ol

 P
ro

du
ct

s
Ve

nd
or

 -
Pr

od
uc

t 
N

am
e

Pr
od

uc
t

Pr
ic

e
Ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
M

et
ho

d

Co
st

 P
er

 2
00

m
 x

 8
m

 R
oa

d 
Su

rf
ac

e 
fo

r P
ro

du
ct

 O
nl

y 
–

Re
si

de
nt

ia
l A

pp
lic

an
t’s

 F
ee

 is
 

$1
50

.0
0

Cy
ph

er
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l

Du
st

St
op

 -
Cy

ph
er

 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l d

es
cr

ib
es

 
th

is 
pr

od
uc

t a
s a

 "u
ni

qu
e 

bl
en

d 
of

 m
at

er
ia

ls 
th

at
 

ut
ili

ze
s t

he
 fu

nc
tio

na
l 

pr
op

er
tie

s o
f s

ug
ar

s a
nd

 
st

ar
ch

es
."

 T
he

 sa
fe

ty
 d

at
a 

sh
ee

t l
ist

s i
ts

 co
m

po
sit

io
n 

as
 p

ol
ym

er
 e

m
ul

sio
n 

at
 5

3-
60

%
, p

ro
pr

ie
ta

ry
 m

in
er

al
 

co
m

po
un

d 
at

 2
-3

%
, a

nd
 

w
at

er
 a

t 3
7-

45
%

. S
al

es
 

ag
en

t r
ef

er
re

d 
to

 it
 a

s b
ee

t 
ju

ic
e.

$1
.7

0/
lit

re

Pr
od

uc
t i

s a
pp

lie
d 

an
d 

m
ix

ed
 in

 b
y 

gr
ad

in
g 

to
 to

p 
2-

3"
 o

f a
gg

re
ga

te
 a

t 0
.8

 
lit

re
s/

sq
.m

. F
or

 b
es

t r
es

ul
ts

 ro
ad

 
su

rf
ac

e 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

pa
ck

ed
 a

ft
er

. 

$2
17

6 
fo

r p
ro

du
ct

 o
nl

y 

Ch
em

ic
al

 In
du

st
rie

s -
En

d 
Du

st
 

M
ag

ne
siu

m
 C

hl
or

id
e 

Fl
ak

es
1-

2 
to

te
s $

17
99

.0
0 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
3-

10
 to

te
s $

16
99

.0
0 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

11
-2

0 
to

te
s $

15
99

Pr
od

uc
t i

s a
pp

lie
d 

by
 sp

re
ad

in
g 

fla
ke

 
pr

od
uc

t o
n 

ro
ad

 w
ith

 sp
re

ad
er

 su
ch

 a
s 

a 
sa

nd
in

g 
tr

uc
k,

 w
or

ki
ng

 in
to

 su
rf

ac
e,

 
an

d 
w

at
er

in
g

$1
79

9 
-$

15
99

 fo
r p

ro
du

ct
 o

nl
y,

 
de

pe
nd

in
g 

on
 q

ua
nt

ity
 

pu
rc

ha
se

d

*A
dd

 m
in

im
um

 $
20

0 
pe

r 8
m

 x
 2

00
m

 si
te

 fo
r a

dm
in

ist
ra

tiv
e 

w
or

k,
 g

ra
di

ng
, w

at
er

 
tr

uc
k.

 A
dd

 m
in

im
um

 $
20

0-
$5

00
 p

er
 8

m
 x

 2
00

m
 s

ite
 fo

r p
ac

ki
ng

, g
ra

ve
lli

ng
.

54



Gr
av

el
 P

its
 

(S
M

L’s
)

•
AE

P 
is 

cu
rr

en
tly

 ta
ki

ng
 3

+ 
ye

ar
s 

fo
r S

M
L 

le
as

e 
re

ne
w

al
 a

pp
ro

va
ls.

 G
re

en
vi

ew
 

pr
es

en
tly

 h
as

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
gr

av
el

 p
its

 w
hi

ch
 

ex
pi

re
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

ne
xt

 3
 y

ea
rs

:
•

SM
L0

30
05

2 
-G

oo
dw

in
 G

ra
ve

l P
it 

(b
y 

M
oo

dy
’s 

Cr
os

sin
g.

 E
xp

ire
s 2

02
3)

•
SM

L0
70

06
3 

-B
er

l a
nd

 G
ra

ve
l P

it 
(S

ou
th

 
of

 F
ox

 C
re

ek
. E

xp
ire

s 2
02

4)
•

Gr
ee

nv
ie

w
 p

re
se

nt
ly

 h
as

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
gr

av
el

 
pi

t l
ea

se
s w

hi
ch

 h
av

e 
ex

pi
re

d 
bu

t h
av

e 
le

as
e 

re
ne

w
al

s/
CO

RP
 (C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

O
pe

ra
tio

n 
Re

cl
am

at
io

n 
Pl

an
) o

r r
ec

la
m

at
io

n 
w

or
k 

ap
pr

ov
al

 p
en

di
ng

•
SM

L 
98

01
19

 &
 9

80
09

9 
-P

in
to

 (W
es

t o
f 

Gr
ov

ed
al

e)
•

SM
L0

60
08

5 
–

Pa
tt

er
so

n 
Pi

t (
So

ut
h 

of
 

Fo
x 

Cr
ee

k)
•

SM
L0

30
05

3 
–

W
es

tv
ie

w
 P

it 
(K

M
 1

20
 o

n 
FT

R)
•

SM
L1

60
08

1 
–

Sm
ok

y  
To

w
er

 A
irs

tr
ip

 
(K

M
 1

04
 o

n 
FT

R)
•

SM
L8

10
01

7 
–

G
ra

nd
e 

Ca
ch

e 
Pi

t
•

De
pe

nd
in

g 
on

 A
EP

’s 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
, w

he
th

er
 

a 
W

at
er

 A
ct

 a
pp

ro
va

l i
s r

eq
ui

re
d,

 e
tc

…
 a

 
le

as
e 

re
ne

w
al

 a
nd

 u
pd

at
ed

 C
O

RP
 is

 
es

tim
at

ed
 to

 c
os

t b
et

w
ee

n 
$5

0,
00

0 
an

d 
$1

50
,0

00

55



REQUEST FOR DECISION 

21.01.22 

SUBJECT: 2021 Community Spring Grant Requests 
SUBMISSION TO: COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE: May 18, 2021 CAO:  MANAGER: KK 
DEPARTMENT: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT GM: DM PRESENTER: LL 
STRATEGIC PLAN: Quality of Life DCAO SW 

RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 
Provincial (cite) –N/A 

Council Bylaw/Policy (cite) – Policy 8002-Community Grants 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
MOTION: That Committee of the Whole recommend to Council to award the 2021 Greenview Community 
Grants. 

BACKGROUND/PROPOSAL: 
The Community Services Miscellaneous Grants approved budget for 2021 is $1,000,000.00, with a current 
balance remaining as of May 17, 2021 of $325,729.70.  The 2021 Greenview community spring grant funding 
requests total $486,752.00. 

Administration has provided the following questions in an effort to aid Council in the grant review process: 

1) What types of groups or organizations should Greenview fund?
2) What are the criteria used when funding events?
3) Will Greenview fund charitable organizations?
4) Will Greenview fund groups compete with private industry?
5) Is there a degree of consistency and fairness?
6) Will funding positively impact the social/economic development of Greenview?

The grant requests have been summarized into a spreadsheet with Administration providing 
recommendations for Council’s consideration. 

BENEFITS OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
1. The benefit of Council accepting the recommended motion is that the Committee of the Whole will

recommend that Council award the 2021 Community Spring Grants accordingly, as presented.

DISADVANTAGES OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
1. There are no perceived disadvantages to the recommended motion.
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ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED: 
There are no alternatives to the recommended motion. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATION: 
Direct Costs: $486,752.00 
Ongoing / Future Costs:  N/A 
 
STAFFING IMPLICATION: 
There are no staffing implications to the recommended motion. 
 
PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT LEVEL: 
Greenview has adopted the IAP2 Framework for public consultation.  

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 
Inform  
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 
Inform - To provide the public with balanced and objective information to assist them in understanding the 
problem, alternatives, opportunities and/or solutions. 
  
PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 
Inform - We will keep you informed.  

 
FOLLOW UP ACTIONS: 
Administration will present the approved 2021 spring grants as recommended by Committee of the Whole 
to Council. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

• 2021 Spring Grant Application Listing 
• Grant Applications 
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4/2012021 Print Row - Smartsheetcorn 

2021 Grant Applications (April 15/21 
Deadline) 

Row1 

Name of 
Organization 

Address of 
Organization 

Form Date Field 

Contact Name 

Phone Number 

Purpose of 
Organization 

Purpose 
Continued 

Position of 
Contact Person 

Silver Birch Golf Club 

Box 375 Fox Creek Alberta 

35 

Dale Hagen 

780-622-5452

Community Golf course, non-profit group who provide activities to 
improve the quality of life in the community, The Golf Course is 
utilized by community members, school groups, juniors, seniors 
and tournaments attract golfers from the Northern Alberta region 
and beyond. 

Financial chairman 

What act are you 
Public Non Profit 

registered under? 

Registration No. 

Grant Type 

Total Amount 
Requested 

Proposed Project 

Have you 
previously applied 
for a grant from 
MD 

503270514 

Operating Grant 

150,000.00 

Operating expenses to help cover revenue decrease due to the 
COVID-19 pandemic. Any funding received will go towards 
offsetting wages. We are requesting $150,000.00 for operating 
expenses to be used over the next three years for operating 
expenses, however any amount of funding would be greatly 
appreciated, If we do not make enough to cover our expenses in 
2021 we will likely have to close the course in 2022 due to the 
fact that we've used up our savings we have accumulated over 
the last 10 years. 
In 2019 there was almost $75,000.00 in membership fees 
compared to $40,000.00 in 2020 due to the pandemic. 

No 

https://app.srnartsheet.com/b/horne?formName""fn_row&f ormActlon=fa_printRow&parm 1 =4 73822096&parm2=26427 472144&ss _ v= 126.0 .1 112 62
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Previous Grant
App from MD

Final Completion
Report Provided to
MD

No

Grant funds
applied forfrom
othersources?

Yes

Grant Funds
Received from
othersources?

Yes

Have you
performed any
otherfundraising
projects?

Yes, currently doing 50/50 raffles so far due COVID 19
restrictions

Agreement

Grant Purpose 2020- CEBA grant received of $60,000.00 and we have to repay
$20,000.00 by 2022 (savings account has been started)
2020- Received $10,000.00 grant from the Town of Fox Creek
2020- Received wage subsidy from the government of
approximately $50,000.00

Year Grant
Received

AmountofGrant

Llst the donaee,
purposeand None
amount

What type of
fundraising & how ^^
much did you
raise?

Signature

Date

Dale Hagen

03/18/21

Flnancial
Statement

Administration
Recommendations

Email dtmt2010@telus.net

https://app.smartsheet.com/b/home?formN3me=fn_row&formActton=fa_printRow&parm1=473822096&parm2=26427472144&ss_v::126.0.1 2/263
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2021 Grant Applications (April 15/21
Deadline)
Row2

Name of
Organization

Address of
Organization

Form Date Field

Contact Name

Phone Number

Purpose of
Organization

Cranberry Rodeo Association

Box 500. DeBolt, Alberta

36

Jacquie Aitken

17805186593

The Cranberry Rodeo Association registered as a society in
1983. The purpose of the organization is to promote the growth of
rodeo participation in the Debolt, Crooked Creek, Ridgevalley and
Bezansen communitles and surrounding region. Giving the
opportunity for local residence the to participate in rodeo events
to develop their skills and provide everyone the opportunity to see
Major Rodeo Events that at one time were skills required to
establish western Alberta communities. Rodeo is a part ofour
communities' history and continues to develop our community by
offering the opportunity for family friendly social activities for all
ages.

Purpose
Continued

Position of
Contact Person Jacquie Aitken

Whalacl are you_ socjeties Actregistered under?

Registration No. 502883044

Grant Type

Total Amount
Requested

Operating Grant

$25,000.00

Proposed Project hlost The Cranberry Lake Rodeo & Chuckwagons June 2021
Host a Team Roping Event.
hlost weekly Team Roping and Gymkhana.

Have you
previously applied
for a grant from
MD

https://app.smartsheel.com/b/homs?formName=fn_row&formAclion=fa_printRow8.parm1=473822096&parm2=26522044914&ss_v=125.0.1 1/268
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Previous Grant
App from MD

Yes

Final Completion
Report Provided to Yes
MD

Grant funds
applied for from
other sources?

Yes

Grant Funds
Received from
other sources?

Have you
performed any
otherfundraislng
projects?

Agreement

Grant Purpose

Year Grant
Received

Yes

Maintenance of Rodeo Grounds and Equipment.
Atotal of$10,295was spentin the 2020, towards maintenance of
the facility.
This leaves $4,705. left from the allocation. Which will be
returned to M D as required.

2020

AmountofGrant $15,000.00

List the donaee,
purposeand
amount

What type of
fundraising & how
much did you
raise?

We have applied to the provincial Government for a rodeo start
up grant. They determine
the allocation based on 2 prior years allocations of Rodeo costs.

Prior Years we have hosted a Spring Dinner and Dance. This
year we are hoping to host a Fall Dinner and Dance if allowed to
do so by Alberta Health.

Signature J Aitken

Date 03/20/21

Financial
Statement

Administration
Recommendations

Email jacquieaitken@hotmail.com

https://app.smartsheet.com/b/home?formName=fn_row&formAction=fa_printRow&parm1=473822096&parm2=26522044914&ss_v=125.0.1 2/269
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4/6/2021 Print Row - Smartsheet.com

2021 Grant Applications (April 15/21
Deadline)
Row3

Name of
Organization

Address of
Organization

Form Date Field

Contact Name

Phone Number

Purpose of
Organization

Fox Creek Nordic and Trail Club

Box 304
Fox Creek, Alberta
TOH 1PO

37

Michelle Williscroft, Diane Ahn

7806227270

To provide a world class bike park and a sustainable passive
recreational trail system for walking, biking, snow shoeing, skiing
and fat biking. We felt a multi-use trail system would provide
opportunities for physical activity to improve fitness and mental
health, create a sense of community, presen/e green space and
boost Fox Creek and surrounding areas economy through
tourism.

Purpose
Continued

Position of
Contact Person

What act are you
registered under?

President/Treasurer

Non Profit Societies Act of Alberta

Registration No. 5017694109

Grant Type

Total Amount
Requested

Proposed Project

Operating Grant

$50,000.00

1)Equipment Maintenance/Repair Estimated
$20,000-$25,000

Diesel Range Runner, 2 Snow Dogs, Rough Cut Mower,
Chainsaw, 5 Weed Eaters, 3 Back Pack Blowers, 1 large 7 foot
Comb groomer, 4 small snow dog groomers, Jerry Tank pump, T-
Rex gravel trailer, enclosed trailer

2) Annual Trail Mainteance/Repair Estimated
$26,000-$30,000

https://app.smartsheet.com/b/home?formName=fn_row&formAction=fa_printRow&parm1=473822096&parm2=26761564292&ss_v=125.0.1 1/374



4/6/2021 Print Row - Smartsheet.com

3/4 crush gravel, screenings, drainage rocks, non woven geo-
textile, Hahn Pave and paddock geo tech, SVC Contact Program
(noxious weed spraying for 160 acre lease) drainage culverts,
Bike maintenace and Inspection by licensed builder)

Have you
previously applied
for a grant from
MD

3) Club Expenses-$10,000,
Building/equipment, Directors Insurance and Utilites,small tools
and supplies

Yes

Previous Grant
App from MD Yes

Fina] Completion
Report Provided to Yes
MD

Grant funds
applied forfrom
othersources?

Yes

Grant Funds
Received from
othersources?

Have you
performed any
otherfundraising
projects?

Agreement

Grant Purpose

Year Grant
Received

Yes

AB

Non Motorized trails for walking, biking, snow shoeing and fat
biking.

2016

Amount of Grant $167.000.00

List the donaee,
purpose and
amount

What type of
fundraising & how
much did you
raise?

Since 2015 Cash and In-kind donations from Gas and Oil
Companies and sen/ice groups used to develop trails and
purchase grooming equipment.community events.Trail House,
Sea Cans and Maintenance Equipment-$750,000

Casino $36,058.24, multiple donations from gas and oil
companies, (see above)community members and donated time
from gas and oil companies who flew in from Calgary to partake
in trail maintenance days. Board members have volunteered
hundreds of hours doing trail mainteance, assisting in trail builds
and grooming .

Signature Michelle Williscroft

https://app.smartsheet.com;b/home?formName^fn_row&formAction=fa_printRow8.parm1=473822096&parm2=26761564292&ss_v=125.0.1 2/375
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Date 03/24/21

Financial
Statement

Administratlon
Recommendations

Email aero05@telus.net

https://app.smartsheet.com/b/home?formName=fn_row&formAction=fa_pnntRow&parm1=473822096&parm2-26761564292&ss_v=125.0.1 3f376
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Statement of Account Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 20-Dec Jan-21

Opening Bank Balance $58,975.85 $58,657.18 $57,555.30 $56,560.56 $56,452.65 $55,137.29 $44,676.99 $43,139.28 $56,247.53 $64,358.17 $63,929.16 $63,929.16 $63,929.16 $63,929.16

Income

Memberships
Events
Donation $5,300.00 $15,000.00 $16,239.80
Grants $500.00
Misc. $4.00 $4.00 $8.00 $4.00 $4.00 $4.00 $4.00 $8,485.00 $4.00

Total Income $4.00 $4.00 $5,300.00 $8.00 $4.00 $4.00 $4.00 $15,004.00 $24,724.80 $504.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Expenses

Trail Building/maint $8,652.00 $798.00
Rent
Office Supplies $254.70 $262.50
Ops Supplies $513.19 $794.85 $1,051.26 $472.34 $29.09
Fuel $145.00
Parts/Small Equipment $5,041.25 $955.50 $16,610.16
Events
Meals
Insurance $1,208.00 $1,403.00
Misc $10.00
Utilites $318.67 $333.99 $196.14 $107.91 $119.10 $127.96 $134.71 $128.25 $899.92
Banking fees $4.00 $4.00 $8.00 $4.00 $4.00 $4.00 $4.00 $4.00 $4.00

Total Expense $322.67 $1,105.88 $6,294.74 $115.91 $1,319.36 $10,464.30 $1,541.71 $1,895.75 $16,614.16 $933.01 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Ending Bank Balance $58,657.18 $57,555.30 $56,560.56 $56,452.65 $55,137.29 $44,676.99 $43,139.28 $56,247.53 $64,358.17 $63,929.16 $63,929.16 $63,929.16 $63,929.16 $63,929.16

Saving Account
Deposit/interest $7.51 $6.54 $0.00 $9.37 $6.54 $6.33 $6.54 $10.24 $5.24 $5.24
Ending Balance $30,788.50 $30,795.04 $30,795.04 $30,804.41 $30,810.95 $30,817.28 $30,823.82 $30,834.06 $30,839.30 $30,844.54 $30,844.54 $30,844.54 $30,844.54 $30,844.54

Casino Account $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
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2021 Grant Applications (April 15/21
Deadline)
Row 5

Name of
Organizatlon

Address of
Organization

DeBolt and District Pioneer Museum Society

Box 298
DeBolt Alberta
TOH1BO

Form Date Field 39

Contact Name

Phone Number

Bernice Gen/vatoski

7808149711

Purpose of
Organization

The DeBolt and District Pioneer Society was incorporated in 1975
and began with one tiny log building. Over the years it has grown
to include 8 heritage buildings and 2 sheds that house pioneer
displays and some very unique exhibits including a co-op cheese
factory, a sawmill, indigenous exhibit, exhibit of all churches of the
area present and former, Farming, Ranching and community
event exhibits and a large fossil collection. Two of our buildings
are used year-round. These buildings also house exhibits. The
Legion Hall houses our extensive military exhibits. It is also used
for Tea's, Remembrance Day, Heritage Day, etc. The Community
Church has exhibits on the main floor along with our Museum
office. The lower level is where we have our weekly workshops
and we work on collections and new exhibits.

We manage the Hubert memorial Park and are caretakers of our
local Playground and picnic area and maintain the Park grounds.

Our Museum was designated by the Alberta Museum Association
as a recognized museum in 2006. We currently have recognition
until 2024 when we will renew again. Our Museum provides a
place for everyone to come and learn more about their local
history. It also provides programs for school groups and the
general public.

Every year our Museum Manager , Curator and volunteers create
new exhibits to educate the community and preserve our history.
Our Museum is doing its part in preserving the whole history of
our Province and Country. Our Museum serves as a major tourist
attraction for the MD of Greenview and our local community
making a contribution to the local economy. We have long term
plans in the areas of exhibits and displays, parks and grounds,
advertising and promotions and volunteers and education.

Purpose
Continued

Position of
Contact Person Treasurer

https://app.smartsheet.com/b/home?formName^fn_row&formAction=fa_printRow&parm1^473822096&parm2=26985653135&ss_v=125.0.1 1/380
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What act are you
registered under?

Print Row - Smartsheet.com

Society's act

Registration No. 500086657

Grant Type Operating Grant

Total Amount
Requested

14,000.00

Proposed Project This application is for operating funds for the DeBolt and District
Pioneer Museum Society Heritage buildings and the grounds of
Hubert Memorial Park.

We havetaken overthe maintenanceofthe Playground,
Basketball courts in the Hubert Memorial Park.

We require $6000.00 to maintain the grounds of the Park and
Museum property.

We require $7500.00 Utility's for2021. Utility's include power to
the Park buildings, Legion hlall and Museum Community Church
and Gas and Water to the Church and Legion hall.

$500.00 will be put toward insurance.

The funding we receive impacts all community members in the
East Smoky area. The park, playground, picnic area and museum
are enjoyed by all. If denied it would affect all users with lack of
maintenance the park would not be usable.

Many School classes from Ridgevalley school, Crooked Creek
Colony School, Rosedale Mennonite School and home schoolers
attend programing in the spring of the year. We invite schools
from Valleyview and surrounding areas also.

We also cater to many tourists in the summers.

Seniors days and Heritage days also attract many people to the
museum.

Have you
previously applied
for a grant from
MD

Yes

Previous Grant
App from MD

Yes

Final Completion
Report Provided to Yes
MD

Grant funds
applied forfrom
other sources?

Yes

Grant Funds
Received from
other sources?

hltps://app,smartsheet.com/b/home?formName=fn_row&formAction^fa_printRow8.parm1=473822096&parm2=26985653135&ss_u=125.0.1 2/381
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Have you
performed any
otherfundraising
projects?

Print Row - Smartsheet.com

Yes

Agreement Bernice Gerwatoski

Grant Purpose Capital Grant for
Lawn repair - $630.00
Re-paint barn floor -$2,520
Replace windows in Museum Church - $18,952.50

Year Grant
Received

2021

AmountofGrant 22,102.50

List the donaee, We have past years applied for funding from the Alberta
purpose and museums Association for staffing. Limited funds were available
amount for this grant in 2020.

What type of
fun

,ral,smg- Small raffles, selling history books and canvasing for donors.
much did you

-...-...-...—,

raise?

Signature

Date

Bernice Gerwatoski

03/31/21

Financial
Statement

Administration
Recommendations

Email deboltmuseum@gmail.com

https://app.smartsheet.com/b/home?formName=fn_row&formAction=fa_printRow&parm1=473822096&parm2=26985653135&ss_v=125.0.1 3/382
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4/20/2021 Print Row - Smartsheet.com

2021 Grant Applications (April 15/21
Deadline)
Row6

Name of
Organization

Address of
Organization

Form Date Field

Contact Name

Phone Number

Purpose of
Organization

Purpose
Continued

Position of
Contact Person

Fox Creek Curling Club

PO Box 23
FoxCreek,AB.TOH1PO

40

Jenn Ashmore

780-668-5726

We are a recreational curling organization dedicated to improving
the health and well being for residents of all ages in Fox Creek
and Surrounding Areas

GranUFundraising Coordinator

What^act areyou^ government of Alberta Societies Act
registered under?

Registration No. 503023350

Grant Type Operating Grant

Total Amount
Requested

20000

Proposed Project please see attached letter

Have you
previously applied
for a grant from
MD

Previous Grant
App from MD

yes

Yes

Final Completion
Report Provided to Yes
MD

Grant funds Yes
applied for from

https://app.sm3rtsheet.com/b/home?formName=fn_row&formAction=fa_printRow&parm1=:473822096&parm2=27472045959&ss_v=126.0.1 1/290
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othersources?

Grant Funds
Received from
othersources?

Print Row - Smartsheet.com

Have you
performed any
otherfundraising
projects?

Agreement

Grant Purpose

Yes

operating grant for lce Maker salary in 2019/2020 season
We were also awarded the same for the 2020/2021 season but
we declined the grant as our season was cancelled and we did
not need the full amount for the purpose we had applied for.

Year Grant
Received

2020

Amount of Grant 17500

Listthe donaee,
purposeand
amount

Whattype of
fundraising & how
much did you
raise?

Alberta Relaunch Grant- $9000 - not yet approved - income lost
due to CoVID restrictions, costs for 2020/2021 season
Town of Fox Creek $5000 -not yet a
approved - improvements to building security
We do not qualify for the Canadian Emergency Business Account
(CEBA) grant

Raffles

Signature

Date

JenniferAshmore

04/11/21

Financial
Statement

Administration
Recommendations

Email Jennlynk@hotmail.com

https://app.smartsheet.com/b/home?formName::fn_row&formAction=fa_pnntRow&parm1=473822096&parm2=27472045959&ss_v=126.0.1 2/291



 

March 7, 2021 

Attn: MD of Greenview, 

 

Thank you for your continued support of our club.  As you may know, our curling 

season ended November 24, 2020, when CoVID-19 restrictions prohibited indoor 

gatherings and sports.  Having just begun our season a month prior, we felt it was 

necessary to refund curling fees to the registered teams. 

We had been looking forward to an exciting season.  We were scheduled to host a 

number of provincial events and were anticipating successful annual club bonspiels.  

We had been hoping these events would be profitable enough to start a kitchen 

renovation in our off season.  We are disappointed that this improvement will be 

delayed due to the pandemic. 

Currently, we find ourselves in a financial situation where we have no income and 

increasing overhead costs. We have ongoing building break-ins, while continuing to 

improve building security.  

We are requesting a $20000 grant to assist with these surmounting costs.  We have 

looked at various CoVID-19 relaunch and/or assistance grants however, since we 

are not a business, we do not qualify for CEBA or other government grants that 

require revenue and/or tax reporting.  We understand that we were approved for an 

operating grant from the Community Grants Program at the end of 2020 however, 

we denied the funding as it would not have completely gone towards the icemaker 

wages as we had originally applied for.  We have attached our financial records and 

comparison to support our plea.  

For any additional information please contact us.    

Thank you again for supporting the club, it is truly appreciated. 

 

Robyn Ewert   Jenn Ashmore 

780-524-5240   780-668-5726 

 
 
780-622-2332 
fcccbooks@hotmail.com 
 
Box 23 
Fox Creek, Alberta 
T0H 1P0 

FOX CREEK CURLING CLUB 
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Fox Creek Curling Club
Profit and Loss Comparison

July 2020 - June 2021

Accrual Basis  Saturday, March 6, 2021 08:34 AM GMT-07:00   1/2

TOTAL

JUL 2020 - JUN 2021 JUL 2019 - JUN 2020 (PY)

INCOME

2 on 2 Open Bonspiel Income 0.00 2,735.72

2020 Provincial Qualifier Raffle 0.00 4,740.00

Advertising Income 7,028.57 7,628.57

August 2020 Facebook Raffle 250.02 0.00

Bar Sales 727.39 8,094.06

Capital Donations 0.00 20,000.00

Donations 410.00 17,860.00

Gaming Income 327.00 400.50

Junior Curling Apparel Sales 0.00 823.43

Junior Curling Registration Charged 0.00 323.00

Ladies Bonspiel Income 0.00 3,523.39

Membership Sales 0.00 5,425.80

Rentals 550.00 1,378.59

Resources Bonspeil Income 0.00 26,574.37

Rookie Bonspiel Income 0.00 2,899.00

Special Event Donations 0.00 979.25

Total Income $9,292.98 $103,385.68

GROSS PROFIT $9,292.98 $103,385.68

EXPENSES

2 on 2 Bonspiel Expenses 0.00 1,586.87

Advertising Expense 0.00 199.45

Bank charges 728.54 1,316.49

Bar Expense 600.06 4,607.91

Commissions and fees 0.00 951.29

Dues and Subscriptions -52.24 0.00

Early Registration BBQ 0.00 756.66

Freight and Delivery 0.00 468.06

Ice Maker's Expense 2,500.00 17,500.00

Insurance 10,000.00 9,767.00

Junior Curling Expenses 0.00 2,254.02

Junior Curling Registration Fees 0.00 366.60

Ladies Bonspiel Expenses 0.00 3,145.60

Materials and Supplies 809.02 2,548.57

Office expenses 674.60 485.26

Paint Night Expense 0.00 42.96

Professional fees 0.00 225.00

Rebillable Expense -100.00 0.00

Repair and maintenance 886.38 3,659.39

Ice Plant Upgrade 0.00 54,260.95

Remove and Replace Ice Lights 0.00 11,397.05

Roof Repairs 0.00 8,984.00

Total Repair and maintenance 886.38 78,301.39

Resources Bonspiel  Expenses 0.00 16,245.62

93



Fox Creek Curling Club
Profit and Loss Comparison

July 2020 - June 2021

Accrual Basis  Saturday, March 6, 2021 08:34 AM GMT-07:00   2/2

TOTAL

JUL 2020 - JUN 2021 JUL 2019 - JUN 2020 (PY)

Rookie Bonspiel Expenses 0.00 2,330.33

Training and Courses 0.00 900.00

Uncategorized Expense 439.10 0.00

Utilities 6,522.85 11,948.01

Total Expenses $23,008.31 $155,947.09

OTHER INCOME

Interest earned 2.61 565.13

Total Other Income $2.61 $565.13

PROFIT $ -13,712.72 $ -51,996.28

94



Fu
nd

in
g 

Pr
oj

ec
tio

n 
20

21
-2

02
2

 

Su
m

m
ar

y

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Re

ve
nu

e
Pr

oj
ec

te
d 

Ex
pe

ns
es

to
 M

ar
ch

 2
02

2
IT

EM
AM

OU
NT

IT
EM

DU
E 

DA
TE

AM
OU

NT

M
e

m
b

e
rs

hi
p

s
$5

,0
00

.0
0

U
til

iti
es

Y 
20

21
$5

,0
00

.0
0

A
c

c
o

un
ts

 R
e

c
ie

va
b

le
$2

,7
60

.0
0

U
til

iti
es

Y 
20

22
$1

2,
00

0.
00

C
he

q
ui

ng
 A

c
c

o
un

t
$2

,9
12

.5
5

In
su

ra
nc

e
Y 

20
21

$2
,3

00
.0

0

G
a

m
in

g
 A

c
c

o
un

ts
$7

,3
42

.3
3

In
su

ra
nc

e
Y 

20
22

$1
0,

00
0.

00

Re
nt

a
ls 

$1
,2

50
.0

0
C

a
re

 T
a

ke
r

Y 
20

21
$5

,5
00

.0
0

Re
so

ur
c

e
 B

o
ns

p
ie

l 2
02

2
$1

0,
00

0.
00

C
a

re
 T

a
ke

r
Y 

20
22

$1
7,

50
0.

00

Ba
r R

e
ve

nu
e

$4
,0

00
.0

0

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Sh

or
t

-$
19

,0
35

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Re

ve
nu

e

$3
3,

26
5

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Ex

pe
ns

es

$5
2,

30
0

95



4/20/2021 Print Row - Smartsheet.com

2021 Grant Applications (April 15/21
Deadline)
Row7

Name of
Organization

Address of
Organization

Form Date Field

Contact Name

Phone Number

Purpose of
Organization

BIGHORN GOLDEN AGE CLUB

P.0.BOX 1709,
GRANDE CACHE, ALBERTA.
TOE OYO

41

ALBERT ALEXANDER/or MARILYN GRAMLICK

780-827-2414/ 780-827-2197

Senior social club, providing a " drop in" or meeting facility to all seniors, in the
community and surrounding area of Grande Cache.It provides activities, events,
opportunities for seniors interaction and learning, and health, lifestyles, general
well-beingandCOVID-19.

Purpose
Continued

Position of
Contact Person

What act are you
registered under?

PRESIDENT/CHAIRPERSON OF BHGAG RENOVATION COMMITTEE

Societies

Registration No. 503979098

Grant Type

Total Amount
Requested

Proposed Project

Capital Grant

$27,500.00

The intent of the proposed project is to further upgrade the existing clubhouse,
renovate serious existing structural problems to meetcode standards, and make
the existing space more functional. Finally to upgrade to meet the needs ofthe
handicapped (wheel chairaccessible).
A renovation committee has been formed which was approved and passed by the
general membership. The committee is comprised ofthree executive members and
to general members of the club. They are, Albert Alexander, Bob Krewsuik, Anna
Davidge, Marilyn Gramlick, and Jack Spencer.The chairperson of the committee is
Marilyn Gramlick.
The goals of this committee are:
1. To provide handicap access to the front entry of the clubhouse, and relocate the
entry to the membership side to accommodate the handicapped.
2. To declutter and reduce people traffic at the front ofthe hall by moving the bar.
3.To expand both the women's and the men's bathrooms especially for the
handicapped.
4. To renovate and re-designed the kitchen area to make jt more efficient and

https://app.smartsheet.com/b/home?formName^fn_row&formAction=fa_printRow&parm1=473822096&parm2=27594160479&ss_v=126.0.1 1/396



4/20/2021 Print Row - Smartsheet.com

functional.
5.Stabi!ize the foundation under the existing office kitchen and bathroom. At
present these areas are structurally separating from the main building.
6. Upgrade the present heating system to gain better efficiency.

Are presently working with the engineering firm of Beairsto an Associates of
Grande Prairie. The project has been broken down into three main phases;
schematic design, construction drawings, and construction freight phase. The
engineering scope of work and cost estimate or attached. Our budget for phase 1
has been as follows:

Allocated by Green view from 2016 Grant........................... $9520.27
Allocated from Green viewfrom 2018 Grant.....................$9598.96
AllocatedfrommaturedGICinFebruary 2019................$10,000.00
Allocated interest from GIC....................................................190.00
Subtotal:...................................................................................................$29,309.23.

Expenses for the first phase:
Jenkins electrical (Upgrade for new appliances and upgrade of electrical panel to
meetcode standards...........................................................$6776.12
Beairsto Existing building analysis......................................$4200.00
Beairsto Consultation and pre-design meetings................$2782.50
Beairsto existing bldg analysis, site measure and draft....$3895.50
Beairsto Site measure draft and preliminarydesign..........$2415.00
Beairsto Preliminarydesign.....................................................682.50
Subtotal:...................................................................................................$20,751.62

Balance: $8557.61(subject to further cost for Phasel)
The amount of the grant we are applying for is for phase 2: see enclosed Beairsto
Cost estimate), which include Construction drawings: Architectural, Electrical, lot
grading plan and energy modeling. Grant request of $27,500. 00

Have you
previously applied
for a grant from
MD

Yes

Previous Grant
App from MD Yes

Final Completion
Report Provided to Yes
MD

Grantfunds
applied forfrom
othersources?

Yes

Grant Funds
Received from
other sources?

Yes

Have you
performed any
otherfundraising
projects?

Yes

Agreement

Grant Purpose

Marilyn Gramlick

Support of the club, heating, insulation and renovation maintenance (2017)
Appliances(2019)
Operating (2020-2021)

https://app.smartsheet.com/b/home?formName=fn_row&formAction=fa_printRow&parm1=473822096&parm2=27594160479&ss_v=126.0.1 2/397
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Year Grant
Received

2017
2019
2020
2021

Amount of Grant $50,000 (2017), $20,883.13(2019) $75,000.00(2020-2021) rec'd $37,500.00

List the donaee, New horizons grant for roof replacement (201 7)
purpose and New Horizon's grant for seniors' 'Social Media Workshop' and equipment.
amount (2016,2017)

What type of

spring of 2018 for approximately $40,159. 00. This was allocated for approximately

raise?

The club members were able to participate in a casino in Grand Prairie in the
spring of 2018 forapproximately $40,159. 00. This
three operating years and will run out in 2020.

Signature

Date

Marilyn Gramlick

11/04/21

Financial
Statement

Administration
Recommendations

Email grampaalexander@gmail.com / unique1@telusplanet.net

https://app.smartslieet.com;b/home?formName^fn_row8irormAction^fa_printRow8iparm1=473822096&parm2=275941604798iSS_v=126.0.1 3/398
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2021 Grant Applications (April 15/21
Deadline)
Row8

Name of
Organization

Address of
Organization

Form Date Field

Prairie Rose 4H Club

Box94
Little Smoky, AB TOH 3ZO

42

Contact Name Hope Kristensen

Phone Number 780-524-8967

Purpose of
Organizatlon

Purpose
Continued

Position of
Contact Person

What act are you
registered under?

Reglstration No.

Grant Type

Total Amount
Requested

Multi 4H Club with projects of Equine, Archery, Canine, and Cats.

General Leader

Operating Grant

2000

Proposed Project The club consists of multiple projects, the grant money would be
used for hall rental, arena rental and instruction costs for each of
the projects which are Equine, Canine, Archery and Cats.

Have you

^i^^iedves.no«sureofthev-
MD

YesPrevious Grant
Appfrom MD

Final Completion
Report Provided to
MD

Grant funds Yes

https://app.smartsheet.com/b/home?formName=fn_row&formAction=f3_printRow&parm1=473822096&parm2=27641713527&ss_v=126.0.1 1/299



4/20/2021 Print Row - Smartsheet.com

applied for from
othersources?

Grant Funds
Received from No
other sources?

Have you
performed any
otherfundraislng
projects?

Agreement

Grant Purpose

Year Grant
Received

Amount of Grant

List the donaee,
purposeand
amount

What type of
fundraising & how
much did you
raise?

Tisha Huggard

UFA, achievement day $300
Applied forthe 2021 AB Transportation Highway Cleanup
(estimated $500) and MD Roadside Cleanup- pending approvals

hlighway Cleanup through Alberta Transportation 2020 $500

Signature

Date

Tisha Huggard

04/14/21

Financial
Statement

Administration
Recommendations

Email Prairierose4h@gmail.com

https://app.smartsheet.com/b/home?formName=fn_row&formAction=fa_printRow&parm1=473822096&parm2=27641713527&ss_v=126.0.1 2/2100
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2021 Grant Applications (April 15/21
Deadline)
Row9

Name of
Organization

Address of
Organization

Form Date Field

Contact Name

Phone Number

Purpose of
Organization

Northland Sno-Goers ( Fox Creek)

Box 476
Fox Creek, AB
TOH1PO

43

Sheila Bellwood

780-622-9489

We are the local snowmobile club in Fox Creek and we look after
maintenance of 250 km of trail and 4 warmer cabins. We are also
a part of the golden triangle that connects us to Swan Hills and
Whitecourt. This includes year round work in the winter months
we groom and make sure there is firewood at all the cabins. In
spring, summer and fall we do cabin maintenance and trail
clearing.

Purpose
Continued

Position of
Contact Person

What act are you
registered under?

President

We are a society

Registration No. 50008152

Grant Type

Total Amount
Requested

Proposed Project

Operating Grant

17252

We are looking for $1 0000 to help cover the costs of grooming
the trails. This year with Covid restrictions we were unable to host
our Annua] poker rally which covers most of our costs of
grooming. Our club has become one of the best spots to come
ride the best groomed trails in Northem Alberta. To be able to
maintain this we have to groom often. We have a contractor that
does this for our club at a discounted price which is great. We are
asking for $5000 to put towards our staging area that we should
be starting this coming year as the Town of Fox Creek as finally
got tittle to the North land. The last $2252 is to cover the
insurance for our 4 warm up cabins. 1 have attached the
insurance invoice.

https://app.smartsheet.com/b/home?formName=fn_row&formAction=fa_printRow&parm1=473822096&p3rm2=27641217911&ss_v=126.0.1 1/2102
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Have you Yes
previously applied
for a grant from
MD

Previous Grant
App from MD Yes

Final Completion
Report Provided to Yes
MD

Grant funds
applied forfrom
other sources?

Yes

Grant Funds
Received from
othersources?

Have you
performed any
otherfundraising
projects?

Yes

Agreement

Grant Purpose They were for our staging area and help cover the cost of
grooming and maintenance of the trails

Year Grant
Received

2018
2019

AmountofGrant $15000 each time

List the donaee, Shell staging area $9000
purpose and Town of Fox Creek staging $15000
amount Alberta Snowmobile Association trail widening $40000

What type of
fni^had!d"^ how Do do raffles' an"ualPoker ra"y
raise?

Signature

Date

Sheila Bellwood

04/15/21

Financial
Statement

Administration
Recommendations

Email sheilagilmour@gmail.com

https://app.smartsheet.com/b/home?formName=fn_row&formAction=fa_printRow&parm1=473822096&parm2=27641217911&ss_v::126,0.1 2/2103
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Bare Contractors Ltd. 
PO Box 332 

Fox Creek, Alberta 
T0H 1P0 

Phone # (780)622-3100 
Fax # (780)622-3102 

 

PROPOSAL 
 

Proposal Submitted To: Northland Sno-Goers 
 
 
  
Job Description: Trail Grooming 

 
 
$ 185.00/hr for Snow Cat and Drag 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Terry Bellwood 
Bare Contractors Ltd 

780-622-7809 
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Grant Money
Company General

Maintenance
Trail
Maintenance

Staging Area Amount

Shell X $9000

Jamboree 18 X X X $17000

Poker Rally 19 X X X $8000

MD Grant 18 X X X $15000

Town Grant X $15000

MD Grant 19 x x x $15000

Poker Rally 20 x x x $10187
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2021 Grant Applications (April 15/21
Deadline)
Row11

Name of
Organization

Address of
Organization

Form Date Field

Contact Name

Phone Number

Purpose of
Organization

Grande Cache Golf & Country Club

Box28
Grande Cache, Alberta
TOE OYO

45

Pam Brown

780-827-6320 (personal cell)

9-Hole golf course, with offsetting tee boxes to support 1 8 holes,
in the hamlet of Grande Cache, offering recreation & sport for
members and guests. Also host to community functions such as
golftournaments, weddings, meetings and similaractivities.

In the winter season; this is home to the Smoky River Nordic Ski
Club; they set tracks on the course/land for cross country skiing
in our community.

Purpose
Continued

Position of
Contact Person

What act are you
registered under?

Executive President

Societies

Registration No. 500107230

Grant Type

Total Amount
Requested

Capital Grant

$35,000.00 Capital, $30,000.00 Operating

Proposed Project Capital Project; $35,000.00

Funding will be used to hire Puddicombe Golf Industries to
prepare a Master Plan Proposal to review, identify and prepare a
Master Plan for the current & future state of the Golf Course.
$30,000.00 is the cost ofthe consultation with an indication that
additional site visits are at $2,500.00 per visit - we have factored
in 2 additional site visits should they be warranted.

Operating Funding; $30,000.00

https://app.smartsheet.com/b/home?formN3me=fn_row&formAction=fa_printRow&parm1=473822096&parm2=27692120786&ss_v=126.0.1 1/3108
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Funding will be used towards day to day operations. Through the
last few seasons we have relied on generated revenue to offset
the expenses of the course, by doing so we had to defer some
operating needs that will need to be addressed this season;
examples 1) reel sharpening for our machines is $5,000.00 per
season, 2) additional sand will be required this season for green
management as well as bunker management, this is a cost that
comes in around $5,000.00 which has included donated hauling
in the past. Needs not limited to these examples.

Have you
previously applied
for a grantfrom
MD

Yes.

Previous Grant
App from MD

Yes

Final Completion
Report Provided to Yes
MD

Grant funds
applled for from
other sources?

Yes

Grant Funds
Recelved from
other sources?

Have you
performed any
otherfundraising
projects?

Yes

Agreement

Grant Purpose 2018 Grant - Replaced clubhouse & shop windows, purchased a
Point-of-Sale system, installed a security system and completed
payment on cart lease.
2019 Grant - Upgraded sewer system, installed new stairs. **
"We have retained approx. $6,400.00 from the 2019 capital
grant that is will go towards repairing the main clubhouse patio
dining deck and a timer system will be installed in the current
pumphouse for watering greens. These projects will be
completed in near future.**

Year Grant
Received

2018
2019

AmountofGrant $45,000.00202

List the donaee,
purpose and
amount

We are actively seeking funding from CFEP & CIP; both are
matching grants and funds received from the IVID will be used in
this application.

Historically, we received annual funding from the Town of Grande
Cache for operating in the community.

https://app.smartsheet.com/b/home?formName=fn_row&formAction=fa_printRow&parm1=473822096&parm2=27692120786&ss_v=126.0.1 2/3109
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What type of
fundralsing & how
much did you
raise?

Print Row - Smartsheet.com

We have held golf tournaments with proceeds raised gone to
specific projects/equipment; example - 2020 Just Fore Fun
tournament raised $3,000.00 - we were able to purchase a new
hole cutting machine and replace tee box markers across all 18
tee boxes.
We have also done annual volunteer drives & worked with
community businesses to provide in-kind work such as hauling
soil & sand, snow removal, equipment to drain ditches and
remove materials from the course. We continue to network with
our business community to maintain strong relationships and
have the ability to call upon resources needed that can be
donated.

Signature

Date

Pam Brown

04/15/21

Financial
Statement

Administration
Recommendations

Email gcgolfboard@telus.net

https://app.smartsheet.com/b/home?formName=fn_row&formAction=fa_printRow&parm1=473822096&parm2-27692120786&ss_v=126.0.1 3/3110



111



112



 

 

GRANDE CACHE 

Golf & Country Club 
 

Master Plan Proposal 
March 2021 

 

 

Prepared For: 

Grande Cache Golf & Country Club 

 

Prepared by: 

Puddicombe Golf 

502-12th Avenue 

Nisku, Ab T9E 7N9 
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Larry
Image



 
Overview 

 

Subsequent to discussions with the Board President, it is the intent of the Club to move forward 
with the development of a Master Plan to both improve the golf course and provide a means of 

sustaining operations. In general, the objective of updating the existing layout is to enhance the 

basic considerations of golf design – the integrity, beauty, and maintainability of the layout. 

 

What Is a Master Plan 

 

A Master is both a document and a process that a golf club may embrace to establish a clear path 

to the redevelopment of its’ existing course. A Master Plan can be defined as: 

“A long range plan, presented both in the form of 

drawings and report, and prepared to ensure the 

                                      comprehensive remodeling of a golf course.” 

A typical Master Plan may include the following items; 

o Overall description and assessment of the existing course 

o Assessment of safety issues both internal and external to the course 

o Analysis of site and course potential 

o Individual hole description and analysis 
o Cost Estimates and staging of the works 

o Recommendations 

o Overall Master Plan drawing 

o Individual hole plans 

Why Have a Master Plan? 

The development of a Master Plan for an existing course may be prompted by a number of 

reasons, including; 

o Other new ‘competitor’ courses in the region being established, or existing ones being 

upgraded 

o Need to improve the playability, aesthetics, challenge, safety, traffic circulation and 
sustainability of the golf course 

o Improving green and tee sizes to meet increased demand and wear 

o Correcting obvious problems and deficiencies in the original construction of the course 

such as soil compaction and poor drainage 
o Gives the Club a definite program to work to, and one that is removed from ‘committee of 

the day’ type issues 

Establishing a Project Brief 

The Club’s committee has developed an extensive Evaluation Report to effectively guide the 

preparation of the Master Plan. 
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The Planning Process 

The Master Plan Process typically includes the following phases: 

Phase 1     Meeting between Committee and Architect and review Club’s Evaluation Report 

Phase 2     Preliminary Research and Course Inspections 

Phase 3     Presentation and Assessment of Feedback and Brief Finalization 

Phase 4     Design Development, including preparation of Conceptual Designs 

Phase 5     Review with Committee 

Phase 6      Final designs and preparation of Master Plan drawing, Report, Staging Plan, Schedule       

                  of  Works and Cost Estimate 

Phase 7     Presentation, Discussion and Review 

Phase 8     Final presentation of Master Plan and Report to Committee and Public Display and                  

                   Presentation to Members 

Implementation Phase (s)     Ongoing, to staging plan as determined 

 

Implementation of the Master Plan 

There are many ways of implementing the works of a Master Plan, and all rely on an experienced 
Construction team and good lines of communication. These may range from a fully in-house team 

to a contractor undertaking many aspects of the works. 

 

Schedule of Fees 
Planning Process Phase 1 – 8 

o The time required to complete the Master Plan will be 3-4 months once all the required 

information is obtained. 
o Fees for services would be fixed at $30,000.00 (thirty thousand dollars) excluding GST. 

Progressive Payments to be made as Work is completed. 

o Three site visits are included in the fees. Additional site visits for consulting will be charged 

at $2,500.00/day which includes travel. 

 

Economy and Finality 

Having a Master Plan adopted by a Club can also ensure that subsequent committees do not go 
off tangent, but are clearly guided by the plan as to the works to be undertaken on the golf course 

during their tenure. And this will go a long way to enabling a sense of finality to be achieved on a 

golf course following the implementation of a Master Plan. A golf course is a living, evolving 

organism, and a redevelopment through a Master Plan process is the best methodology for 
improvements. 

Ref: M+C 
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2021 Grant Applications (April 15/21
Deadline)
Row12

Name of
Organization

Address of
Organization

Form Date Field

Contact Name

Phone Number

Purpose of
Organization

Purpose
Continued

Position of
Contact Person

Northwest Spirit Rotary Club

C/0 Tim Schilds, Club Foundation Chair
10213 18 Street, Dawson Creek, BC V1G 4C9

46

Courtney Hughes, Gord Hughes

7809467619

Rotary Clubs provide service to others, promote integrity, and
advance world understanding, goodwill, and peace through our
fellowship of business, professional, and community leaders.

Together, we see a world where people unite and take action to
create lasting change —across the globe, in our communities,
and in ourseives.

As a global network that strives to build a world where people
unite and take action to create lasting change, Rotary values
diversity and celebrates the contributions of people of all
backgrounds, regardless oftheir age, ethnicity, race, color,
abilities, religion, socioeconomic status, culture, sex,sexual
orientation, and gender identity.

The Northwest Spirit Rotary Club includes Rotarians in both
Northern Alberta and British Columbia, with five active members
in Grande Cache, AB dedicated to community service.

Community Service Project Chairs

What act are you Canada Not for Profit Corporations Act, as we bridge both Alberta
registered under? and BCjurisdictions

Registration No. 1247407-7

Grant Type Operating Grant

Total Amount
Requested 1000

Proposed Project The funds from this grant would provide opportunities for under-
privileged youth across our communities to participate in
equestrian riding activities.

https://app,smartsheet.com/b/home?formName=fn_row&formAction=fa_printRow&parm1=473822096&parm2=27636567570&ss_v=126.0.1 1/4118
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The benefits of equine-assisted learning and activities to youth,
including those with emotional, behavioral or learning difficulties,
has been shown to reduce anxiety. Anxiety in youth increases an
individual's risk ofeducational underachievement in and
functional impairment in areas such as health, social
relationships, education, and work in adulthood. However, the
expenses ofyouth pursuing such activities, coupled with limited
access to horses and safe riding spaces, would generally
preclude manyfrom participating.

In addition, equine assisted learning has been shown to benefit
youth, via an RCMP led program, where participants said the
program inspired several significant life changes, including a
reduction in their overall level of anger; less interest in using illicit
drugs; improvements in their home life; a more positive attitude,
increased levels of self-respect and self-esteem; and an
increased ability to set, and work towards, personal goals and
make better lifestyle choices.

This year, starting in June, we will implement a youth riding
program, where riding lessonswould occurat Elk Ridge Quarter
Horses, the newly established business formerly known as U-Bar
Ranch. Lessons would be taught by a certified and insured riding
coach, and riders would be provided with appropriate PPE. All
lessons would follow Alberta Health Services and Alberta Equine
Federation safety requirements, including covid-19 health orders
and protocols.

Lesson group size would be a minimum of 2 to a maximum of 5
youth participants, between the age of 11-18. The program would
culminate in a one-day exposition, proposed for the second
weekend of September, 2021 to demonstrate and celebrate the
knowledge and skills learned by the participants.

The exposition would be open to all parents, and pending covid-
19 considerations, the broader public. This exposition would also
help generate funds (i.e., donations) to continue the program into
2022 and recognize the parties who supported and funded this
project. In 2022 we will plan to increase the group size to 10
youth with 2 certified coaches.

Current partners include the Grande Cache RCMP, who is
donating $3700 from a defunct DARE program account. The
Northwest Spirit Rotary Club, as the registered non-profit
organizalion, would hold and distribute the funds for this project,
would be responsible for coordinating evaluation and reporting.
The equine services will be provide by Elk Ridge Quarter Horses,
with a pre-determined payment plan administered by Northwest
Rotary Club. Additionally, we have begun discussions with the
MD of Greenview's FCSS to help support us in identifying youth
candidates to participate in our program.

Without this grant we would not be able to sustain the 5 students
for 15 lessons, northe exposition. Ifwedo not receive these
funds we would be required to reduce the length and quality of
the program, thereby reducing the positive impacts for local
youth. This grant is therefore essential to implementing and
fulfilling this project.

OPERATING BUDGET:

$50 (incl gst, per youth per lesson) x 5 participants
= $3750.00

15 lessons

https://app.smartsheel.com/b/home?formName=fn_row&formAction=fa_printRow&parm1=473822096&parm2=27636567570&ss_v=126.0.1 2/4119
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Equine Exposition costs incl. 1 day arena rental, horses and tack,
PA system, sanitization PPE (masks, hand/spray sanitizer) and
refreshments = $950

Total = $4700

Have you
previously applied ^
for a grant from
MD

Previous Grant
App from MD

No

Final Completion
Report Provided to
MD

Grant funds
applied forfrom
othersources?

No

Grant Funds
Received from
othersources?

Yes

Have you
performed any
otherfundraising
projects?

Yes

Agreement

Grant Purpose

Courtney Hughes

Year Grant
Received

Amount ofGrant

Listthe donaee,
purpose and
amount

RCMP defunct DARE account, $3700. This project, with a focus
on youth, is in alignment with the purpose and scope of the now
defunct DARE program.

What type of Grande Cache Rotarians supported raising awareness that every
fundraising & how child matters through Orange Shirt Day 2020 and raised
much did you approximately $250 for the cause. We are planning on repeating
raise? this again in 2021 .

Signature

Date

Courtney hlughes

04/15/21

Financial
Statement

Admlnistration
Recommendations

https://app.smartsheet.com/b/home?formName=fn_row&formAction=fa_printRow&parm1-473822096&parm2-27636567570&ss_v=126.0.1 3/4120
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Email

Print Row - Smartsheet.com

ck_hughes@hotmail.com
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Rotary Club of Northwest Spirit
A/R Aging Summary

As of April 11, 2021

  Sunday, April 11, 2021 11:18 AM GMT-07:00   1/1

CURRENT 1 - 30 31 - 60 61 - 90 91 AND OVER TOTAL

Alice Twa -2.00 $ -2.00

Carol Drescher 324.00 75.00 $399.00

Crystal Kirton 150.00 $150.00

Darryll White 36.00 $36.00

Jessica Telizyn 150.00 $150.00

Yvonne Rempel 300.00 $300.00

TOTAL $0.00 $360.00 $0.00 $0.00 $673.00 $1,033.00
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Rotary Club of Northwest Spirit
Profit and Loss by Class

July 1, 2020 - April 11, 2021

Accrual Basis  Sunday, April 11, 2021 12:42 PM GMT-07:00   1/1

MEMBERSHIP ROTARY PROJECTS SOCIAL EVENT TOTAL

INCOME

45050 Membership dues 9,000.00 $9,000.00

45110 Fundraising event 1 4,762.00 700.00 $5,462.00

45130 Fundraising event 3 245.00 $245.00

Total Income $9,000.00 $5,007.00 $700.00 $14,707.00

COST OF GOODS SOLD

50510 Fundraising event 1 costs 2,717.00 700.00 $3,417.00

Total Cost of Goods Sold $0.00 $2,717.00 $700.00 $3,417.00

GROSS PROFIT $9,000.00 $2,290.00 $0.00 $11,290.00

EXPENSES

54030 Legal (and annual filing) 399.50 $399.50

54110 Advertisements 66.43 $66.43

54210 Bank charges and fees 36.20 8.00 $44.20

54220 Interest paid 0.01 $0.01

54310 Office supplies 35.15 $35.15

54320 Courier and postage 14.77 $14.77

54350 RI Membership dues 3,355.67 $3,355.67

54360 District Membership dues 2,640.00 $2,640.00

54640 Software licences 179.20 $179.20

54650 Club Runner 413.70 $413.70

54840 District President Training 157.50 $157.50

Total Expenses $7,298.13 $8.00 $0.00 $7,306.13

OTHER EXPENSES

58520 Dispersments to organization 1,786.00 $1,786.00

Total Other Expenses $0.00 $1,786.00 $0.00 $1,786.00

PROFIT $1,701.87 $496.00 $0.00 $2,197.87

123



Rotary Club of Northwest Spirit
Balance Sheet

As of April 11, 2021

Accrual Basis  Sunday, April 11, 2021 12:43 PM GMT-07:00   1/1

TOTAL

Assets

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalent

10110 Cash to be deposited 0.00

10200 Chequing bank account (Operations) 1,164.87

Total Cash and Cash Equivalent $1,164.87

Accounts Receivable (A/R)

12000 Accounts Receivable (A/R) 1,033.00

Total Accounts Receivable (A/R) $1,033.00

Total Current Assets $2,197.87

Total Assets $2,197.87

Liabilities and Equity

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable (A/P)

20100 Accounts Payable (A/P) 0.00

Total Accounts Payable (A/P) $0.00

Total Current Liabilities $0.00

Total Liabilities $0.00

Equity

Profit for the year 2,197.87

Total Equity $2,197.87

Total Liabilities and Equity $2,197.87
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2021 Grant Applications (April 15/21
Deadline)
Row 13

Name of
Organization

Address of
Organization

Form Date Field

Contact Name

Phone Number

Purpose of
Organization

Purpose
Continued

Position of
Contact Person

Whatact are you
registered under?

Saint Lawrence Centre (Wapiti Community Dorm Society)

Mailing: Box 21331, Grande Prairie, Ab T8W 6W7

47

Kathy Lambert/Jared Gossen

780.539.6777/780.228.5734

Wapiti Community Dorm Society provides regionally accessed
supports for street-involved and homeless individuals through our
two facilities. Rotary House and Saint Lawrence Centre. We exist
to reduce the impacts of poverty and provide practical day to day
supports to meet the survival needs ofvulnerable people.

Wapiti Community Dorm Society provides day drop in services
accessed by over 60 individuals daily, 57 additional overnight
emergency mats for high risk individuals who may be under the
influence. 39 24/7 emergency beds, and 34 supported transitional
rooms for individuals living with duel diagnosis (mental health and
substances use disorders.)

www.rotaryhouse.ca
www.slcap.ca

Executive Director/Project Lead

Alberta Society Act/CRA Registered Charity

Registration No. 507164622/870479433RR0001

Grant Type

Total Amount
Requested

Operating Grant

$100,000.00

Proposed Project Wapiti Community Dorm Society is requesting financial support
for our Saint Lawrence Centre (SLC) Winter Warming Program
which operates October to March. The SLC has been running
since 2015. Year after year we see growth in the number of
homeless and street involved individuals needing respite from the
cold. During the winter months our facility, gifted in kind by the

https:/;app.smartsheel.com/b/home?formName=fn_row&formAction=fa_printRow&parm1=473S22096&parm2=27645959124&ss_u=126.0.1 1<3125
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City of Grande Prairie, operates 24/7. We provide daytime
support to between 50-70 individuals and overnight sleep space
in our mat program to 13. Folks attend the SLC between 8am and
10pm for rest, showers, snacks, coffee, and to be connected with
resources by our support workers. Our program does not have
the capacity to support individuals in housing searches or
applying to treatment etc. We depend greatly, and work closely
with, Northreach, Mobile Outreach Team (CofGP), and Mobile
Addictions Outreach (CMHA) to ensure individuals who are ready
for change do not fall through the cracks.

COVID19 has obviously effected everyone. The impacts felt by
our program have been mainly financial. We have been unable to
host our spring fundraiser two years in a row and the economic
situation has effected private and corporate giving. As the MD
understands well, our services support the region. Individuals
travel to Grande Prairie from surrounding communities and this
has prompted us to reach out for additional support where it may
be available.

We have had to increase our staffing over the last year to include
an additional daytime worker due to the growing impact ofthe
opioid epidemic in producing complex mental health behaviors. 1
am very proud to say that our staff are experts in accommodating
even some of the most high behavior individuals for as long as
they can. We take our responsibility to the community very
seriously and always look for reason to keep folks in the Centre
instead offocusing on behaviors which should exclude individuals
from our services.

In earnest, our services are simple, yet essential. The problems
and behaviors that walk through the door are extremely complex,
but stabilization for an afternoon and making some base
connections for folks can be somewhat straight forward. Our
proposal is part of the needed response to assist individuals living
in poverty to sur^ive the day and hopefully make change when
ready.

Please do not hesitate to contact myself or my director for
additional information.

Jared Gossen
Project Lead

CC: Kathy Lambert
Executive Director

Have you
previouslyapplied
for a grant from
MD

Previous Grant
App from MD

No

Final Completion
Report Provided to
MD

Grantfunds
applied forfrom
other sources?

Yes

http5://app.smartsheel,com/b/home?formName=fn_row&formAction-fa_printRow&parm1^473822096&parm2^27645959124&ss_v=126.0.1 2/3126
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Grant Funds
Received from
other sources?

Print Row - Smarisheet.com

Yes

Have you
performed any
otherfundraising
projects?

Agreement

Grant Purpose

Year Grant
Received

AmountofGrant

Yes

Listthe donaee,
purpose and
amount

CityofGrande Prairie: $100,000
Province of Alberta, Community and Social Services (OSSI);
$150,000

What type of Community donors continue to donate monthly to the project
fundraising & how averaging $2000 per month. We have been unable to organize
much did you our regular fundraising banquet reducing our over fundraising by
raise? 45%

Signature

Date

Kathy Lambert

04/14/21

Financial
Statement

Administration
Recommendations

Email kathyl@rotaryhouse.info/jaredg@rota ryhouse.info

https://app.smartsheet.com/b/home?formName=fn_row&formAction=fa_printRow&parnn1=473822096&parm2=27645959124&ss_v=126.0.1 3/3127



Apr '20 - Mar 21

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

4000 · REVENUE
4011 · Day time drop in (warming) 204,293.00
4010 · Extreme Weather 18,042.42
4009 · Prov for Covid 883,810.00
4001 · Provincial Funding (Mat) 389,537.28
4002 · Shelter Grant HS 1,087,488.24
4003 · Provincial Funding (HS, 16@25) 146,048.48
4005 · Keys 45.00

Total 4000 · REVENUE 2,729,264.42

4100 · Grants
4116 · Kitchen Upgrade Grant -6,848.92
4115 · Food grant Second Harvest 1,818.67
4114 · United Way Grant SLC Client nee -362.02
4113 · Community Foundation Kitchen Re 1,388.00
4112 · Community Foundation - Outreach 42,000.00
4111 · United Way Grant Covid 19 Emerg 88,600.00
4109 · Community Foundations Grant 17,035.00
4108 · City Grant SLC 148,000.00
4103 · AHS-Grant for Supportive Wages 95,196.00
4104 · City Of GP Grant 141,788.23
4107 · Pembina Grant 4,868.59

Total 4100 · Grants 533,483.55

4300 · Vending Machine Revenue 1,274.22
4400 · Rental Revenue

4408 · SCS Security Wages 130,064.99
4407 · SCS Lot rental 22,000.00
4401 · Men's Cots 104,502.18
4402 · Women's Cots 23,198.48
4403 · Double Rooms 67,482.27
4404 · Unrecoverable Rent -39,111.50
4405 · AHS Rooms (2) 35,680.92
4406 · Permanent Units (3rd Floor) 107,000.00

Total 4400 · Rental Revenue 450,817.34

4500 · Donations 89,524.58

Total Income 3,804,364.11

Gross Profit 3,804,364.11

Expense
5000 · EXPENSES

5002 · Appliance Replacement 7,147.82
5003 · Bank Charges 3,205.73
5004 · Contract Fees 16,247.96
5005 · Office Supplies 46,030.43
5006 · Interest 1,103.66
5008 · Insurance 24,917.95

5009 · Professional Fees 32,413.75
5010 · Postage and Freight 1,469.08
5011 · Training & Recruitment 4,246.56
5012 · Licences and Fees 7,261.51
5013 · Travel & Entertainment 8,306.61
5015 · Advertizing 1,478.87

Total 5000 · EXPENSES 153,829.93

5100 · Staff Wages & Salaries
5117 · Covid Bonus -2,449.01
5116 · Pay roll Warming Day program 136,997.33
5115 · Covid payroll 166,456.44

9:16 AM Rotary House 
2021-04-14 Profit & Loss 
Accrual Basis April 2020 through March 2021 
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Apr '20 - Mar 21

5101 · Housing Locator 75,216.22
5103 · Payroll - Admin

51031 · Benefits - Admin 8,717.85
5103 · Payroll - Admin - Other 240,635.63

Total 5103 · Payroll - Admin 249,353.48

5104 · Payroll Supportive (Mental Heal
51041 · EI Mental Health Worker 2,242.36
51042 · CPP Mental Health Worker 5,886.92
51043 · Benefits - Mental Health 3,536.37
5104 · Payroll Supportive (Mental Heal - Other 59,358.67

Total 5104 · Payroll Supportive (Mental Heal 71,024.32

5105 · Payroll - Maintenance & Houseke
51051 · Benefits - Maintenance 4,693.23
5105 · Payroll - Maintenance & Houseke - Other 117,733.03

Total 5105 · Payroll - Maintenance & Houseke 122,426.26

5106 · Payroll - WC 0.00
5107 · Payroll Support Worker 61,822.32

5108 · Payroll - Mat 120,709.74

5109 · Payroll - CCW
51091 · Benefits - CCW 61,618.07
5109 · Payroll - CCW - Other 537,379.32

Total 5109 · Payroll - CCW 598,997.39

5110 · Payroll Tax (emp'r) 0.00
5111 · Benefits (emp'ee portion) -23,252.19
5112 · Security Payroll 509,355.89
5113 · Support Staff 0.00
5114 · Payroll SLC

51143 · SLC CPP 8,516.15
51142 · SLC EI 3,393.55
51141 · SLC Benefits 7,277.88
5114 · Payroll SLC - Other 224,262.61

Total 5114 · Payroll SLC 243,450.19

Total 5100 · Staff Wages & Salaries 2,330,108.38

5200 · Workers' Compensation Board 13,609.43

5400 · SUPPORTIVE SUITES
5401 · Client Care Supportive 4,928.64
5403 · Worker's Cell phones 2,055.61
5304 · Travel for Clients 2,429.98
5405 · Office Supplies Supportive 672.61
5406 · Computer Supportive 2,574.10
5607 · Housing Support Fiunding 26,852.42

Total 5400 · SUPPORTIVE SUITES 39,513.36

5600 · ROTARY HOUSE
5609 · Covid Outreach United Way 46,093.34
5608 · Outreach - Community Support 36,866.20
5606 · SLC supplies 177,758.55
5601 · Security - RH 85,709.67
5603 · Client Care Supplies - RH 24,564.32
5604 · Coffee Supplies - RH 15,440.56
5605 · Transportation (Client) 13,878.24

Total 5600 · ROTARY HOUSE 400,310.88

5700 · WARMING CENTRE/SLC

9:16 AM Rotary House 
2021-04-14 Profit & Loss 
Accrual Basis April 2020 through March 2021 
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Apr '20 - Mar 21

5702 · Coffee Supplies - WC 6,409.56
5703 · Paper Products/Groc - WC 2,222.24
5705 · Phone and Internet - SLC 5,420.43

Total 5700 · WARMING CENTRE/SLC 14,052.23

5800 · Repair & Maintenance
5801 · Janitorial Supplies 124,867.77
5802 · Interior 87,642.91
5803 · Exterior 2,481.03
5804 · Mechanical 6,324.00
5805 · Tools 951.72
5806 · Maintenance Contractor 41,645.29

Total 5800 · Repair & Maintenance 263,912.72

5900 · Utilities
5901 · Heating/Fuel 16,347.19
5902 · Water & Sewer 36,655.26
5903 · Electricity 35,942.84
5904 · Computer Internet & Cable 31,285.98
5905 · Telephone 7,233.40
5906 · Waste Removal 43,260.69

Total 5900 · Utilities 170,725.36

Recoverable Expenses
Damages billed to clients -2,610.00

Total Recoverable Expenses -2,610.00

Reconciliation Discrepancies -737.29

Total Expense 3,382,715.00

Net Ordinary Income 421,649.11

Net Income 421,649.11

9:16 AM Rotary House 
2021-04-14 Profit & Loss 
Accrual Basis April 2020 through March 2021 
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31 Mar 21

ASSETS
Current Assets

Chequing/Savings
Bank

1060 · Royal Bank #1066232 239,716.95
1062 · Royal Bank GIC 216,917.47
1064 · ATB Financial GIC 4,060.00
1065 · ATB Financial #1285624 6,687.01
Bank - Other -1.62

Total Bank 467,379.81

Total Chequing/Savings 467,379.81

Accounts Receivable
1100 · Accounts Receivable 235,336.78

Total Accounts Receivable 235,336.78

Other Current Assets
1101 · Allowance for Bad Debts -3,969.00
1200 · Petty Cash 3,000.00
1201 · Undeposited Funds -64.20
1202 · Prepaid Expenses 9,938.05

Total Other Current Assets 8,904.85

Total Current Assets 711,621.44

Fixed Assets
1400 · Assets

1401 · Computer Equipment 26,161.62
1402 · Land 1,047,000.00
1403 · Building 10,902,934.68
1404 · Capital Renovation, Mat Bathroo 23,265.26
1405 · Equipment 367,428.83
1406 · Amortization

1407 · Amortization - Equipment -243,044.32
1408 · Amortization - Computer Equipme -21,785.92
1409 · Amortization - Building -2,169,290.85

Total 1406 · Amortization -2,434,121.09

Total 1400 · Assets 9,932,669.30

Total Fixed Assets 9,932,669.30

TOTAL ASSETS 10,644,290.74

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

2000 · Accounts Payable -1,410.14

Total Accounts Payable -1,410.14

Other Current Liabilities
2010 · Accrued Payables 11,500.00
2020 · GST/HST Payable -101,428.52
2025 · Prepaid Rent 18,239.75

Total Other Current Liabilities -71,688.77

Total Current Liabilities -73,098.91

Total Liabilities -73,098.91

Equity
3000 · Opening Balance Equity 10,296,804.00
3003 · Unrestricted Net Assets -3,619.89

11:25 AM Rotary House 
2021-04-14 Balance Sheet 
Accrual Basis As of 31 March 2021 
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31 Mar 21

Net Income 424,205.54

Total Equity 10,717,389.65

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 10,644,290.74

11:25 AM Rotary House 
2021-04-14 Balance Sheet 
Accrual Basis As of 31 March 2021 
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Wapiti Community Dorm Society
Financial Statements

March 31, 2020
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Wapiti Community Dorm Society: 

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Wapiti Community Dorm Society (the "Charity"), which comprise the statement of financial
position as at March 31, 2020, and the statements of revenues and expenses, changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, the accompanying
financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Charity as at March 31, 2020, and the results of
its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit
organizations.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

As with many non-profit organizations, the Charity derives revenue from cash donations, fundraising events, and room rent, the
completeness of which is not susceptible to satisfactory audit procedures. Accordingly, our audit of this revenue was limited to the
amounts recorded in the records of the Charity and we are not able to determine whether any adjustments might be necessary to
revenue, deficiency of revenue over expenses, current assets and net assets for the years ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Charity in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Canadian accounting
standards for not-for-profit organizations, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Charity’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Charity or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Charity’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Charity’s internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.
Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Charity’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Charity to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Grande Prairie, Alberta

July 30, 2020 Chartered Professional Accountants
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Wapiti Community Dorm Society
Statement of Revenue and Expenses

For the year ended March 31, 2020

2020 2019

Revenue
Grant revenue

Province of Alberta 1,669,524 1,694,695
City of Grande Prairie 289,578 265,351
Alberta Health Services 95,457 103,051

Amortization of deferred capital contributions 931 970
Fundraising 64,512 32,504
Other revenue 3,251 3,117
Rental - long term 135,617 129,381
Rental - short term 117,210 214,172

2,376,080 2,443,241

Expenses
Amortization 312,794 324,952
Bank charges and interest 924 893
Contracted services 54,094 800
Goods and services tax 12,477 11,565
Insurance 12,075 10,107
Licences and fees 6,906 5,591
Office supplies 75,239 57,232
Postage 1,549 2,069
Professional fees 24,752 14,873
Repairs and maintenance 235,333 209,461
Salaries and benefits 1,909,493 1,565,055
Supplies 139,095 67,841
Training and education 10,082 7,440
Travel and entertainment 23,766 13,907
Utilities 144,642 148,321

2,963,221 2,440,107

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses before other item (587,141) 3,134

Other item
Loss on disposal of capital assets (4,532) (4,011)

Deficiency of revenue over expenses (591,673) (877)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these  financial statements
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Wapiti Community Dorm Society
Statement of Changes in Net Assets

For the year ended March 31, 2020

Unrestricted
net assets

Investment in
capital assets

Internally
restricted for

capital
reserve

2020 2019

Net assets, beginning of year 335,521 8,523,928 300,000 9,159,449 9,160,326

Deficiency of revenue over expenses (591,673) - - (591,673) (877)

(256,152) 8,523,928 300,000 8,567,776 9,159,449

Purchase of capital assets  (25,075) 25,075 - - -

Loss on disposal of capital assets  4,532 (4,532) - - -

Amortization of capital assets  312,794 (312,794) - - -

2018/2019 grant repayment  (130,000) - - (130,000) -

Amortization of deferred capital
contributions  

(931) 931 - - -

Net assets(deficit), end of year (94,832) 8,232,608 300,000 8,437,776 9,159,449

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these  financial statements
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Wapiti Community Dorm Society
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended March 31, 2020

2020 2019

Cash provided by (used for) the following activities
Operating

Deficiency of revenue over expenses (591,673) (877)
Amortization of capital assets 312,794 324,952
Amortization of deferred capital contributions (931) (970)
Loss on disposal of capital assets 4,532 4,011
2018/2019 grant repayment (130,000) -

(405,278) 327,116
Changes in working capital accounts

Accounts receivable 25,844 (44,715)
Prepaid expenses and deposits (165) (1,413)
Accounts payable and accruals 8,302 23,809
Prepaid rent (4,974) (5,358)

(376,271) 299,439

Financing
Cash contributions received for capital assets - 6,250

Investing
Purchase of capital assets (25,075) (10,078)
Guaranteed Investment Certificate 40,000 40,000

14,925 29,922

Increase (decrease) in cash resources (361,346) 335,611

Cash resources, beginning of year 525,891 190,280

Cash resources, end of year 164,545 525,891

Cash resources are composed of:
Cash 254,545 525,891
Bank indebtedness (90,000) -

164,545 525,891

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these  financial statements
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Wapiti Community Dorm Society
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2020

1. Incorporation and nature of the organization

Wapiti Community Dorm Society (the “Charity”) was incorporated under the Canada Society Act as a not-for-profit
organization and is a registered charity under the Income Tax Act. In order to maintain its status as a registered charity
under the Act, the Charity must meet certain requirements within the Act. In the opinion of management these requirements
have been met.

The Charity provides shelter and supportive services to individuals struggling with homelessness. The Charity offers two-
tiered shelter service including overnight emergency beds and a mat program that focuses on harm reduction 24/7, 365
days of the year. Interim suites are available for individuals that require supportive services and is based on Alberta's
Affordable Housing rates. Rotary House offers a vulnerable person's daytime program which operates seven days a week
and the hybrid housing's  outreach team offers support in the community. 

2. Significant accounting policies

Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit
organizations as issued by the Accounting Standards Board and include the following significant accounting policies: 

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include balances with banks and short-term investments that are cashable or have maturities of
three months or less. Cash subject to restrictions that prevent its use for current purposes is included in restricted cash.

Capital assets

Purchased capital assets are recorded at cost. Contributed capital assets are recorded at fair value at the date of
contribution if fair value can be reasonably determined.

Amortization is provided using the declining balance method at rates intended to amortize the cost of assets over their
estimated useful lives. 

Rate
Buildings 4 %
Computer equipment 55 %
Equipment 20 %

Invested in capital assets

Invested in capital assets represents the equity the Organization has invested in capital assets. The balance is determined
as the cost of capital assets, less accumulated amortization and less any related debt or deferred capital contributions. 

Internally restricted capital fund

The internally restricted capital fund is funds which have been set aside by the Board for future building maintenance.

Long-lived assets

Long-lived assets consist of capital assets. Long-lived assets held for use are measured and amortized as described in the
applicable accounting policies.

The Organization performs impairment testing on long-lived assets held for use whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicates that the carrying value of an asset, or group of assets, may not be recoverable. Impairment losses
are recognized when undiscounted future cash flows from its use and disposal are less than the asset's carrying amount.
Impairment is measured as the amount by which the asset's carrying value exceeds its fair value. 

Revenue recognition

The Charity follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions. Restricted contributions are recognized as revenue
in the year in which the related expenses are incurred. Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue when received
or receivable if the amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured. Contributions
of or for capital assets are reported as deferred contributions and amortized over the same period as the related asset. All
other contributions are reported in revenue in the current year.  
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Wapiti Community Dorm Society
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2020

2. Significant accounting policies  (Continued from previous page)

Rental revenue is recognized as revenue when received or receivable if the amount to be received can be reasonably
estimated and collection is reasonably assured. 

Contributed materials and services

Contributions of materials and services are recognized both as contributions and expenses in the statement of operations
when a fair value can be reasonably estimated and when the materials and services are used in the normal course of the
Charity's operations and would otherwise have been purchased. 

Measurement uncertainty and use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue
and expenses during the reporting period. 

Accounts receivable are stated after evaluation as to their collectability and an appropriate allowance for doubtful accounts
is provided where considered necessary. Amortization is based on the estimated useful lives of capital assets.

These estimates and assumptions are reviewed periodically and, as adjustments become necessary they are reported in
excess of revenue and expenses in the periods in which they become known. 

Financial instruments

The Charity recognizes its financial instruments when the Charity becomes party to the contractual provisions of the
financial instrument. All financial instruments are initially recorded at their fair value, including financial assets and liabilities
originated and issued in a related party transaction with management. Financial assets and liabilities originated and issued
in all other related party transactions are initially measured at their carrying or exchange amount in accordance with Section
3840 Related Party Transactions.

At initial recognition, the Charity may irrevocably elect to subsequently measure any financial instrument at fair value.  The
Charity has not made such an election during the year.

The Charity subsequently measures investments in equity instruments quoted in an active market and all derivative
instruments, except those designated in a qualifying hedging relationship or that are linked to, and must be settled by
delivery of, unquoted equity instruments of another entity, at fair value. Fair value is determined by published price
quotations. Investments in equity instruments not quoted in an active market and derivatives that are linked to, and must be
settled by delivery of, unquoted equity instruments of another entity, are subsequently measured at cost less impairment.
With the exception of financial liabilities indexed to a measure of the Charity’s performance or value of its equity and those
instruments designated at fair value, all other financial assets and liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost. 

Transaction costs and financing fees directly attributable to the origination, acquisition, issuance or assumption of financial
instruments subsequently measured at fair value are immediately recognized in the deficiency of revenue over expenses for
the current period. Conversely, transaction costs and financing fees are added to the carrying amount for those financial
instruments subsequently measured at cost or amortized cost.

Financial asset impairment

The Charity assesses impairment of all of its financial assets measured at cost or amortized cost. The Charity groups
assets for impairment testing when available information is not sufficient to permit identification of each individually impaired
financial asset in the group; there are numerous assets affected by the same factors or no asset is individually significant.
Management considers whether the issuer is having significant financial difficulty; whether there has been a breach in
contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments in determining whether objective evidence of
impairment exists. When there is an indication of impairment, the Charity determines whether it has resulted in a significant
adverse change in the expected timing or amount of future cash flows during the year. If so, the Charity reduces the
carrying amount of any impaired financial assets to the highest of: the present value of cash flows expected to be generated
by holding the assets; the amount that could be realized by selling the assets; and the amount expected to be realized by
exercising any rights to collateral held against those assets. Any impairment, which is not considered temporary, is included
in current year deficiency of revenue over expenses.
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Wapiti Community Dorm Society
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2020

2. Significant accounting policies  (Continued from previous page)

The Charity reverses impairment losses on financial assets when there is a decrease in impairment and the decrease can
be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized. The amount of the reversal is
recognized in the deficiency of revenue over expenses in the year the reversal occurs.

3. Cash

Included within the cash balance are four (2019 - three) cashable guaranteed investment certificate's totaling $258,440
(2019 - $257,920) that bear interest between 0.5% and 1.3% (2019 - between 1.2% and 1.3%), maturing between 2021 and
2022. The Board has internally restricted these funds for future building maintenance.

4. Accounts receivable  

2020 2019

Accounts receivable 69,167 91,457
Goods and Services Tax receivable 29,000 32,553

98,167 124,010

5. Capital assets 

2020 2019
Accumulated Net book Net book

Cost amortization value value

Land 1,047,000 - 1,047,000 1,047,000
Buildings 10,926,201 3,784,298 7,141,903 7,439,534
Computer equipment 20,844 15,948 4,896 1,033
Equipment 348,351 287,192 61,159 59,641

12,342,396 4,087,438 8,254,958 8,547,208

6. Bank indebtedness  

The Charity has a line of credit with a limit of $750,000 (2019 - $750,000) which bears interest at prime plus 1.80% (2019 -
prime plus 1.80%) per annum, due on demand and secured by cash. As at March 31, 2020 the outstanding balance is
$90,000 (2019 - $nil). 

7. Deferred contributions related to capital assets  

Deferred capital contributions consist of the unamortized amount of contributions received for the purchase of capital
assets. Recognition of these amounts as revenue is deferred to periods when the related capital assets are amortized.
Changes in deferred capital contributions are as follows:

2020 2019

Balance, beginning of year 23,280 18,000
Amount received during the year - 6,250
Less: Amounts recognized as revenue during the year (931) (970)

Balance, end of year 22,349 23,280
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Wapiti Community Dorm Society
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2020

8. Contingencies 

The Charity receives funding from various government departments. Requirements specify that amounts not expended in
the specified time period could be requested to be repaid to the government. The amount that may have to be repaid is
unknown at the date the financial statements are issued. No provision has been made for possible repayment. Should
repayment be required the amount would be recorded as a reduction of unrestricted net assets. 

9. Commitments 

The Charity has a 25 year lease with respect to the land that the building is situated on, commencing October 31, 2008 for
$1 per year. 

10. Economic dependence 

The Charity's primary source of revenue is provincial government grants. The grant funding can be cancelled if the Charity
does not observe certain established guidelines. The Charity's ability to continue viable operations is dependent upon
maintaining its compliance with the criteria within the provincial government guidelines. As at the date of these financial
statements the Charity believes that it is in compliance with the guidelines.

11. Financial instruments 

The Charity, as part of its operations, carries a number of financial instruments. It is management's opinion that the Charity
is not exposed to significant interest, currency, credit, liquidity or other price risks arising from these financial instruments
except as otherwise disclosed.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument might be adversely affected by a change in the interest
rates. Changes in market interest rates may have an effect on the cash flows associated with some financial assets and
liabilities, known as cash flow risk, and on the fair value of other financial assets or liabilities, known as price risk. 

The Organization is exposed to interest rate risk with respect to a line of credit with a limit of $750,000 (2019 - $750,000) of
which $90,000 (2019 - $nil) was drawn at year-end, bearing interest at prime plus 1.80% (2019 - prime plus 1.80%) per
annum.

12. Subsequent event 

Subsequent to year-end, there was a global outbreak of COVID-19 (coronavirus), which has had a significant impact on
businesses through the restrictions put in place by the Canadian, provincial and municipal governments regarding travel,
business operations and isolation/quarantine orders. At this time, it is unknown the extent of the impact the COVID-19
outbreak may have on the Charity as this will depend on future developments that are highly uncertain and that cannot be
predicted with confidence. These uncertainties arise from the inability to predict the ultimate geographic spread of the
disease, and the duration of the outbreak, including the duration of travel restrictions, business closures or disruptions, and
quarantine/isolation measures that are currently, or may be put, in place by Canada and other countries to fight the virus.
While the extent of the impact is unknown, we anticipate this outbreak may cause reduced increased demand, staff
shortages, and increased government regulations, all of which may negatively impact the Charity’s business and financial
condition.
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Saint Lawrence Centre Winter Warming Program (Oct to Mar)
Revenue 6 Month Total
City of Grande Prairie $100,000.00
GOA OSSI $150,000.00
MD Greenview, or other $100,000.00
General Fundraising $12,000.00
Total Revenue $362,000.00
Personnel Expenses FTE hr/wk $/hr Benefits Month 6 Month Total
Team  Lead 1 40 $36.00 $100.00 $6,951.20 $41,707.20
Support Worker 7 40 $24.00 $700.00 $30,505.60 $183,033.60
Security Guard 4 42.2 $25.00 $400.00 $19,305.60 $115,833.60
Total Personnel $56,762.40 $340,574.40
Other Expenses
Phone/Internet $300.00 $1,800.00
Program Materials $1,000.00 $6,000.00
Client Needs $600.00 $3,600.00
Cleaning/Janitorial Products $2,000.00 $12,000.00
Total Other $3,900.00 $23,400.00
Total Expenses $363,974.40
Total Revenue $362,000.00
Variance -$1,974.40
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4/20/2021 Print Row- Smartsheet.com

2021 Grant Applications (April 15/21
Deadline)
Row 14

Name of
Organization

Address of
Organization

Form Date Field

Confact Name

Phone Number

Purpose of
Organization

Passport to the Peaks

Box 141, Grande Cache, AB TOE OYO

48

Renee Fehrand Stephane Guimond

17808271850/17805015179

The purpose ofthis organization is to address the surge in usage
ofthe trail system. Due to Covid-19, families, and hikers have
looked for other recreational opportunities causing Grande Cache
to be highlighted. In light ofthis, a community-driven committee
has formed in hopes of supporting and encourage safe and
healthy usage of the area around Grande Cache. We would like
to educate and promote Indigenous culture and environmental
awareness while delivering a safe program that encourages
tourism in our area. We acknowledge that mental health and
wellness play a significant part and with the collaboration of the
MD and other stakeholders we hope to have the opportunity to
enhance our natural resources. This program has been around
for about 20 years however it has not been maintained for the last
five years so many upgrades and improvements are needed. The
funds from this grant would allow those upgrades and
improvements to keep trail users safe.

Purpose
Continued

Position of
Contact Person

What act are you

President and Vice-President

non profitregistered under?

Registration No. pending

Grant Type Operating Grant

Total Amount
Requested 15,000.00

Proposed Project Our committee has reviewed the urgency of the Passport
Program and the items that have come to attention so far are as
follows:

*tree markers

https://app.smartsheel.com/b/home?formName=fn_row&formAction^fa_printRow&parm1^473822096&parm2^27646865968&ss_v=126.0.1 1/3146



4/20/2021 Print Row - Smartsheet.com
*distance markers
'stamps and hardware as some are vandalized and wear/tear
'updating the current passport books, edits, and accuracy,
reprinting
'name bars for plaques'computer to store passport information, club records, training for
safety/operating to ensure the program continues

We need to remark trails so that our users do not get lost. Many
of the trails are overgrown. Distance markers to alert hikers of
their locations so they know they are accurate. Stamps and
hardware to ensure hikers can achieve their goals and receive
their stamps to complete the program. Name bars to update
plaques and celebrate the personal success of hikers. Computer
to set up the program with the information to ensure continued
success. This program is not about ownership, it is about
community pride and we want to inspire others to join us in
whatever capacity they are able to participate.

""Please note this committee has just been formed this week
therefore we have no financial records to share.

Have you
previously applied
for a grant from
MD

Previous Grant
App from MD No

Final Completion
Report Provided to
MD

Grantfunds
applied forfrom
othersources?

No

Grant Funds
Received from
othersources?

No

Have you
performed any
otherfundraising
projects?

Agreement

Grant Purpose

Year Grant
Received

Amount ofGrant

List the donaee,
purpose and
amount

https://app.smartsheet.com/b/home?formName=fn_row&formAction=fa_printRow&parm1=473822096&parm2=27646865968&ss_v=126.0.1 2/3147
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What type of
fundraising & how
much did you
raise?

Signature

Date

Financial
Statement

Administration
Recommendations

Email

Renee Fehr and Stephane Guimond

04/15/21

renefehr4615@gmail.com/ mtnluvr72@hotmail.com

https://app.smartsheet.com/b/home?formName=fn_row&formAction=fa_printRow&parm1=473822096&parm2=27646865968&ss_v=126.0.1 3/3148



REQUEST FOR DECISION 

21.01.22 

SUBJECT: Bylaw 20-865 Sturgeon Lake Area Structure Plan – Public Hearing Concerns 
SUBMISSION TO: COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE: May 18, 2021 CAO:  MANAGER: 
DEPARTMENT: PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT GM: RA PRESENTER: PL 
STRATEGIC PLAN: Development DCAO SW 

RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 
Provincial – Municipal Government Act, RSA 2000 

Council Bylaw/Policy – Sturgeon Lake Area Structure Plan Bylaw No. 01-344 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
MOTION: That Committee of the Whole accept the presentation from Planning and Development, 
reviewing concerns brought forward at the Public Hearing of Bylaw 20-865 Sturgeon Lake Area Structure 
Plan, for information. 

BACKGROUND/PROPOSAL: 
Administration is seeking Committee of the Whole’s recommendation on concerns raised by the public 
at the March 23, 2021, Public Hearing for the draft Sturgeon Lake Area Structure Plan, prior to bringing the 
bylaw to Council for second reading.  

Concerns raised and rationale for policies in the draft plan will be presented for Council Member’s 
review and consideration. 

BENEFITS OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
1. That Committee of the Whole is updated on the background and reason for the policies included in

the draft Sturgeon Lake Area Structure Plan.

DISADVANTAGES OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
1. There are no perceived disadvantages to the recommended motion.

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED: 
N/A 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATION: 
There are no financial implications to the recommended motion. 

STAFFING IMPLICATION: 
There are no staffing implications to the recommended motion. 
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PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT LEVEL: 
Greenview has adopted the IAP2 Framework for public consultation.  
 
INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 
Consult  
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 
Consult - To obtain public feedback on analysis, alternatives and/or decisions. 
  
PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 
Consult - We will keep you informed, listen to and acknowledge concerns and aspirations, and provide 
feedback on how public input influenced the decision  

 
FOLLOW UP ACTIONS: 
Planning and Development will make any necessary updates to the Sturgeon Lake Area Structure Plan and 
present the plan to Council for second and third reading at an upcoming Council meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

• Draft Sturgeon Lake Area Structure Plan (same as presented at PH) 
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Sturgeon Lake 

  AREA STRUCTURE PLAN 
Bylaw No. 20-865 

February 2021 | Draft 
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INTRODUCTION 

1.1 Preamble 

Sturgeon Lake, located in the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 (Greenview) is 

one of only a few readily accessible recreational lakes in northwest Alberta. As a 

result, private lands concentrated at the west end of the lake have been the subject of 

residential, resort and other recreational development. Agriculture and oil and gas 

exploration activity are also major uses in the area and the lake is home to a 

significant recreational fishery.  

In addition, a substantial portion of the land around the lake is under the jurisdiction of 

the Province of Alberta (consisting of Crown land, Williamson Provincial and Young’s 

Point Provincial Park), and the Sturgeon Lake Cree Nation which is under federal 

jurisdiction. Two historical settlements, Calais and Sturgeon Lake Settlement are 

located on the south side of the lake surrounded by Sturgeon Lake Cree Nation lands. 

This diversity of land use, coupled with the importance of the lake as a regional 

recreational and environmental resource, results in a need to ensure that the lake is 

protected from the potentially detrimental impacts of development. In addition, it is 

necessary to ensure that development that occurs around the lake is carried out in a 

sensitive manner. There are long-standing concerns present respecting water quality, 

resulting in a strong desire to prevent further degradation. 

The purpose of an Area Structure Plan (ASP) is to provide a framework for future 

subdivision and development of a defined area within a municipality. The Sturgeon Lake 

ASP is a statutory plan that has been prepared in accordance with Section 633 of the 

Municipal Government Act (Act). The original ASP was adopted in August 1985 (Ministerial 

Order 485/85) and updates were adopted in June 1991 (Ministerial Order 492/91) and July 

2002 (Bylaw 01-344). 

Since the ASP was last reviewed in 2002, the area has experienced increased residential 

and recreational development pressures that warrant further review. In addition, it is 

prudent to review the ASP in general terms to ensure that its policies continue to be 

effective and relevant. In order to meet these needs, Greenview Council authorized a 

review of the Sturgeon Lake ASP in June of 2018. 

A Citizens’ Panel consisting of area landowners and residents was established to review 

background information, discuss issues, and to provide feedback on draft versions of this 

ASP. 
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1.2 Plan Area 

Sturgeon Lake is located approximately 13 km (8 miles) 

west of the Town of Valleyview in Greenview as indicated in 

Map 1. 

Sturgeon Lake is approximately 49 km2 (19 mi2) in size 

and consists of a main basin and a shallow westerly 

extension known as the West Bay. The drainage basin 

for the lake is substantially larger, encompassing an 

area of approximately 570 km2 (220 mi2), the majority of 

which is located south of the lake. The lake depth 

averages approximately 5 m (16 ft) and is 9.5 m (31 ft) 

at its deepest point. The maximum depth of the West 

Bay is 3 m (10 ft). 

The ASP area corresponds to the Sturgeon Lake 

watershed as shown in Map 2. The Land Use Concept 

(Map 3) identifies Development Areas consisting of all 

private lands that have the potential to accommodate 

residential and recreational development area in which 

the detailed development policies of this ASP apply. 

Lands that are not developable, consisting of Crown land, 

lands that are designated for conservation purposes, or 

municipal lands that are designated as Municipal Reserve, 

Environmental Reserve, or community purposes are also 

identified. 

1.3 Legislative Framework 

1.3.1 Provincial Land Use Policies 

The Act requires that all statutory plans, including this ASP 

be consistent with the Provincial Land Use Policies. 

1.3.2 Greenview Municipal Development Plan 

The Act requires that all statutory plans be consistent with 

one another. As a result, this ASP has been prepared in 

accordance with the broader policy initiatives contained in 

Greenview’s Municipal Development Plan (MDP). 

1.4 Interpretation 

1.4.1 The policies of this ASP are only enforceable on 

private lands in the Sturgeon Lake area. With respect to 

Crown lands, the policies are advisory only, but clearly 

represent the position of Greenview in the future 

development or disposition of said lands. This ASP does 

not apply to the Sturgeon Lake Cree Nation lands. 

1.4.2 Land use area boundaries are to be considered 

approximate except where such boundaries coincide with 

roads or property lines. Minor deviations may be permitted 

without an amendment at the discretion of Greenview if 

such deviations are not contrary to the purpose and intent 

of this ASP. 

1.4.3 Compliance with policies in this ASP shall be 

interpreted and applied as follows: 

a. “Shall” and “will” mean mandatory compliance; 

b. “Should” means compliance in principle but is subject 

to the discretion of the Approving Authority where 

compliance may be undesirable or impractical due to 

the specific circumstances associated with a particular 

issue; 

c. “May” means discretionary compliance or choice in the 

application of policy. 

1.4.4 For the purpose of interpreting this ASP, the 

definitions in Appendix A shall apply. All other words or 

expressions shall have the meanings assigned to them in 

the Act, the MDP and Land Use Bylaw (LUB) or other 

overarching legislation. 

1.4.5 In this plan the following acronyms are used: 

ASP Area Structure Plan 

CR  Conservation Reserve 

ER  Environmental Reserve 

LUB Land Use Bylaw 

MDP Municipal Development Plan 

MR  Municipal Reserve 

MSS Municipal Servicing Standards 

1.4.6 In the event a matter arises that is not addressed 

by this ASP, then the policies of the MDP shall apply. 

156



CARSON-PEGASUS

PROV. PARK

C N R

Rive
r

R
iv

er

Smok
y

Rive
r

Chickadee

Valley

Cr.

Stony

Pass

Iosegun

Cr
.

River

Cr.

Creek

Cr.

Sim
on

ett
e

Head

River

Creek

Beaver

Ca
rso

nTo
ny

Smoky

Cr
.

Bessie

River

Marsh

Two

Creek

Cr
ee

k

Cr
ee

k

Creek

Little

Creek

Prairie

Deep ma
a

S

t

River

River

a

u

k

aw

Sides

L.

Smoke

Lake
McLeod

L.

Clark

Lake

Baseline
L.

Whitecourt
I.R. 232

Utikoomak LakeDuncans

Drift Pile River

I.R.

I.R. 150D

I.R. 154A

I.R. 154B

I.R. 151A

Creek

I.R. 154

Pakashan

I.R. 150C

Sucker

Sturgeon
Lake

Sturgeon Lake

I.R. 150

Halcro

150A

William McKenzie

Sturgeon Lake

I.R. 155B

I.R. 151K

SETTLEMENT

SETTLEMENT

METIS

METIS SETTLEMENT

GIFT LAKE

METIS

PEAVINE

EAST PRAIRIE

TWELVEP.P.
P.P.

DAVISFOOT
HIST.

PROV. PARK

P.P.

O'BRIEN P.P.

SITE

YOUNG'S POINT

WINAGAMI  LAKE

DUNVEGAN

QUEEN
ELIZABETH

WILLIAMSON P.P.

PROV.

SASKATOON
P.P.

PROV. PARK

DeBolt

Marie-

Watino

Brownvale

Little Smoky

Woking

Atikameg

Ridgevalley

Clai
rm

on
t

Cote

Guy

Joussard
EnildaLa Glace

Lake
Gift

St. Isidore

Tangent

W
hitelaw

Bluesky

Bezanson

Reno

Faust

Jean

Reine

SMT.
RIVER

SM
T.

LESSER SLAVE
LAKE SMT.

HEA
RT 

RIV
ER

 A
ND

SPIRIT

BIG PRAIRIE
SMT.

ATIKAMISIS

SA
LT

 P
RAI

RIE

LAKE SMT.

WANHAM DONNELLY

BERWYN

CREEK

NAMPA

HINES

RYCROFT
GIROUXVILLE

Eaglesham

C N R

C N R

C N R

C N R

( A R R )

C N R

C N R

C N R

River

S
m

ok
y

Rive
r

River

Rive
rWapiti

Sm
ok

y

Sm
ok

y

a ec
Pe

Smoky

R
iver

R.

Sm
oky

Little

L

Cr
.

R.

n

l

e

n

Gold
en 

 Cree
k

n

Cr.

e

h

n

e

a

lBear

R.

n

m

Sidney

Prairie

P

a

S

River
Lal

by

Cr.
He

art

e

ea

o

Cr
.

)

h

in

n

Hines

Bad
h

R.

r

Heart

Mi
nk

East

R.

k

Kleskun

a

Cr.

Cr.

c

Cr.

Vix
en

s

s

Cr.

s

Spirit

oS

Iosegun

u

River

R.

e

Cr
.

(

y

Cr.

e

t

t

i

s

Boulder

hs

a

d

d

a

F

s

r

u

Heart

i

a

a

b

a

Cr.

Cr.

a

Lignite

t

Creek

Cr
.

oC

e

River

Creek

l

C

Cr.

Arcadia

Cr.

i

e

Isla
nd

W

n

Bi
g

Cr.

Le
ith

Hamelin

u

Cr.

Saddle

p

e

C

Creek

y

Cr.

o

i

l

Rive
r

e

t

A

b

r

a

r

Cr.

e

r

Harp
er

Go
os

e

Ri
ve

r

M

w

n

Cr.

La
tor

ne
ll

Cr
ee

k

o

a

a
r

Bald

u

d

n

c

a

Cr
.

Cr.

r

a

Creek

North

R
l

l

r

Cr
.

South

M

Creek Creek

n

t

Cr.

h

l

a

s

iv

l

o

Blueberry

Cr.

o

t

Cr.  

Ni
ob

e

West

p

r

c

R.

R.

e

o

at

n

w

t

Lit
tle

unGold

l

h

t

M

o

Fox

B

W

Dr
iftp

ile

Stony

e

South

B

n

l

a

n

e
Kakut

Cr.

s
L

Cr.

J

i

Cr
.

Cr.

Peavine

u

e

R.

m

u
.

m

Cr.

Cr
ee

k

G

s

k

o

Cr.

t

River

y

Cr.

Ksituan

u

a

L

Cr.

Cr
.

Snipe  Cr.

Cr
.

Goose

Cr.

a

n

d

o

a

Hunting

Howard

R.

R.

East

o

Shaw

R.

r

t e

a

Iro
qu

ois

B

YG

) k

Cr.

E

o

s

u

a

e
lw

n

r

Brucet

w

w

n

Cr.

i

B

n

a

g

Cr.

r

(

Prairie

K

e

S

Campbell  Cr.

R.

M

Fox

t

Ri
ve

r

C

c

e

i

h
o

r

M

k

a

n

e

R.

i

i

n

i

Creek

Salt
La

tor
ne

ll

Cr
.

o

r

u

m

s

Jack

Rive
r

i

Cr
.

R.

e

r

R.

S

r

j

Hea
rt

R

w

o

Creek

River

n

s

Gu
nn

s

n

e

Ut
iku

ma

c

Cr.

e

S

Inv
ern

ess

s

P

e

k

H

M

Ante

i

Creek

Wilson

w

i

St
ee

p

k

k

t

R.

g

Cr.

M

a

Prair

b

W

u

e

g o

a

Cr.

Dr
iftp

ile

o

r

A

Forth

n

k

Stony

River

e

e

t

(Burnt)

Little

Saddle

R.

R.

Smoky

Simonette

e

Riv
er

i

Heart

R.

R.

Rive
r

p l

R.

Heart

D

Simonette

i
f

Cutbank River

River

r

South

Ka
kw

a

L.

Sturgeon

Foster

L.

Buffalo Bay

L.

L.

Winagami

Iosegun

Snipe

L.
Kimiwan

Lake

Lake

Wolfe

Cutbank

L.

Lake L.

L.

Bear L.

Kakut

Magloire

Hermit

George

Little L.

Puskwaskau

Water
Hen
Lake

Lake

Lake

Cardinal
L.

L.

Crooked

L.

Long
Lake

Swan
Lake

Frank

L.

Lake

L.
Saskatoon

Lake

L.

Jones

L.

Giroux
L.

Puskwaskau

Lake

Little

L.

Lac

Lake

Grassy
Lake

Pentland

Raspberry

Lake

L.

Clairmont

L.

Stump

Musreau

Freeman

Wilson

Little Horse

Goose Lake

Seal
Lake

Lake

L.

Hawkins Mink  L.

Lake

Giroux

Utikumasis
L.

Last

Bay

Sutton L.

Maurice

Gift

Meekwap

L.

Webster

Utikuma

Lesser

Utikoomak Lake
I.R. 155

Grouard Mission
Grouard

Freeman I.R. 150B Grouard I.R. 229

Grouard I.R. 230HILLIARD'S BAY
PROV. PARK

Tr
av

er
se

 C
r.

Cr eek

R.

2

2

2

2A

49

2A

49

2

64

2

2

40

40

750

750749

947

669

747

747

665

679

749

683

745

744

676

744

684

665

685

740

676

739

737

685

736

733

734

732

685

729

682

734

731

668

672

677

727

674

677

670

735

679

666

724

725

724

680

43

43

43

PEACE
RIVER

SPIRIT
RIVER

SEXSMITH

WEMBLEY

VALLEYVIEW

FALHER

FAIRVIEW

McLENNAN

HIGH
PRAIRIE

WHITECOURT

FOX CREEK

GRANDE
PRAIRIE

GRIMSHAW

Sturgeon
Lake ASP

12
5 

Km

50 Km

10
0 K

m

25 Km

75
 K

m

MD of Greenview

February 2021

LOCATION

Sturgeon Lake
Area Structure Plan

0 10 20 30 40

Scale 1:1,250,000

(Kilometres)

g:
\p

ro
je

ct
s\

15
00

0\
15

20
0\

15
21

6_
st

ur
ge

on
_l

ak
e_

as
p_

re
vi

ew
\0

2_
ca

dd
\2

0_
dr

af
tin

g\
20

2_
dw

g\
m

ap
_1

_s
tu

rg
eo

n_
la

ke
_a

sp
_l

oc
at

io
n_

pl
an

_2
10

20
9.

dw
g

Map 1
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2.0

 
 
 
 

GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 
The goals and objectives of this ASP are as 

follows: 

2.1 Plan Goals 

a. To accommodate a variety of residential 

and recreational land uses in an 

environmentally responsible fashion. 

b. To mitigate the potential impacts of 

development on Sturgeon Lake. 

c. To preserve and protect the natural 

environment within the ASP area. 

2.2 Plan Objectives 

a. Development Opportunities 

• To encourage and promote efficient 

and well-designed recreational and 

residential development. 

• To consider and plan for future 

demand for and responsible levels 

of residential and recreational 

development. 

• To minimize conflicts between land 
uses. 

• To provide for potential 

convenience store 

development opportunities. 

b. Environment and Open Space 

• To promote environmental 

responsibility in the Sturgeon Lake 

area. 

• To provide for public access to the 

lake for recreational activities by 

ensuring the shore is retained in 

the public domain. 

• To require the provision of 

Municipal Reserve, Environmental 

Reserve and Conservation 

Reserve for the protection of 

natural features and wildlife, the 

prevention of pollution and the 

creation of open space for public 

use. 

c. Agriculture 

• To minimize the impacts of 

development on agricultural 

operations. 

• To promote agricultural best 

practices within the Sturgeon 

Lake watershed. 

d. Infrastructure 

• To ensure that infrastructure 

requirements of proposed 

developments do not exceed 

system capabilities and capacities. 

• To ensure that developers provide 

a high standard of servicing in an 

environmentally sensitive fashion. 

e. Transportation 

• To provide for an effective and 

efficient public road network. 

f. Implementation 

• To include mechanisms for the 

administration of the ASP. 

• To promote ongoing communication 

between Greenview, the Sturgeon 

Lake Cree Nation, the public and 

provincial government agencies in 

any future endeavours. 
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RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT 

3.1 Introduction 

Like most recreational lakes, Sturgeon Lake has attracted a wide range of land uses 

including permanent and seasonal residences, campgrounds, and provincial parks. One 

of the primary land use planning concerns is the accommodation of an increasing demand 

for country residential development without affecting the lake environment. 

To address this concern, the ASP establishes a Development Area to concentrate 

residential development in cluster form to promote an efficient land use pattern, conserve 

land in its natural state, and optimize servicing efficiencies. 

In previous versions of this ASP, the approach to density was established on a basis of 

13 units per quarter section, with 1 unit corresponding to 1 residential lot or 4 campsites/ 

RV stalls. Discussions with the Citizens’ Panel raised questions with this approach as the 

assigned density appeared arbitrary, and likely did not reflect the true site conditions of 

the subject lands as the density allowances were not verified through detailed study. It 

was the consensus of the Citizens’ Panel that less emphasis be placed on assigning site-

specific densities and more focus placed on the quality of development through the 

application of more rigorous development standards and the study of site conditions. 
 

3.2 Policies 

3.2.1 The Development Area shown on 

Map 3 is intended primarily for residential 

and recreational purposes. These areas 

shall, subject to rezoning and subdivision 

approval, be reserved for: 

a. Country residential development; 

b. Accommodation, Leisure as 

defined in the LUB; 

c. Municipal parks; 

d. Seasonal recreational uses, including 

resorts, RV parks and campgrounds; 

e. Public uses; and 

f. Commercial uses. 

3.2.2 Residential lots in the Development 

Area shall be: 

a. A minimum of 0.2 ha (0.5 ac) provided 

such lots are serviced with municipal or 

communal water and sewer system;  

b. A maximum of 4.0 ha (10 ac); and 

c. Shall meet the development 
regulations of the CR-3 District of the 
LUB. 

 

3.2.3 Notwithstanding 3.2.2(a), lots 

smaller than 0.2 ha (0.5 ac) may be 

considered. Greenview may create a 

new district in the LUB to 

accommodate such small lot 

development. 

3.2.4 The resubdivision of existing 

lots may be supported provided that 

the new lots meet the requirements of 

the CR-3 District of the LUB and can 

be serviced in accordance with the 

requirements of Section 8.2. 

3.2.5 A vacant first parcel out of an 

unsubdivided quarter section may be 

permitted in the Development Area 

subject to the parcel being rezoned to 

the CR-3 District of the LUB.  

3.2.6 In order to reduce the 

occurrence of piecemeal subdivision 

and to promote cluster development, 

all subdivision exceeding first parcel 

out shall be subject to a minor ASP 

prepared in accordance with 

Greenview Policy 6001 (Minor Area 

Structure Plan). A minimum density 

for an initial phase of four lots per 

quarter section is encouraged. 

 

 
 
3.0 
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3.2.7 In order to reduce the potential for erosion and 

excess runoff, landowners are encouraged to retain as 

much natural vegetation on a site as possible, and where 

possible limit development to those areas that have been 

previously cleared.  

3.2.8 New residential subdivisions shall be designed in 

accordance with the following best practices in order to 

maximize public shoreline access, minimize environmental 

impacts, and ensure long term sustainability: 

a. Residential development shall be developed in cluster 

form; 

b. Residential development shall be served with water 

and sanitary sewer servicing in accordance with 

Section 8.2. The development must meet the 

provisions of Greenview’s Development Guidelines 

and Municipal Servicing Standards for the on-site 

infrastructure and internal road network; 

c. Development is to be designed to integrate with adjacent 

developments to improve connectivity and accessibility to 

local parks and open spaces by requiring the developer to 

provide walking trails, park spaces and green spaces that 

will preserve environmental and natural features for public 

purposes in accordance with Policy 5.2.8; 

d. That vegetated buffer strips be retained between 

residential clusters and the lakeshore as per Policy 5.2.17; 

and 

e. That the provision of common docking and boat launch 

facilities be encouraged. 

3.2.9 Notwithstanding any other provision of this ASP, 

existing undersized lots and existing developments not 

meeting the requirements of this ASP shall be allowed 

to continue to exist, and the reconstruction of existing 

structures will be allowed subject to the development 

meeting Greenview’s current requirements. 

3.2.10 All developers are required to submit detailed lot 

plans, lot grading plans, and stormwater management 

plans with their development permit applications or 

subdivision applications as applicable. 
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3.3 Settlements 

The privately-owned land around Sturgeon Lake includes 

two historic settlement areas established in 1914, Sturgeon 

Lake Settlement and Calais. These settlement areas 

contain a variety of land uses on lots that range in size 

from 0.11 ha (0.28 ac) to 36.8 ha (91 ac). Uses in these two 

settlements include single detached houses and a 

commercial campground. In addition, the Government of 

Canada purchased two of the larger lots in the Sturgeon 

Lake Settlement for the Sturgeon Lake Cree Nation on 

which Band facilities and numerous dwellings have been 

developed. 

Due to the unique nature of the land uses and the parcel 

sizes present, Greenview has designated all settlement 

lands as Direct Control (DC) in the LUB. The policies in this 

section are designed to provide guidance in the 

administration of this DC zoning. 

 

3.3.1 Land in these areas shall generally be reserved for 

those developments allowed in other Development Areas. 

3.3.2 Developments on private lands in these areas shall 

be administered through the DC District of the LUB. 

Approvals shall be based on the standards for 

Development Areas as established in Sections 3.2, 5.2, 7.2 

and 8.2 of this ASP.  

3.3.3  At the discretion of Greenview, except for the 

preparation of technical studies, variances to the 

requirements of this ASP as noted in Policy 3.3.2 may be 

applied in Calais and the Sturgeon Lake Settlement due to 

the unique nature of these settlements. 

163



7 STURGEON LAKE AREA STRUCTURE PLAN | DRAFT 

 

 

 
 
 
 
4.0

 
 
 
 

RECREATIONAL DEVELOPMENT 

4.1 Introduction 

Seasonal recreation and resort development has always had a significant presence in the 

Sturgeon Lake area and demand for this form of development continues to increase. 

Greenview’s intention is to accommodate this increased demand for recreational and 

resort development, such as campgrounds and recreational vehicle parks, without 

affecting the lake environment by ensuring such development is undertaken to a high 

standard. 

The purpose of this Section of the ASP is to establish criteria for evaluating future 

recreational and resort development proposals within the Development Areas. 

4.2 Development Standards 

4.2.1 The maximum allowable size for a 
resort cabin shall be 71.3 m2

 
(768 ft2). 

4.2.2 A site plan for a proposed 

campground or recreational vehicle park 

shall be prepared that details internal 

circulation requirements, road widths, 

pedestrian circulation, site access and 

egress, emergency access, parking areas, 

storage areas, toilet and laundry areas, 

recreation areas and campsite areas. 

4.2.3 Campgrounds and 

Recreational Vehicle (RV) Parks 

a. Campsites and RV stalls shall generally 

comply with the following requirements 

as illustrated in Figure 4.1: 

i. Each campsite/RV stall shall have 

a minimum area of at least 93 m2 

(1,000 ft2) with an open and graded 

parking space sufficient to permit a 

clearance of 8.0 m (26 ft) between 

sides and 6.0 m (20 ft) between 

ends of adjacent recreation 

vehicles. 

ii. Campsites/RV stalls shall be 

accessible by means of a driveway 

at least 4.0 m (13 ft) wide where the 

driveway is for one-way traffic, or at 

least 8.0 m (26 ft) wide where the 

driveway is for two-way traffic, and 

so constructed to allow the smooth 

passage of vehicles. 

 

iii. Campsites/RV stalls shall be a 

minimum of 18 m (59 ft) in length. 

iv. Each campsite/RV stall shall have a 

clear pad of minimum 4.0 m (13 ft) 

in width and 6.0 m (20 ft) in length 

to allow for one table and one 

campsite fire pit. 

v. Each campsite/RV stall shall have 

one garbage can or an equivalent 

central garbage disposal area. 

b. A minimum of 2 barrier-free campsites/ 

RV stalls should be provided in a 

campground. Barrier-free campsites/RV 

stalls shall provide: 

i. a firm and level dirt, crushed rock or 
paved campsite surface; 

ii. a clear space around the tent pad 

and between other fixed elements 

(i.e. campfire, hook-ups); 

iii. a campsite free of barriers and 

unprotected hazards; 

iv. an accessible path less than 61 m 

(200 ft) to an accessible washroom/ 

vault toilet/wash station; 

v. an accessible picnic table (i.e. 

with sufficient knee clearance 

and clear space) in the campsite; 

and 

vi. access to fire pit and/or grill. 
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Figure 4.1 – Campsite/RV Stall Configurations 
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4.2.4 Site Considerations 

In determining the appropriateness and suitability of a 

site for a proposed campground or resort development, 

the Development Authority shall consider such factors 

as accessibility, compatibility with adjacent land uses, 

environmental sensitivity and physical suitability and 

serviceability of the site itself. 

a. The development of facilities should occupy no more 

than two-thirds of the proposed site, thereby leaving 

one-third in its natural state. 

b. The site should be designed and landscaped in order 

to minimize disturbance to the natural environment and 

to protect heavy use areas from damage. 

c. The site should take advantage of existing clearings 

and open areas 

d. The site should be well-drained and located in areas 

free of standing water. 

4.2.5 Recommended Facilities 

a. Day Use and Overnight Campgrounds 

i. The suggested minimum facilities include a central 

sanitary and water station, vault toilets, refuse 

containers, picnic tables and fire pits. 

ii. Other suggested facilities include individual 

electrical outlets, showers, coin-operated laundry, 

playground, grassed open space, and individual 

sewer connections. 

b. Recreational Resort Facilities 

i. The suggested minimum facilities include individual 

electrical outlets and water supplies, toilets, 

showers, refuse containers and cooking facilities. 

ii. Other suggested facilities include individual water 

and/or sewer connections, laundry, picnic tables, 

on-site parking, grocery, and recreation building. 

c. Adequate lighting shall be provided at the entrance to 

the campground and in public areas such as walkways 

to a main service building, washrooms, etc. 

d. Campground and resort facilities shall 

provide improved beach access, 

swimming areas, and boat launch facilities 

where possible. 

e. Vault toilets shall be provided within 91 m 

(300 ft) of 80% of all designated 

campsites. 

 

 

4.2.6 Waste Management 

a. Roads shall have a good driving surface under all 

weather conditions. Roads leading to a proposed 

campground may be required as a condition of 

development approval, to be brought into a condition 

necessary to sustain the volume and type of traffic to 

be generated by the proposed campground. 

b. Within the campground development, a circular one- 

way system with gently curving roads, sensitive to 

topography and site characteristics is preferred, and 

shall be “signed” to avoid confusion. 

c. Parking is not encouraged on roadways but rather on 

individual camping sites or visitor parking areas. 

Storage for boat trailers and recreational vehicles shall 

also be provided. Most individual campsites should 

provide two vehicle parking spaces and one trailer 

pad. 

d. Minimum right-of-way widths for internal roads are: 

i. One-way: 4.0 m (13 ft) 

ii. Two-way: 7.9 m (26 ft). 

e. The use of a cul-de-sac road design should be limited 

to: 

i. Areas allocated for tenting only, or 

ii. Areas where an adequate turning radius is 

provided (minimum 24.5 m (80 ft) diameter 

outer dimension). 
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5.0

 
 
 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 

5.1 Introduction 

Sturgeon Lake is acknowledged as being one of the few lakes in the Upper Peace region 

that can support a variety of water-based recreational activities. Its shorelines are also used 

for several other purposes including permanent and seasonal residential uses, recreational 

and resort developments, and agriculture. 

At the same time, however, the lake has historically been the subject of study due to ongoing 

concerns of water quality. The lake is naturally highly eutrophic, a condition common to many 

prairie lakes, where natural phosphorus concentrations contribute to a high degree of algae 

growth during the summer months. In addition, water levels can be highly variable which 

contributes to concerns respecting water quality. Although the issue of water level is outside 

the scope of this ASP, the ASP must continue to strike an acceptable balance between these 

environmental concerns and land use. In addition, there are several natural areas, including 

wetlands, watercourses and drainage channels that warrant protection. The presence of these 

features, identified at a high level in the Sturgeon Lake ASP Environmental Report (see 

Appendix B) prepared by Spencer Environmental Management Services Ltd., warrants further 

study at the time of development in order that they can be protected. 

The purpose of this section is to address issues related to the protection of the natural 

environment. Policies are provided that reflect Greenview’s position on lakeshore and water 

protection, through the implementation of such mechanisms as development setbacks, a high 

level of sanitary servicing, retention of natural vegetation, and environmental and municipal 

reserve dedication. 

5.2 Policies 

5.2.1 Management of the watersheds is important 

within the plan area to protect, restore and ensure 

the sustainability of the natural water systems. Any 

development that results in the fragmentation of 

contiguous natural features, functions and habitat 

such as water systems, moraines, forests, wetlands 

and wildlife habitat and corridors shall be 

discouraged. 

5.2.2 Developers must, at the time of application, 

demonstrate that a proposed development will not 

detrimentally impact the water quality and riparian 

areas of all streams, creeks, and Sturgeon Lake. 

Factors that will be taken into consideration when 

determining a development application include, but 

are not limited to: 

a. The type of land use proposed and the potential 

for contamination of the site and groundwater 

b.  On-site stormwater management; and 

c.  Site layout.
 

Figure 5.1: Illustration of Environmental Reserve 
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5.2.3 Numerous wetlands and other environmentally 

sensitive lands are present in the ASP area as illustrated 

on Map 4. The protection of these features shall be 

required in accordance with the provisions of this section. 

Only limited development that has a low impact on the 

natural environment, such as walking trails, shall be 

considered. 

5.2.4 At the time of subdivision, Greenview shall require 

that a strip of land with a minimum width of 6.1 m (20 ft) 

abutting the bed and shore of the lake, permanent 

watercourses, and permanent wetlands be dedicated as 

Environmental Reserve (ER) as illustrated in Figure 5.1. 

ER dedication is required in order to prevent pollution, 

reduce the potential for shoreline degradation, and protect 

ecologically sensitive areas and wildlife corridors. This ER 

may be increased in accordance with the recommendations 

of an assessment undertaken in accordance with Policies 

5.2.12, 5.2.13 and 5.2.14. 

5.2.5 In addition to lands required under Policy 5.2.4, 

Greenview may require that the following lands also be 

dedicated as ER: 

a. Swamps and marshes in accordance with the 

recommendations of a wetland assessment; and 

b. Steep slopes, flood-prone and erosion-prone areas 

in accordance with the recommendations of a 

geotechnical assessment. 

5.2.6 Land dedicated as ER shall be left in its natural state, 

although the removal of deadfall may be undertaken by 

Greenview for reasons of safety, maintenance, or fire risk 

provided the intent of the ER is not compromised. 

5.2.7 Notwithstanding Policy 5.2.6, Greenview may 

consider the development of natural walking trails, 

identified at the time of subdivision, within ER lands to 

provide pedestrian links to public access points on the lake 

and other open space areas. 

5.2.8 At the time of subdivision, Greenview shall 

require that 10% of the land that is the subject of 

subdivision be dedicated as Municipal Reserve (MR). 

MR shall be dedicated in parcel form in order to provide 

lands for municipal parks and playgrounds, trail corridors, 

or public access points to the lake as illustrated in 

Figures 5.1, 5.2 and 5.3. 

5.2.9 Notwithstanding Policy 5.2.8, Greenview may 

acquire MR as money-in-lieu, calculated in accordance with 

the Act that will be invested in the park and open space 

network. 

5.2.10 If Greenview determines that environmentally 

sensitive lands are required in addition to those identified 

in Policy 5.2.4, but cannot be justified as ER, then 

Greenview may acquire the additional lands as 

Conservation Reserve (CR) subject to compensation in 

accordance with the Act. An example of how CR may be 

applied is illustrated in Figure 5.2. 

5.2.11 Greenview may encourage and promote the use of 

conservation easements as a means of working with 

landowners to protect environmentally sensitive features on 

private lands outside the subdivision process. The use and 

control of these feature areas shall be clearly stated in the 

easement agreement. 

 

  
Figure 5.2: Illustration of Conservation Reserve  Figure 5.3: Development Setback 
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5.2.12 Prior to development or subdivision approval, 

Greenview shall require the developer to provide a 

wetland assessment, prepared by a qualified 

professional, for any development that involves the 

potential disturbance of a wetland and requires provincial 

approval under the Water Act. 

5.2.13 All subdivision and development proposed on 

land adjacent to or containing watercourses and 

wetlands shall require a geotechnical study conducted 

by a certified professional engineer to: 

a. Delineate the municipal top-of bank as defined in the 
LUB, and 

b. Consider and make recommendations specifying 

additional development setbacks to increase the 

separation distance beyond the minimum 6.1 m (20 ft) 

identified in Policy 5.2.4. 

5.2.14 Prior to development or subdivision approval, 

Greenview may require the preparation of a Biophysical 

Report, prepared by a qualified professional consisting of 

the following: 

a. An inventory of protected areas, identified wetlands, 
and migratory bird sanctuaries, 

b. An inventory of rare plants and ecological communities 

after consulting the Alberta Conservation Information 

Management System, 

c. An inventory of sensitive species after consultation with 

the Province, and 

d. An assessment and analysis of environmentally 

sensitive areas that considers an ecological network 

approach, the maintenance and restoration of wildlife 

movement corridors, and required conservation buffers, 

mitigation measures, floodplain and development 

setbacks, and transition of land uses from identified 

natural living systems. 

 

5.2.15 Other than trails, boat launches, public recreation 

areas and beaches, all development, including on-site 

infrastructure, shall have a minimum setback of: 

a. 61 m (200 ft) from the shoreline surrounding the main 

body of the lake, and 

b. 91 m (300 ft) from the shoreline surrounding the West 

Bay as illustrated in Figure 5.3. 

5.2.16 Notwithstanding Policy 5.2.6, removable docks and 

boardwalks to access the bed and shore of the lake may be 

permitted in accordance with the following: 

a. That the dock or boardwalk be limited to 2.4 m (8 ft) in 

width and have a maximum terminal platform area of 

24 m2 (258 ft2); 

b. The dock or boardwalk is constructed of materials 

that will not negatively impact water quality by way of 

contamination or degradation;  

c. The owner has obtained authorization from Greenview 

to access the bed and shore through municipal lands; 

and 

d. The owner has obtained the appropriate approvals or 

authorizations from the Province. 

5.2.17 A treed/vegetated buffer shall be maintained 

between the lakeshore and any structural developments. 

Where possible this buffer shall be 61 m (200 ft) in width on 

the main body of the lake and along watercourses feeding 

the lake, and 91 m (300 ft) on the West Bay. 

5.2.18 Landowners will be required to manage invasive 

species and noxious weeds on their lands to prevent their 

establishment and to minimize their spread. The planting of 

non-native species is discouraged. 

5.2.19 Greenview may work with the Province and 

Sturgeon Lake Cree Nation to investigate opportunities for 

the installation of additional boat launch facilities. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

170



13 STURGEON LAKE AREA STRUCTURE PLAN | DRAFT 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

5.2.20 Greenview encourages the Province to 

continue to monitor and report on lake water 

quality, and to monitor water levels. 

5.2.21 The following minimum setbacks shall be 

maintained from the abandoned landfill site as 

illustrated on Map 4: 

a. 300 m (984 ft) for all residential and 

recreational development in accordance 

with the Subdivision and Development 

Regulation; and 

b. 450 m (1,476 ft) for a water well in accordance 

with the Nuisance and General Sanitation 

Regulation. 
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6.0

 
 
 
 

AGRICULTURE 

6.1 Introduction 

Agriculture is an important and expanding land use in Greenview. Much of the land base 

surrounding Sturgeon Lake is suitable for farming, and with some exceptions, should be 

treated the same as other agricultural land in Greenview. Although new development will 

result in the removal of some lands from production, it is the intent of this ASP to promote 

clustered form development that minimizes impacts on agricultural lands. 

The use of such techniques as vegetation retention and the development of settling ponds 

may be required to reduce the chances of lake pollution occurring from adjacent land 

uses. To protect the quality of the lake water, intensive agricultural uses shall be set back 

an appropriate distance from the lake or restricted altogether. The objective is to keep 

uses that may pollute the lake away from surface features that drain directly into the lake. 

 

6.2 Policies 

6.2.1 The subdivision of lands in the 

Development Area currently designated as 

Agricultural One (A-1) in the LUB shall be 

limited to the following: 

a. Extensive agriculture; 

b. The first parcel out of an unsubdivided 

quarter section to accommodate an 

existing residence; 

c. The subdivision of a physically severed 

portion of a quarter (a.k.a. a 

Fragmented Parcel); 

d. Public uses; 

e. Recreational uses; and 

f. Uses that are accessory to those listed 

above. 

The above limitations are not applicable 

to agricultural lands located outside of the 

Development Area. 

6.2.2 Greenview supports land 

management practices that discourage 

sediment and nutrient loading into the 

Sturgeon Lake water system. These 

practices include: 

a. The stripping of vegetation, grading, 

or other soil disturbance being done 

in a manner which will minimize soil 

erosion; 

b. The retention and protection of natural 

vegetation whenever feasible; 

c. Keeping the extent of the disturbed 

area and the duration of its exposure 

within practical limits. Suitable 

stabilization measures should be 

used to protect exposed areas during 

construction and be re-vegetated as 

soon as possible; 

d. Managing site drainage so that surface 

runoff is maintained at pre- 

development rates subject to a 

stormwater management strategy 

prepared in accordance with Policy 

8.2.8; 

e. Maintaining a naturally vegetated 

buffer along the shore of the lake 

and watercourses in accordance with 

Policy 5.2.17. 

6.2.3 No confined feeding operations as 

defined in the Agricultural Operation 

Practices Act shall be permitted within the 

Development Area. 
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COMMERCIAL AND 

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT 

7.1 Introduction 

Most of the commercial needs of local residents and lake users can be served from 

Valleyview, Crooked Creek, Sturgeon Heights and the Sturgeon Lake Cree Nation. As 

residential and recreation developments expand, however, there may be an opportunity 

for the establishment of small commercial ventures, primarily of a convenience nature. 

 

7.2 Policies 

7.2.1 The subdivision and development 

of land for commercial uses may be 

permitted in the Development Area subject 

to rezoning. For the purpose of this 

section, the types of uses that may be 

supported include: 

a. Convenience stores; 

b. Recreational vehicle and boat storage; 
and 

c. Restaurants. 

Convenience stores and restaurants 

do not require rezoning if developed 

as an accessory use within an existing 

development within the Recreation 

(REC) District of the LUB. 

7.2.2 The reclassification of land for 

industrial purposes shall not be permitted in 

the Development Area under any 

circumstances. 

7.2.3 Greenview shall not support the 

development of oil and natural gas 

exploration and extraction activities in the 

Development Area. In addition, no such 

activity shall be supported in the ASP area 

if located within 100 m (328 ft) of the lake 

or a permanent watercourse draining into 

the lake. 

 

  

 
 
7.0 
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INFRASTRUCTURE 

8.1 Introduction 

In order to serve the residents of the Sturgeon Lake area, Greenview has recently expanded 

the existing sewage lagoon at Sturgeon Heights. The lagoon was originally constructed as an 

integral part of an overall sewage disposal strategy for the area. Such a strategy is required 

to alleviate an increasing pressure for disposal facilities while at the same time protecting the 

quality of lake water by providing sound environmental options for local sewage disposal. The 

policies that follow are intended to further these goals, as well as addressing other servicing 

needs. 

The ASP area is served by three paved roads (Highway 43 and Township Road 704 on the 

south of the lake, and the Young’s Point Road (RR 251/Township Road 710) that bounds 

the West Bay to the west and north) as well as several gravel roads. Local roads that serve 

the interior of the ASP area are connected to these main roads. The purpose of this section 

is also to provide policies that will continue to ensure the safe and efficient flow of traffic 

through the area. 

The use of environmentally friendly technologies and practices will be encouraged in 

the design and construction of all infrastructure. This may include the use of Low Impact 

Development (LID) standards for storm water management and energy conservation.

8.2 Servicing 

8.2.1 Greenview shall require all 

developments to provide holding tanks or 

composting toilets for sewage disposal for: 

a. New residential development 

or subdivision located within 

a Development Area;  

b. New development or subdivision, 

including vacant first parcels out and 

the resubdivision of existing lots in the 

ASP area but outside a Development 

Area if the proposed sewage system is 

located within 91 m (300 ft) of any 

watercourse draining into the lake. 

It is intended that all holding tanks be 

installed at locations that are easily 

accessible for a vacuum truck and are to 

be pumped out regularly for disposal at a 

licensed facility.  

8.2.2 Septic fields, treatment mounds, and 

other on-site systems may be permitted at 

locations outside of those identified in 

Policy 8.2.1 provided they conform to the 

Alberta Private Sewage Systems 

Standard of Practice. 

8.2.3 Multi-lot subdivisions may be 

serviced with communal sewage 

systems provided if they are registered 

as a condominium. The maintenance and 

upkeep of such systems shall be the 

responsibility of the condominium 

association and shall be located on 

common property within the development. 

8.2.4 New or expanding resort 

developments may be serviced with private 

lagoon facilities that are developed and 

operated in accordance with Provincial 

standards. 

8.2.5 Greenview may undertake a 

feasibility study to assess the potential 

options for the provision of municipal water 

and sewer services in the Narrows and 

other development nodes within a 

Development Area. 

8.2.6 In the case of existing development, 

Greenview encourages the upgrading of 

existing sewage facilities. To this end, as 

existing developments require 

development permits to renovate, 

reconstruct or enlarge, such permits shall 

be approved with a condition requiring that 

a sewage holding tank be installed in 

accordance with Policy 8.2.1. 

8.0 
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8.2.7 For all new subdivisions, the applicant shall be 

required to demonstrate the availability of potable water 

and/or construct a water system in accordance with the 

requirements of Greenview’s MSS. 

8.2.8 The design and provisions for storm drainage shall 

take into account the reduction of ditch erosion, 

environmental damage, and sedimentation of the lake. The 

development of storm ponds may be required in 

accordance with Greenview’s MSS. 

8.3 Transportation 

8.3.1 The developer of a subdivision or development 

shall be responsible for the construction of all internal 

roads in accordance with the requirements of 

Greenview’s MSS. In addition, the developer may be 

responsible for the costs of upgrading or widening existing 

roads serving the development. 

8.3.2 The construction of new roads shall not adversely 

impact sensitive natural features, recreation areas or 

historical sites. 

8.3.3 In order to accommodate development along 

Highway 43, service roads shall be provided in accordance 

with Alberta Transportation requirements. 

8.3.4 The provision, design and construction of all roads 

and access points affecting Highway 43 shall conform to 

Alberta Transportation standards. The design and 

construction of all road improvements shall have regard for 

the storm drainage system, and all proposed access points 

to developments shall have regard for traffic safety. 

8.3.5 Outside of approved public docking and boat launch 

facilities, no direct vehicular access to the lake shall be 

permitted. 

8.4 Community Health and Safety 

8.4.1 Fire protection for the ASP area is provided by the 

DeBolt Fire Station and the Valleyview Volunteer Fire 

Department, a strong group of volunteer fire fighters serving 

the surrounding Sturgeon Lake area. Greenview will work in 

partnership with the community and emergency responders 

in maintaining appropriate emergency response services. 

8.4.2 In order to protect the community from 

environmental hazard: 

a. Future subdivision and development shall incorporate 

fire preparedness measures, such as provincial 

FireSmart guidelines; 

b. Greenview will require an Environmental Assessment 

to ensure measures are taken to mitigate any potential 

adverse environmental impacts. Greenview will 

adhere to the recommendations set out in the required 

Environmental Assessment, which may include 

restrictions regarding: 

i. Development of permanent structures, 

ii. Removal of vegetation, and 

iii. The alteration of natural drainage patterns. 
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9.0

 
 
 
 

IMPLEMENTATION 

9.1 Introduction 

Upon adoption, this ASP shall become the policy document of Greenview to manage 

development in the Sturgeon Lake area. 

 

9.2 Policies 

9.2.1 The land use designations in this 

ASP are considered flexible. However, an 

amendment will be required to the ASP if: 

a. The intent of a policy is to be changed; 

b. A change is proposed to the land use 

areas identified in Map 3; or 

c. Policies are to be introduced or 

excluded. 

Interested parties and government agencies 

will have an opportunity to comment on a 

proposed amendment in accordance with 

the public hearing procedures under the 

Act. 

 

9.2.2 This ASP should be reviewed at 

ten-year intervals unless changing 

conditions warrant a review prior to that 

time. Such reviews may reflect such 

factors as legislative change, changes to 

local demand, future servicing, or Council 

direction. In undertaking such a review, 

consideration should be given to: 

a. Local land use changes and emergent 
issues; 

b. New best practices and development 

trends; and 

c. Communication and consultation with 

residents and stakeholders. 

9.2.3 Greenview will consult with 

provincial government agencies and the 

Sturgeon Lake Cree Nation as required to 

coordinate planning efforts around the lake. 
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Bed and Shore 
Land located at and below the normal high-water line of a lake or permanent wetland and where aquatic 
vegetation is normally present. Such land is under the jurisdiction of the Province of Alberta. 

Cluster Form 
An approach to land development where the 
main structures on nearby properties are 
grouped close together, enabling efficiencies 
in servicing and leaving large remnants in an 
undeveloped/semi-natural state or to serve as 
open space, conservation, recreation, or 
public uses. 

Communal Water and Sewer System 
A system of water and/or wastewater infrastructure that serves a small, localized development, with 
capital and operation costs shared among the pool of users. 

Composting Toilet 
A toilet design in which waste is retained and broken down through natural decomposition into a compost 
material, which can then be removed off-site. It uses no water for flushing and so does not require a 
connection to water supply, a septic system, or a municipal wastewater system. 

Conservation Reserve  
Environmentally sensitive lands that are dedicated to the municipality at the time of subdivision in 

exchange for financial compensation in accordance with the Municipal Government Act. 

Country Residential Use 
A use of land in a rural area, not situated in a hamlet, for primarily residential purposes, excluding farm 
buildings.  

Development Area  
Lands identified in the Land Use Concept (Map 3) that consist of all private lands that have the potential 

to accommodate residential and recreational development. These lands are the intended target of private 

development under this ASP. 

Extensive Agriculture Use 
A use of land involving the raising or production of any cultivated crops or livestock which utilizes 
relatively large areas of land and in which the use of buildings and confinement areas is auxiliary to the 
use of the land itself. This constitutes an agricultural operation pursuant to the Agricultural Operation 
Practices Act but does not include an intensive livestock use such as a Confined Feeding Operation. 

FireSmart Guidelines 
A framework for assessing, preparing for and reducing wildfire risk for communities. A guidebook for 
assessment and planning is available from the Province of Alberta. 

Fragmented Parcel 
A portion of a parcel that is physically severed from the balance of a quarter section by a road, railway, 
water body, watercourse, ravine or similar feature. A Quarter Section containing a physical severance but 
otherwise intact is considered to be unsubdivided. 

Invasive Species 
A species that is not original to a local area and that tends to spread to a degree believed to cause 
damage to the environment, human economy, or human health. 
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Low Impact Development 
An approach to land use planning and engineering design to manage stormwater runoff as part of green 
infrastructure that is integrated with or makes use of existing natural features and processes to protect 
water quality. 

Municipal Water and Sewer System 
A system of water and/or wastewater infrastructure that is publicly funded and maintained by the 
municipal government. Typically, this involves large-scale networks of pipes and centralized treatment 
facilities. 

Noxious Weeds 
A plant that causes damage or injury to crops, the natural environment, humans or livestock. Noxious 
weeds are defined by the Alberta Weed Control Act. 

Seasonal Recreational Use 
A use of land intended for occupancy on a short-term basis, which is further not to be continuous nor 
year-round.  

Steep Slope 
Land that exceeds a 15% incline (vertical rise as a portion of horizontal run). 

Terminal Platform Area 
The loading/unloading/lounging area of a dock structure. Does not include the walkway that is otherwise 
only used to access the terminal platform. 

Vault Toilet 
A toilet design in which waste is retained and stored (in a “vault”) so that it can be regularly removed and 
treated off-site. It uses no water for flushing and so does not require a connection to water supply, septic, 
nor municipal wastewater systems. 

Wetlands 
As defined in the Alberta Wetland Policy, wetlands are lands that are saturated with water long enough to 
promote wetland or aquatic processes as indicated by poorly drained soils, hydrophytic (water loving) 
vegetation, and various kinds of biological activity that are adapted to a wet environment.
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Sturgeon Lake Area Structure Plan Update 

Environmental Background Report 

 

Executive Summary 
 
The current Sturgeon Lake Area Structure Plan (SLASP) was adopted by the Municipal District of 

Greenview (MD of Greenview) in 2002 to provide a framework for the long-term growth and development 

of the lands within the SLASP area.  MD of Greenview recently commissioned a comprehensive review of 

the SLASP to ensure it remains consistent with current legislation and statutory plans, the community’s 

vision and Council’s strategic priorities.  They identified environment as an area of concern and focus for 

the ASP review, with an emphasis on:  preservation of Sturgeon Lake and surrounding watershed; respect 

for water quality and prevention of further water quality degradation; and existing vegetation.  In support 

of the environmental aspects of the ASP review, the County commissioned a background report to describe 

current legislation and statutory plans affecting the plan area and a provide high-level, desktop inventory 

of environmental sensitivities and opportunities for use as an effective planning and public engagement 

tool.  This report represents the results of that desktop environmental study. 

 

General methodology used to prepare this background report included:  desktop review of existing project 

information, aerial photographic imagery, MD of Greenview data via MuniSight Ltd. and online data 

sources; review of available relevant research and resource management literature; review of legislation, 

plans and policies to compile a current legislative framework; field reconnaissance to document existing 

conditions and map resources within the study area; mapping of relevant sensitive resources and relevant 

planning boundaries for the entire SLASP using ArcGIS; analysis of Alberta’s Environmental Significant 

Area (ESA) data (2014).  Crown lands and groundwater resources were neither discussed nor mapped, 

owing to a lack of suitable datasets. 

 

Results of the desktop analysis are presented in the main body of the report and in a 12-page ancillary map 

series.  Since preparation of the 2002 SLASP, relevant legislative, plan and policy changes include: 

adoption of the municipality’s 2016 MDP and environmental policies that provide support for ASP-level 

environmental protection; creation of an integrated watershed management plan; adoption of the Alberta 

Wetland Policy with associated directives; a new provincial Watershed Resiliency and Restoration 

Program; revisions to several provincial statutes and several approval application methods; revisions to two 

key federal statutes.  Federal changes are more relevant to specific development projects, as they may 

govern or influence construction practices; for some activities, authorizations may be required.  Other key 

study results include identification of protected areas and sensitive resources, description of hydrology, 

natural sub regions and vegetation, wildlife, fish/aquatic resources, wetlands, farmland capability, Alberta’s 

Green and White Areas and recognized environmentally significant areas in the SLASP lands.   

 

Additional observations, considerations and conclusions that may be useful to the SLASP review are as 

follows, presented in no particular order:   

 

➢ Although the province no longer recognizes Sturgeon Lake as a mapped ESA, this exercise supports 

the 2002 SLASP contention that Sturgeon Lake is a significant and sensitive natural feature.  For 

example, current information indicates that the lake drains a large catchment; receives flows from 

multiple tributaries, some of them first-order streams; appears to have many nearby wetlands that 

contribute to runoff management; is a valued sport fishery; supports two waterbird species that 

have specific breeding habitat requirements and a limited provincial distribution; and is a critical 

wildlife zone from the perspective of renewable energy management. It is also expected to be 

closely linked to the local groundwater table, on which many residents rely.  
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➢ Our findings support the 2016 MDP recognition of features such as lakes as environmentally 

sensitive lands.  It also confirms that Sturgeon Lake is an important wildlife area.  

 
➢ Our maps may assist planners and developers in identifying ASP lands that contain sensitive habitat 

and therefore may qualify as Environmental Reserve.  

 
➢ Our findings reinforce the utility of the 2002 ASP boundary as the entire Sturgeon Lake watershed, 

which recognizes that important resources, such as stream and wildlife management zones, extend 

beyond the ASP primary zone boundary. 

 
➢ The majority of Sturgeon Lake west bay shoreline is currently unprotected being neither municipal 

level reserve nor in provincial ownership.  The majority of Sturgeon Lake main bay shoreline is 

either extra-jurisdictional Indian Reserve lands or is protected by its status as provincial park or 

ER. 

 
➢ Sturgeon Lake water quality and quantity remains an important consideration and is in keeping 

with provincial initiatives such as Alberta’s watershed resiliency and restoration program.  The 

SLASP (2002) provides important protection for shoreline and stream riparian zones that in turn 

protect Sturgeon Lake water quality. If this protection is subject to review, our findings suggest a 

strengthening rather than diminishing of protection. Full protection of first-order stream reaches in 

the primary and secondary zones is an avenue to explore.  Further, the MD may wish to circulate 

applications to DFO for review for projects crossing Sturgeon Lake tributary streams.   

 

➢ Wetlands are an important consideration in future planning and development decisions, for all 

parcels. The SLASP may wish to consider specific wetland policies that recognize wetland 

ecological services and how they may contribute to Sturgeon Lake protection.  

 
➢ The Provincial parks that border Sturgeon Lake are good neighbours and assist in lake protection 

and management.  The MD may wish to explore how lands along the MD /park boundaries could 

be managed (e.g., in their capacity as buffers) to increase the ability of Park lands to protect fish 

and wildlife resources and water quality.  

 
➢ Lands mapped as coniferous or mixedwood landcover are relatively limited in occurrence in the 

primary and secondary zones and contribute to habitat diversity with the area.  Their conservation 

could be a consideration when dedicating Municipal Reserve or when discussing Conservation 

Reserve with land owners.  

 

➢ When dedicating ER or riparian setbacks, considering using surveyed high water level as the 

targeted landmark rather than lake shore.  

 
➢ This report relied on datasets derived for very large areas. Very little SLASP specific resource 

information is available.   

 
➢ AEP’s information should be used with caution when planning renewal energy projects and zones 

should be verified with site-specific investigations to confirm the presence of sensitive wildlife 

habitat. 

 
➢ For policies requiring retention of lands in a natural state, consider also specifying certain minimum 

polygon sizes to attain the habitat benefits associated with larger habitat patches, rather than a 

mosaic of smaller patches. 
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1.0 INTRODUCTION 

1.1 Background 
The current Sturgeon Lake Area Structure Plan (SLASP) was adopted by the Municipal 
District of Greenview (MD of Greenview) in 2002 to provide a framework for the long-term 
growth and development of the lands within the SLASP area.  MD of Greenview recently 
commissioned a comprehensive review of the SLASP to ensure it remains consistent with 
current legislation and statutory plans, the community’s vision and Council’s strategic 
priorities.  They identified environment as an area of concern and focus for the ASP review, 
with an emphasis on: 
 

 Preservation of Sturgeon Lake and surrounding watershed 
 Water quality (with emphasis on respect for WQ and prevention of further 

degradation) 
 Existing vegetation 

 
The comprehensive review was also to include development of a background report outlining 
current legislation and statutory plans affecting the plan area and a high level, desktop 
inventory of environmental sensitivities and opportunities to be used as an effective 
planning and public engagement tool.  To that end, MD of Greenview retained ISL 
Engineering and Land Services Ltd. (ISL) to review and revise the SLASP as required.  ISL 
retained Spencer Environmental Management Services Ltd. (Spencer) to provide a high-level 
desktop inventory of environmental sensitivities and opportunities in the SLASP area and an 
overview of current legislation and statutory plans.  This report represents the results of that 
desktop study. 
 

1.2 Report Organization 
This report is organized into 14 sections.  Section 1 provides introductory background 
information followed by Study Area and Context in Section 2 and Methodology in Section 
3.  Section 4 provides information regarding the current legislative framework informing 
revisions to the SLASP.  Sections 5-11 provide key environmental background information 
related to protected areas and sensitive resources, hydrology, natural sub regions and 
vegetation, wildlife, fish/aquatic resources, farmland capability and Alberta’s Green and 
White Areas and environmentally significant areas.  Finally, Section 12 presents 
observations and conclusions.  References are provided in Section 13. 
 
2.0 STUDY AREA AND CONTEXT 

The SLASP review study area comprises the full area structure plan (ASP) lands, which is 
coincident with the boundaries of the Sturgeon Lake watershed, approximately 15 km west 
of Valleyview, Alberta.  A smaller Primary Zone encompasses Sturgeon Lake and adjacent 
areas (Figure 1; Appendix A).  The ASP area covers a large, diverse and complex area that 
includes lands within both Green and White areas, portions of Sturgeon Lake Indian 
Reserve (154A and B), two provincial parks, Sturgeon Lake (a significant natural feature 
and popular recreation area), a diversity of smaller lakes, watercourses and wetlands, 

186



Spencer Environmental 

October 2018 SLASP Update -Environmental Background Report Page 4 

upland forest and agricultural lands.  There is high demand for recreational and country 
residential land use, especially in the vicinity of Sturgeon Lake.   
 
3.0 METHODOLOGY 

3.1 General 
We undertook the following broad tasks to prepare this background report: 

 Desktop review of existing project information, aerial photographic imagery, MD 
of Greenview data via MuniSight Ltd. and online open data sources  

 Review of available relevant research and resource management literature.  
 Review of legislation, plans and policies to compile a current legislative 

framework. 
 Field reconnaissance inspection to document existing conditions and map resources 

within the study area.  
 Mapping relevant sensitive resources and relevant planning boundaries for the 

entire SLASP area using ArcGIS.  For mapping purposes, a 3 km buffer was applied 
to the ASP boundary to account for features and zones located within the ASP that 
extended beyond its boundary (e.g., wetlands, swan buffers, etc.).  That buffer was 
incidentally included along the east boundary of the Sturgeon Lake IR lands so that 
those lands would not be trimmed from the map. 

 Alberta’s Environmentally Significant Area (ESA) data (2014) (Fiera 2014) were 
analyzed to identify and map all quarter sections with a score greater than 0.189 
(identified as an ESA).  

 All datasets are shown for all lands within the SLASP boundary, regardless of 
jurisdiction, but all maps also clearly identify provincial parks and Indian Reserves. 

 
Crown lands and groundwater resources are not discussed or mapped, owing to lack of 
suitable desktop datasets. 

 
3.2 Detailed 

3.2.1 GIS Information Review 
The following online data sources were searched/reviewed: 
 

 Alberta Conservation Information Management System (ACIMS), online data map 
searched 15 August 2018 for records of rare plant species or unusual plant 
communities in the SLASP lands (AEP 2017a).   

 Fish and Wildlife Management Information System (FWMIS), searched 22 August 
2018 using the Fish and Wildlife Internet Mapping Tool (FWIMT) for relevant 
recorded sensitive wildlife and fisheries species information and the location of 
special resource management zones relative to the SLASP area (AEP 2018a).   

 
In addition, a complete list of specific GIS-based resources used in this desktop study is 
provided in Appendix B.  The most recent and scale appropriate datasets were specifically 
targeted for this study. 

187



Spencer Environmental 

October 2018 SLASP Update -Environmental Background Report Page 5 

 
3.2.2 Field Reconnaissance 

A field reconnaissance of the SLASP primary zone around Sturgeon Lake was conducted 
on 18 July 2018 with personnel from the MD of Greenview’s Planning and Development 
Office to gain an understanding of environmental resources and related planning issues.  
The reconnaissance comprised a driving tour of the area complemented with on-site foot 
reconnaissance of select locations around the lake.  Field documentation included 
annotating maps of the area as well as taking relevant field notes.  Representative site 
photographs were taken throughout to assist in our subsequent investigations.   
 
4.0 LEGISLATIVE FRAMEWORK 

Since preparation of the current SLASP (2002), there have been revisions to several 
municipal plans and policies, and there are new or revised regional, provincial and federal 
plans and legislation applicable to the diversity of resources and jurisdictions in the 
planning area.  At the municipal level, the 2016 MDP and its environmental policies are 
key to SLASP revision and provide support for ASP level environmental protection. At the 
regional and provincial level, the updated SLASP should strive to align with and respect 
the influence of plans, guidelines and legal statutes that are now in place.   At the regional 
level there is a new integrated watershed management plan. At the provincial level there is 
a new wetland policy with associated directives, a new Watershed Resiliency and 
Restoration Program, revisions to several statutes and key revisions to several approval 
application methods.  At the federal level, two key statues have ben significantly revised. 
While identified federal legislation is certainly important, those statues are more relevant 
to specific development projects, as they may govern or influence construction practices 
and, for some activities, authorizations may be required. The relevant instruments for all 
orders of governance are described in Appendix C. 
 
 
5.0 PROTECTED AREAS AND SENSITIVE RESOURCES 

Protected areas in SLASP lands include two provincial parks located in the primary zone:  
1) Young’s Point Provincial Park (approximately 10.8 km2 on the northwest shore of the 
main lake basin; and 2) the much smaller Williamson Provincial Park (1.74 km2) on the 
southwest shore of the main lake basin (Swanson and Zurawell 2006) (Figures 1 and 2, 
Appendix A).  In addition, Alberta Parks’ Sturgeon Lake Natural Area is located on a 28 
ha island in the west bay of Sturgeon Lake, an area only accessible by boat (Alberta Parks 
2018) (Figure 2, Appendix A).  Approximately 19 areas around the margins of Sturgeon 
Lake are identified as municipal level reserves (Figure 3, Appendix A). 
 
Sensitive resources in SLASP lands include provincially identified trumpeter swan 500 and 
800 m buffers (See Section 8.1.1) around all water bodies as well as a provincially 
identified sharp-tailed grouse survey area (See Section 8.1.3) in the southeast section of the 
ASP secondary zone (Figure 2, Appendix A).  Domestic and other use water wells are 
scattered throughout ASP lands with concentrations in residential areas around Sturgeon 
Lake and further west of the lake (Figures 2 and 3, Appendix A).  The majority of shoreline 
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in the west bay of Sturgeon Lake is not protected by municipal level reserve or provincial 
ownership and the majority of the main bay shoreline is protected by provincial parks, 
environmental reserve (ER), or is extra-jurisdictional land. 
 
6.0 HYDROLOGY  

6.1 Watersheds and Sub-Basin 
The SLASP lands are located in the Smoky/Wapiti River sub-basin (approximately 46,659 
km2) within the larger Peace/Slave watersheds.  The Peace/Slave River basin, the largest 
in Alberta, includes inflows from several major rivers including the Wapiti, Smoky, Little 
Smoky and Wabasca (Figure 4, Appendix A).  That basin is coincident with the scope of 
the recently released Integrated Watershed Management Plan for the Peace and Slave 
Watersheds (IWMP)(Mighty Peace Watershed Alliance 2018). 
 
The Smoky/Wapiti sub-basin is the largest sub-basin in the Peace Watershed and is the 
most diverse in terms of natural regions including alpine, foothills, central and dry mixed-
wood forests and parkland in lower reaches (Hutchinson 2014). This sub-basin contains 
the largest number of large point source discharges and large agricultural areas, mostly in 
the Wapiti River catchment to the west of the SLASP. The Smoky River catchment 
(containing the SLASP) is predominantly forested, with areas of resource development and 
agriculture. 
 

6.2 Streams 
SLASP lands are hydrologically complex with many streams and other water bodies 
including several lakes (Figure 1 and Figure 5, Appendix A).  The Province classifies 
streams according to the Strahler method. First order streams are streams dominated by 
overland water flow and having no upstream concentrated flow (i.e., no links to tributary 
flows). They are the first upstream reach and closest to the headwaters (ArcGIS Pro 2018).  
Stream order increases to 2, 3, 4, etc. when two streams of the same order intersect along 
the downstream reaches of a stream. SLASP lands include fifth order streams. Since first 
order streams are closest to the source of the stream they are considered most susceptible 
to non-point source pollution and thus benefit the most from maintenance of wide riparian 
buffers relative to other areas in the watershed (ArcGIS Pro 2018).  Figure 5 (in Appendix 
A) illustrates the location of identified first order streams throughout the SLASP area and 
therefore provides information relevant to riparian protection buffers.  Most of the streams 
in the SLASP primary zone are relatively short, first-order streams that originate in the 
secondary zone and flow into the primary zone are longer. 
 

6.3 Wetlands 
Inventoried wetlands in the ASP secondary and primary zone (Figures 7 and 8, Appendix 
A) are shown in Figures 7 and 8 in Appendix A.  There are a significant number of wetlands 
across the entire ASP, scattered throughout with few identifiable concentrations.  The data 
are from the Alberta Merged Wetland Inventory, a dataset known to be coarse and in need 
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of ground-truthing to confirm the presence/absence and boundaries of wetlands for specific 
locations in the ASP. 
 

6.4 Sturgeon Lake 
6.4.1 Hydrology 

Sturgeon Lake is a large (approximately 49.1 km2), moderately shallow lake with an 
extensive drainage basin (approximately 521 km2) (Swanson and Zurawell 2006) (Figures 
1).  The lake’s drainage basin includes a series of smaller water bodies and watercourses 
that drain into the lake on the north, west and southwest shores (Figure 5) and the SLASP 
is defined by that watershed.  The main inflow, Goose Creek, enters the lake on the south 
shore and drains Goose, Long and Grassy Lakes to the south (Figures 1 and 5).  Sturgeon 
Lake’s outlet is Sturgeon Creek, on the lake’s east shore, which carries water from the lake 
to the Little Smoky River to the east and ultimately into the Peace River to the north.  Lake 
water levels are controlled by an adjustable concrete weir in Sturgeon Creek. 
 
The lake comprises a main basin connected to a west bay by a narrow channel (Figure 1 
and Figure 5).  Maximum lake depth of 9.5 m is located in the main basin, just east of the 
channel, with the minimum lake depth of approximately 3 m in the west bay (Swanson and 
Zurawell 2006). With the exception of drought conditions in 1998-2001, lake water levels 
over the period 1982-2005 have remained relatively stable with annual fluctuations of 0.5 
m (Swanson and Zurawell 2016). 
 

6.4.2 Surface Water Quality 
Water quality at Sturgeon Lake was regularly monitored through the Provincial Parks 
Monitoring Program during the period 1983-2004 (Swanson and Zurawell 2006).  During 
that time one to seven water samples were taken most years during the May-September 
open-water season.  Results from that program indicated that Sturgeon Lake was a 
hypereutrophic lake (very high productivity) with fair recreational water quality.  It was 
considered a fresh, neutral (neither acidic nor alkaline) lake with relatively low hardness.  
Relative to other lakes in the monitoring program it had low alkalinity meaning it was not 
well buffered against acidic deposition from snow or rainfall (Swanson and Zurawell 
2006).  Except for sulfate and carbonate, concentrations of most ions and associated 
measured parameters (e.g., conductivity, alkalinity, hardness and total dissolved solids) 
increased during the period 1983-2004.  Concentrations of chlorophyll-a and total 
phosophorous fluctuated over the monitoring period with a spike in the second last year of 
monitoring (2003).  Since water levels had been relatively stable during the sampling 
period it was believed these increases may have been due to increased inputs from roads, 
agricultural lands or residential development (Swanson and Zurawell 2006).  As a result of 
increased inputs such as phosphorous, occasional cyanobacterial (blue-green algae) blooms 
have occurred over the last several years during the summer (S.A. Rosson, pers. comm.), 
which impairs water quality and produces toxins harmful to humans, wildlife and domestic 
pets. 
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7.0 NATURAL SUB REGIONS AND VEGETATION 

The SLASP is located within the boreal forest natural region of Alberta and contains lands 
that are mapped as belonging to the dry mixedwood and the central mixedwood subregions 
(Figure 5, Appendix A)(Natural Regions Committee 2006).  The dry mixedwood sub-
region comprises a relatively small portion of the ASP and is limited to the primary zone 
and Sturgeon Lake and extends to the east and beyond the ASP.  Vegetation in that 
subregion is characterized by aspen forest and cultivated landscapes, with fens commonly 
occurring in low-lying areas.  The remainder of the ASP area is located in the central 
mixedwood subregion. Vegetation in that subregion is characterized as a mosaic of upland 
aspen, mixedwood and white spruce forests with extensive areas of mainly treed fens.  
Mapped vegetation landcover classes (Figure 8, Appendix A) demonstrate the mosaic of 
vegetation types present in the ASP area.  Broadleaf forest, the dominant land cover is 
interspersed with smaller areas of both coniferous forest and mixed forest, and fewer areas 
of shrubland and grassland.  Concentrations of agriculture lands occur west of and on the 
margins of Sturgeon Lake west bay and along the east-central margin of the secondary 
zone. The majority of the undeveloped primary zone lands support agriculture, forest is the 
second most common land cover.  Within the primary zone, coniferous forest is 
uncommon, occurring in a few patches only but of significant size at that scale.  The most 
recent land cover data is from 2010 and may not accurately represent conditions, 
particularly in the primary zone.   
 

7.1 Special Status Species 
The ACIMS database search returned one historical special status non-vascular plant 
species in the SLASP area.  That record was for the bean-spored rim lichen (Lecania 
dubitans) (ranked S2S4), observed in Williamson Provincial Park in 1967.  No other 
records of special status plant species were identified in FWMIS or in other sources, 
including ABMI’s open vegetation data.  The lack of records does not necessarily indicate 
an absence of rare species; it may be a reflection of lack of surveys or lack of private sector 
or research survey results reported to Alberta Environment and Parks (AEP).  The survey 
effort on SLASP lands is unknown. 
 
8.0 WILDLIFE  

8.1 Special Status Species 
The FWMIS database search returned two records of special status wildlife species in the 
SLASP:  trumpeter swan (Cygnus buccinator) (federally ranked as Not at Risk and 
provincially ranked as Species of Special Concern under the Wildlife Act) and western 
grebe (Aechmophorus occidentalis)(federally ranked as Special Concern on Schedule 1 of 
the Species at Risk Act (SARA) and provincially ranked as Threatened under the Wildlife 
Act).  Lack of other records does not necessarily indicate an absence of rare species; it may 
be a reflection of lack of surveys or lack of private sector or research survey results reported 
to AEP.  The survey effort on SLASP lands is unknown. 
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8.1.1 Trumpeter Swan 
Trumpeter swan populations have been increasing in Alberta over the last 25 years due to 
active provincial management of trumpeter swan breeding habitat in the province (AEP 
2018b).  FWMIS contains records of trumpeter swans at all water bodies in the SLASP.  
Identified threats to trumpeter swans include habitat loss (wetland drainage, shoreline 
development) and human disturbance (e.g., vehicle traffic, boating, low-flying aircraft, 
industrial activity) on lakes and wetlands that may result in nest abandonment and the 
resulting death of young (AEP 2018b).  In addition, AEP has noted that collisions with 
single-wire power lines is a significant source of mortality to swans (AEP 2018c).  To 
minimize disturbance to trumpeter swan breeding habitat, AEP has developed 
recommended land use guidelines for activities near trumpeter swan habitat (AESRD 
2012).  The province has also established recommended 500 m and 800 m land use buffers 
around identified lakes or water bodies including water bodies in the SLASP lands (Figures 
2 and 3).  While those buffers, extending from the water body shoreline, greatly exceed 
what is practical and mandated in the current SLASP for development, these zones should 
be considered as sensitive areas with respect to swan habitat management.  They are 
particularly relevant to certain types of development including single-line power lines and 
renewable energy projects such as wind and solar energy projects (See Section 8.1.3). 
There is no database specific to trumpeter swam use of Sturgeon Lake or other water bodies 
in the SLASP.   
 

8.1.2 Western Grebe 
Western grebe, a diving, fish-eating and colonial nesting waterbird species, was recently 
confirmed to be present during the breeding season (01 May to 31 August) at Sturgeon 
Lake (Prescott et al. 2018).  Specifically, 179 individuals were observed at the lake in 2015.  
Through their recent update on the distribution and abundance of western grebe in Alberta, 
AEP identified Sturgeon Lake as a priority lake for future surveys and management actions 
based on: 1) Sturgeon Lake was confirmed to support >100 birds up to the year 2016, and 
2) the lake has a “High” habitat suitability meaning it is considered a larger water body 
with extensive and continuous patches of emergent vegetation capable of supporting > 100 
breeding birds (Prescott et. al. 2018).  A provincial recovery plan for this species is 
currently under development and is expected to include management actions that can be 
directed towards lakes where the maximum benefit can be attained.  Considering Sturgeon 
Lake has been identified as a priority lake with respect to western grebe, and pending the 
outcome of AEP’s recovery plan, specific management actions may be required at this lake, 
which may influence adjacent land use planning.  
 

8.1.3 Sharp-tailed Grouse Survey Area 
Sharp-tailed grouse are relatively common throughout Alberta in areas of suitable 
grassland and shrubland habitats, including localized areas in the Boreal Forest Natural 
Region (The Federation of Alberta Naturalists 2007).  Despite this, it is considered a 
Sensitive species (Alberta Wild Species General Status Listing 2015), because of the long-
term effects of agriculture on the open grassland and shrubland habitat on which the species 
depends during the breeding season for its dancing grounds (leks) (AEP 2015).  AEP has 
identified specific survey areas throughout the province where surveys for leks are required 
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prior to disturbance.  Once such survey area is situated southeast of the Sturgeon Lake 
Indian Reserve that partially occupies the SLASP Secondary Zone (Figure 2).  
   

8.2 Renewable Energy Wildlife Habitat Sensitivity Risk 
AEP’s wildlife directives for Alberta wind and solar energy projects identifies areas of 
wildlife habitat sensitivity across the province.  Those directives and the areas of wildlife 
habitat sensitivity map should be consulted and considered when choosing suitable sites 
for those types of developments on the landscape (AEP 2017b).  AEP results were analysed 
and presented by quarter section.  For lands within the SLASP, AEP identified sensitivity 
risk zones ranging from critical wildlife zones or non-accessible areas to lower risk (Figure 
9, Appendix A).  Critical wildlife zones in the SLASP included provincial parks and 
protected areas as well as the trumpeter swan buffer areas around water bodies as 
previously discussed above in Section 8.1.1.  While there are scattered high (areas likely 
used by one or more species at risk or priority management species) and moderate (species 
at risk or priority management species and proximity to native grasslands) risk areas 
identified, it is less clear from AEP’s available data why those areas were identified as 
such.  For example, the one quarter section identified as High risk immediately south of 
the Sturgeon Lake channel straddles Highway 43 and there are no records of sensitive 
species available in FWMIS for that area.  Similarly, the Moderate risk areas in the same 
location appears to coincide with areas identified as pasture (Figures 10 and 11, Appendix 
A) rather than native grassland.  In addition, although the landcover map indicates that 
some small native grassland areas do occur throughout the SLASP area (Figure 8; 
Appendix A), the Moderate risk areas appear to more closely align with the agriculture 
land class than the grassland class.  AEP’s information should be used with caution when 
planning renewal energy projects and should be confirmed with site-specific investigations 
to confirm the presence of sensitive wildlife habitat. 
 
9.0 FISH/AQUATIC RESOURCES 

9.1 Fisheries 
Sturgeon Lake and its tributaries support several native sport and coarse fish species 
including:  burbot (Lota lota), lake whitefish (Coregonus clupeaformis), northern pike 
(Esox lucius), walleye (Stizostedion vitreum), yellow perch (Perca flavescens), spottail 
shiner (Notropis hudsonius), white sucker (Catostomus commersoni), Iowa dart 
(Etheostoma exile), longnose sucker (Catostomus Catostomus) and trout perch (Percopsis 
omiscomaycus) (FWMIS 2018).  The FWMIS database search returned no records for 
special status fish species in the SLASP area.  
 
Historically, Sturgeon Lake supported several fishery uses and was managed by the 
Province for recreational, commercial, and domestic user groups. The lake supported a 
commercial fishery for lake whitefish from the 1940s to the 2000s (Alberta Conservation 
Association (ACA) 2002). On August 1, 2014, all lakes in Alberta were closed to 
commercial fishing and commercial fishing ceased (AEP 2016b).   Sturgeon Lake is still 
considered one of the most important sport fisheries in the region and has been extremely 
popular for recreational angling of walleye, yellow perch, and northern pike. An ACA 
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(2007) creel survey reported three species harvested: walleye, northern pike and (relatively 
few) yellow perch.  Currently, Sturgeon Lake is managed as part of Alberta’s Eastern 
Slopes Fish Management Zone.  Like most of Alberta’ lakes, fish populations are being 
managed for declining fish resources. In 2018/2019, fishing regulations restricted 
harvesting (retention of catch) to two species: burbot and yellow perch (AEP 2018e). 
 

9.2 Aquatic Invasive Species 
The SLASP area falls within the province’s whirling disease decontamination risk zone 
which indicates a high to moderate risk, meaning 1) waters in the area are susceptible to 
aquatic invasive species or fish disease, and/or 2) there is high/activity use of water bodies 
or the area is close to high population bases (AEP 2017c).  Whirling disease is an infectious 
and often fatal disease that affects young salmonid fish such as trout, salmon and whitefish 
and has been detected in a number of waterbodies in four major watersheds in central and 
southern Alberta (Bow River, North Saskatchewan River, Oldman River, Red Deer River) 
(AEP 2018d).  Whirling disease can be transmitted from infected locations to other water 
bodies through:  equipment used for boating, fishing, paddling, scuba diving, swimming 
and water pumping infected fish and fish parts. The movement of fish (dead or alive), mud 
and water can potentially spread whirling disease. While this disease is not harmful to 
humans or other mammals, it can pose significant risks to conservation and sustainability 
of native fish species and their habitats.  The decontamination protocols for watercraft and 
equipment developed by AEP for the yellow zone should, therefore, be adhered to by all 
users of water bodies in the SLASP area to prevent further spread of whirling disease and 
other fish diseases and aquatic invasive species.  
 
 
10.0 FARMLAND CAPABILITY AND ALBERTA’S GREEN & 

WHITE AREAS 

Farmland capability for the SLASP, as mapped by the MD and excluding provincial parks, 
Indian Reserves and the Green Area, is shown in Figure 10 (in Appendix A).  Three 
categories are recognized: arable, pasture and waste.  Most lands are identified as pasture 
with a smaller portion identified as arable.  Some data gaps are visible on lands associated 
with Young’s Point Provincial Park, Sturgeon Lake Indian Reserve, along the south shore 
of the channel of Sturgeon Lake, in the southeast portion of the SLASP and along the west-
central boundary of the SLASP.  The remainder of the ASP area falls within the Green 
Area (forested).  In the primary zone, lands surrounding Sturgeon Lake west bay comprises 
a mixture of lands with pasture and arable capabilities.  There is one small area mapped as 
‘waste’ capability shown on the west shoreline of Sturgeon Lake (Figure 11, Appendix A). 
 
11.0 ENVIRONMENTALLY SIGNIFICANT AREAS 

In 2014, AEP updated their Environmentally Significant Areas (ESAs) analysis, mapping 
and reporting, including their approach to aquatic ESA’s. That report replaces the 
Environmentally Significant Areas – Provincial Update 2009 and the Aquatic 
Environmentally Significant Areas of Alberta 2010 (AEP 2016).  In the 2014 update (Fiera 
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2014), ESAs were identified at a very coarse scale (using the quarter-section as the unit of 
analysis.  Fiera (2014) used select criteria, sub-criteria, and indicators to develop a model 
resulting in an environmental value for each quarter section in the province.  ESA’s were 
then identified as all quarter sections scoring at least 0.189.  The model output serves as a 
coarse scale assessment of environmental values in the province.  Overall, Fiera (2014) 
found that the Boreal Forest Natural Region contained the greatest proportion of ESA’s 
across the province.  The intent of the updated ESAs exercise is that it serves as an 
information tool, and not a regulatory tool, to support municipal, regional, and provincial 
scale planning initiatives. 
 
ESAs (quarter section values >0.189) within the SLASP lands are shown on Figure 12 in 
Appendix A.  Much of the SLASP lands scored as ESAs. Larger blocks are concentrated 
in the Green Area but some multi-quarter section blocks are present in the primary zone.  
It is notable that Sturgeon Lake was not identified by the model as meeting the scoring 
criterion for identification as an ESA, while smaller lakes do meet that criterion.  A review 
of the modelling data and methodology suggests the reason for the exclusion of Sturgeon 
Lake, as well as several other large lakes throughout the province, is that the model appears 
to have a positive bias towards terrestrial habitats and areas containing rivers and streams.  
In particular, because of inconsistencies in the model component data sources, the model 
purposefully excluded the contribution of lakes and wetlands to water quality and quantity.  
This exclusion negatively influenced the capacity for large lakes, such as Sturgeon Lake, 
to meet the threshold for identification as an ESA. 
 
 
12.0 OBSERVATIONS AND CONCLUSIONS 

Building on the above findings, following are some additional observations, considerations 
and conclusions that may be useful to the SLASP review, presented in no particular order.  
 
 Although the province no longer recognizes Sturgeon Lake as a mapped ESA, this 

exercise supports the 2002 SLASP contention that Sturgeon Lake is a significant 
and sensitive natural feature.  For example, current information indicates that the 
lake drains a large catchment; receives flows from multiple tributaries, some of 
them first-order streams; appears to have many nearby wetlands that contribute to 
runoff management; is a valued sport fishery; supports two waterbird species that 
have specific breeding habitat requirements and a limited provincial distribution; 
and is a critical wildlife zone from the perspective of renewable energy 
management. It is also expected to be closely linked to the local groundwater table, 
on which many residents rely.  
 

 Our findings support the 2016 MDP recognition of features such as lakes as 
environmentally sensitive lands.  It also confirms that Sturgeon Lake is an 
important wildlife area.  

 
 Our maps may assist planners and developers in identifying ASP lands that contain 

sensitive habitat and therefore may qualify as Environmental Reserve.  
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 Our findings reinforce the utility of the 2002 ASP boundary as the entire Sturgeon 

Lake watershed, which recognizes that important resources, such as stream and 
wildlife management zones, extend beyond the ASP primary zone boundary. 

 
 The majority of Sturgeon Lake west bay shoreline is currently unprotected being 

neither municipal level reserve nor in provincial ownership.  The majority of 
Sturgeon Lake main bay shoreline is either extra-jurisdictional Indian Reserve 
lands or is protected by its status as provincial park or ER. 

 
 Sturgeon Lake water quality and quantity remains an important consideration and 

is in keeping with provincial initiatives such as Alberta’s watershed resiliency and 
restoration program.  The SLASP (2002) provides important protection for 
shoreline and stream riparian zones that in turn protect Sturgeon Lake water quality. 
If this protection is subject to review, our findings suggest a strengthening rather 
than diminishing of protection. Full protection of first-order stream reaches in the 
primary and secondary zones is an avenue to explore.  Further, the MD may wish 
to circulate applications to DFO for review for projects crossing Sturgeon Lake 
tributary streams.   

 
 Wetlands are an important consideration in future planning and development 

decisions, for all parcels. The SLASP may wish to consider specific wetland 
policies that recognize wetland ecological services and how they may contribute to 
Sturgeon Lake protection.  

 
 The Provincial parks that border Sturgeon Lake are good neighbours and assist in 

lake protection and management.  The MD may wish to explore how lands along 
the MD /park boundaries could be managed (e.g., in their capacity as buffers) to 
increase the ability of Park lands to protect fish and wildlife resources and water 
quality.  

 
 Lands mapped as coniferous or mixedwood landcover are relatively limited in 

occurrence in the primary and secondary zones and contribute to habitat diversity 
with the area.  Their conservation could be a consideration when dedicating 
Municipal Reserve or when discussing Conservation Reserve with land owners.  
 

 When dedicating ER or riparian setbacks, considering using surveyed high water 
level as the targeted landmark rather than lake shore.  

 
 This report relied on datasets derived for very large areas. Very little SLASP 

specific resource information is available.   
 
 AEP’s information should be used with caution when planning renewal energy 

projects and zones should be verified with site-specific investigations to confirm 
the presence of sensitive wildlife habitat. 
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 For policies requiring retention of lands in a natural state, consider also specifying 
certain minimum polygon sizes to attain the habitat benefits associated with larger 
habitat patches, rather than a mosaic of smaller patches. 
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Appendix A: Figures 
 
Figure 1.  Sturgeon Lake ASP Area Key Features 
Figure 2.  Protected Areas & Sensitive Resources 
Figure 3.  Protected Areas & Sensitive Resources – Primary Zone 
Figure 4.  Peace & Slave Watersheds with Smoky/Wapiti River Sub-Basin 
Figure 5.  Natural Subregions & Stream Orders 
Figure 6.  Inventoried Wetlands in the ASP Area 
Figure 7.  Inventoried Wetland in the ASP Area – Primary Zone 
Figure 8.  Vegetation Landcover Class 
Figure 9.  Renewable Energy Wildlife Habitat Sensitivity Risk 
Figure 10.  Farmland Capability & Alberta’s Green and White Areas 
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REQUEST FOR DECISION 

21.01.22 

SUBJECT: DeBolt Proposed Sani-dump 
SUBMISSION TO: COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE: May 18, 2021 CAO:  MANAGER: DB 
DEPARTMENT: ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES GM: RA PRESENTER: DB 
STRATEGIC PLAN: Infrastructure DCAO SW 

RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 
Provincial (cite) – N/A 

Council Bylaw/Policy (cite) – N/A 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
MOTION: That Committee of the Whole discuss the proposed DeBolt Sani Dump location, costs and on-
going maintenance responsibilities. 

BACKGROUND/PROPOSAL: 
During 2021 budget preparation there was $50,000.00 allocated for the installation of a sani dump in the 
Hamlet of DeBolt. 

Current Administration has been reviewing the information gathered and is looking for clear direction on 
what Council’s preferred location is and what is to be included as far as servicing or any additional 
requirements. 

Previous Administration proposed that the sani dump be located on private land owned by the DeBolt Ag 
Society. The project is to include some additional servicing for the current buildings as well as a proposed 
building to house the water meter that will be utilized as a changeroom facility for the AG Societies proposed 
outdoor arena. In reviewing the quotes that the previous Manager of Environmental Services received for 
servicing and install of a new power service, the project is estimated to be closer to 75K, not including the 
changeroom building. Additionally, we do not currently have the zoning requirements to do this work when 
applying for the development permit. The layout of both the site and changeroom building as proposed by 
previous management has been attached.  

Administration has investigated the proposed site and feels the narrow streets could pose a challenge for the 
public accessing the site to use the facility. 

Greenview currently owns land next to the old firehall and Administration would like to investigate this spot 
as a potential site. This location has wider streets and access from both directions along Alberta Ave, access 
to waste and recycling and the potential to increase commerce of the local businesses in DeBolt. Due to the 
erosion of the creek bank, it is unlikely that a building could be place on the site. 
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The site would require that we reposition the recycling area and add some fencing to keep traffic away from 
the creek bank but services such as gravity sewer and water are in close proximity in comparison to the other 
site. This means we could potentially use a gravity system for the sani-dump, which does not require pumps 
or power.  
 
Another potential site is the parking area at the museum site close to the Ag grounds (Greenview Land). but 
challenges remain including the narrow streets, and reduction of parking at the museum. The site would 
require filling in the ditch and some earthworks to accommodate the trailers and traffic, however we do have 
water and sewer in close proximity and could again potentially use gravity so no pumps or power would be 
required for the Sani dump.  
  
BENEFITS OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

1. The benefit of Council accepting the recommended motion is Administration will have clear direction 
on location and can pursue quotations for Council to review for potential award. 

 
DISADVANTAGES OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

1. There are no perceived disadvantages to the recommended motion. 
 
ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED: 
Alternative #1:  
Council has the alternative to request Administration to explore alternate locations. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATION: 
Direct Costs: There are no current financial implications to the recommended action. 
 
Ongoing / Future Costs: N/A 
 
STAFFING IMPLICATION: 
There are no staffing implications to the recommended motion. 
 
PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT LEVEL: 
Greenview has adopted the IAP2 Framework for public consultation.  

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 
Inform  
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 
Consult - To obtain public feedback on analysis, alternatives and/or decisions. 
  
PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 
Inform - We will keep you informed.  
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FOLLOW UP ACTIONS: 
Once direction is given, we can pursue quotes required and bring back to Council for decision. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

• Proposed Building Layout 
• RV Sani Dump Location Map 
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REQUEST FOR DECISION 

21.01.22 

SUBJECT: Grande Cache Events Centre / Community Hall 
SUBMISSION TO: COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE: May 18, 2021 CAO: MANAGER: 
DEPARTMENT: COMMUNITY SERVICES GM: DM PRESENTER: 
STRATEGIC PLAN: Quality of Life DCAO SW 

RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 
Provincial (cite) – N/A 

Council Bylaw/Policy (cite) – N/A 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
MOTION: That Committee of the Whole accept the Grande Cache Events Centre / Community Hall 
presentation for information, as presented. 

BACKGROUND/PROPOSAL: 

The Grande Cache Recreation Centre has an area within the building that was formerly utilized as a swimming 
pool prior to the construction of the new recreation complex.  The swimming pool area remains as an open 
cavity space to-date utilized as minimal storage.  In 2009, a concept drawing of a Multi-Purpose Recreation 
Events Centre for this area was prepared, however, the project did not proceed.   

In the Grande Cache community, large events or gatherings are held in the arena or in the curling rink with 
seating capacity of approx. 300 – 400 people.  Smaller sized events are currently held at the Eagles Nest, 
Tourism Information Centre, Legion or the Golf Course Clubhouse to name a few with seating capacity of 
approximately 30 – 100 people.   

The community currently has no venue of a professional standard to host, meetings, weddings and other 
social events.  Administration has considered various options in addressing a community need as well as 
dealing with the unutilized space within the recreation facility. 

1. Community Hall / Gymnasium
• There are three gyms located within the schools in Grande Cache that are utilized for

recreation activities.  The construction of a joint hall/gymnasium may be considered; however,
another gymnasium space may not be required at this time.  It should be noted that the facility
is not conducive in dimensions to be utilized as a fully functioning gymnasium and its features
may take away from the ambience of a community hall/events centre.
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2. Event Centre / Community Hall  
• An event centre would fill a void within the community in hosting larger events such as 

weddings, conferences, meetings etc.  The Centre would serve as not only a catalyst for the 
community but may be an economic asset in attracting outside clients in visiting the Grande 
Cache area.  The proposed area would have an approximate seating capacity of 300 – 400 
people. 
 

Administration is seeking Council guidance as to how the space in question may be utilized.  Presently 
Greenview has $200,000.00 in the 2021 Capital Budget to be utilized in acquiring a design engineering firm, 
with $1,850,000.00 in the 2022 Capital Budget for construction.   
 
Administration’s recommended process would be as follows: 

• Council decision regarding the facility concept. 
• Request for proposals for the design and engineering. 
• Council approval of the design and tender. 
• Tendering of the project. 
• Construction in 2022. 

 
Administration, upon reviewing the various options, is recommending that the stand-alone Event Centre / 
Community Hall would prove to be the most beneficial option for the Grande Cache community. 
  
BENEFITS OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

1. The benefit of the recommended action is that the Committee will be informed of the proposed 
community hall/event centre/gymnasium options for the swimming pool area within the Grande 
Cache Recreation Centre.   
 

DISADVANTAGES OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
1. There are no perceived disadvantages to the recommended motion. 

 
ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED:  N/A 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATION: 
There are no financial implications to the recommended motion. 
 
STAFFING IMPLICATION: 
There are no staffing implications to the recommended motion. 
 
PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT LEVEL: 
Greenview has adopted the IAP2 Framework for public consultation.  

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 
Inform  
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PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 
Inform - To provide the public with balanced and objective information to assist them in understanding the 
problem, alternatives, opportunities and/or solutions. 
  
PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 
Inform - We will keep you informed.  

 
FOLLOW UP ACTIONS: 
There are no follow up actions to the recommended motion. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

• Grande Cache Community Facility Budget 
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REQUEST FOR DECISION 

18.03.12 

SUBJECT: Greenview Logos and Current Uses Report 
SUBMISSION TO: COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE: May 18, 2021 CAO:  MANAGER: SS 
DEPARTMENT: CAO SERVICES DCAO SW PRESENTER: SS 
STRATEGIC PLAN: Level of Service 

RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 
Provincial (cite) –N/A 

Council Bylaw/Policy (cite) –N/A 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
MOTION: That Council accept the report with current internal and external use of logos for information, as 
presented. 

BACKGROUND/PROPOSAL: 
Administration is seeking feedback from Council on the internal and external use of logos. Greenview 
currently has six logos in use. Three logos (MD of Greenview, Economic Development, and Fire-Rescue 
Services) have been approved by Council for use, one logo (Enforcement Services) has been approved by the 
Solicitor General, one logo (Greenview Industrial Gateway) has been reviewed by Council, and one logo 
(Greenview Regional Multiplex) that was in use prior to Greenview taking over maintenance and operations 
of the facility. The Greenview Regional Multiplex logo was approved by the Joint Council Design Committee 
February 1, 2017.  

A copy of the Multiplex Committee request for decision and Concepts document is also attached for 
information. 

Summary for information: 
1. MD of Greenview Corporate logo

a. Used internally and externally for corporate communications, advertising, promotional items,
and marketing materials.

2. Fire-Rescue Services logo
a. Used externally on uniforms, vehicles, equipment, business cards, and promotional items.

3. Enforcement Services logo
a. Used externally on uniforms, vehicles, equipment, business cards, and promotional items.

4. Economic Development logo
a. Used externally on www.expandyourvision.ca website.
b. Used externally on vehicles, promotional items (where applicable, a combination of the “G”

logo and Greenview logo is used).
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c. A combination of Economic Development “G” logo and corporate logo is used externally on 
business cards for EC DEV department members. 

5. Greenview Industrial Gateway 
a. Used externally on the website.  
b. A combination of GIG and MD of Greenview logos is used externally on business cards for the 

Executive Director. 
c.  A combination of GIG and MD of Greenview logos is used internally for email signature.  

6. Greenview Regional Multiplex logo 
a. Used externally on building signage, GRM section on Greenview corporate website, staff 

uniforms, and equipment where applicable. 
b. Used in combination with Greenview logo on a limited number of documents used for patrons 

  
BENEFITS OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

1. The benefit of accepting the report is to provide Council with up to date information on the current 
logos in use.  

2. Enable Council to provide feedback for future direction to Administration on acceptable logo use. 
 
DISADVANTAGES OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

1. There are no perceived disadvantages to the recommended motion. 
 
ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED: 
N/A 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATION: 
N/A 
 
STAFFING IMPLICATION: 
There are no staffing implications for the recommended motion. 
 
PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT LEVEL: 
Greenview has adopted the IAP2 Framework for public consultation.  

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 
Inform  
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 
Inform - To provide the public with balanced and objective information to assist them in understanding the 
problem, alternatives, opportunities and/or solutions. 
  
PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 
Inform - We will keep you informed.  
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FOLLOW UP ACTIONS: 
N/A 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

• Greenview Corporate Logo-Use Guide 2021 
• Greenview-Fire-Rescue Services-Logo Use Guide 2021 
• Greenview-Enforcement Services-Logo Use Guide 2021 
• Greenview-EC DEV-Logo Use Guide 2021 
• Greenview Industrial Gateway-Logo Use Guide 2021 
• Greenview Regional Multiplex-Logo Use Guide 2021 
• 6.2 a Multiplex Logo RFD 
• 6.2 b 2017-01-27 GRM Concepts 
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Multiplex    
Request for Decision 

 

 
SUBJECT: Multiplex Logo  
SUBMISSION TO: Multiplex Meeting REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 

MEETING DATE: February 1, 2017 GREENVIEW 
COM. SERV. GM 

DM PRESENTER: DM 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION: That the Multiplex Committee approve the Multiplex Logo Option ______ as presented.   
  
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:   
 
The Multiplex Committee has previously procured RC Strategies to develop a logo to be utilized on all future 
promotion and marketing materials for the Valleyview Multiplex.  Three potential logo designs have been drafted 
for the Multiplex Committee’s consideration, upon approval the logo design will be integrated into the 
sponsorship packages.   
  
OPTIONS - BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:   
 
Options – The Multiplex Committee has the option to approve or deny the Multiplex Logo as presented.   
 
Benefits – The benefit of approving the Multiplex Logo design is that it will aid in the promotion and marketing 
of the facility.     
 
Disadvantages – There are no perceived disadvantages to accepting a Multiplex logo design.   
___________________________________________________________________________________________ 
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
 
N/A 
  
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

• Greenview Regional Multiplex Logo Design Package  
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Dennis Mueller 
General Manager, Community Services 
Municipal District of Greenview No.16 
Box 1079, 4806-36 Avenue 
Valleyview, Alberta T0H 3N0 
780.524.7343  |  Cell: 780.558.9325 
dennis.mueller@mdgreenview.ab.ca 

April 25, 2106 

RE: FACILITY LOGO DEVELOPEMENT 

Dennis, 
As per our most recent discussion, we are pleased to present the following 
work plan for your consideration.   
Based upon our discussion, expected steps in the development of a facility 
logo include: 

1) Developing three logo options for committee review and comment
2) Refining the preferred option an finalizing the facility logo
3) Developing a logo use guidelines document for distribution to

contractors, etc.
In order to undergo these three steps, the following work plan is proposed. 

Task Description Hours 
Fees 

($100/hr) 

Review 
background 
material 

Review of project and stakeholder 
information by graphic designer to 
gather an appreciation for the 
situation and build concepts on 
logical due diligence. 

8 $800 

Develop facility 
logo options 
(3) 

Present three potential logo options, 
in sketch and digital format for review 
and selection. 

16 $1,600 

Refine facility 
logo options 
based on 
feedback 

Adjust chosen facility logo option 
based on feedback from the client; 
we expect to include up to three 
iterations/drafts of the chosen logo 
option prior to finalization. 

16 $1,600 

Develop logo 
use guidelines 
document 

Development of logo use guidelines 
document, including font and 
pantone, layout and size 
considerations. 

12 $1,200 

Total professional fees (excluding GST) $5,200 

Disbursements (1 trip at $800/trip) $800 

Total project upset value (excluding GST) $6,000 
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I hope that this provides enough information for you to move forward.  If you 
require further clarification or would like to discuss, please do not hesitate to 
call.  I await your response and further direction. 
 
Thank you for your consideration in this matter, 

 
Michael Roma 
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REQUEST FOR DECISION 

21.01.22 

SUBJECT: Bylaw 21-873 Schedules of Fees 
SUBMISSION TO: COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE: May 18, 2021 CAO: DT MANAGER: 
DEPARTMENT: CORPORATE SERVICES GM:  PRESENTER: DL 
STRATEGIC PLAN: Level of Service LEG: DL 

RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 
Provincial (cite) – Municipal Government Act, R.S.A 2000, Chapter M-26. 

Council Bylaw/Policy (cite) – Bylaw 20-854 Schedules of Fees. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
MOTION: That Committee of the Whole recommend Council give second reading to Bylaw 21-873  
“Schedules of Fees” with the following changes: 

BACKGROUND/PROPOSAL: 
A number of updates were provided to the Schedules of Fees. Due to the volume of changes, the previous 
version passed in 2020 is recommended for repeal and will be replaced with Bylaw 21-873. For clarity, the 
changes made are highlighted in red. These will not be marked when the bylaw is published. 

Summary of Changes: 

Agricultural Services: The Agricultural Service Board passed the following recommendation: 

REVISIONS 
TO THE 
RENTAL 
EQUIPMENT 
RATES 

MOTION: 21.04.38. Moved by: REEVE DALE SMITH 
That the Agricultural Service Board recommend revisions to the rental equipment rates 
as presented: 

Cattle Loading Chute $50.00 

Panel Trailer $50.00 

Grain Vac $150.00 

Bale Wagon $250.00 

Manure Spreader $300.00 

14' Disc $300.00 

No-Till Seed Drill $300.00 

 CARRIED    
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- Manure Spreader fee  
- Loading Chute fee 
- Panel Trailer fee 
- 14’ Heavy Disc fee 
- No Till Drill fee 
- Grain Vacuum fee 
- Bale Wagon fee 

 
FCSS 

- Life Skills Day Camp 
 
Recreation  

- Johnson Park Campground  
- Moody’s Crossing  
- Shuttler Flats Provincial Recreation Area 
- Smoky River South Provincial Recreation Area 
- Sheep Creek Provincial Recreation Area 

Grande Cache Recreation 
- Recreation Centre added personal training services.  
- Recreation Centre added swimming lessons, lifesaving instructor courses, fitness programming and 

additional drop in programs 
- Firewood  
- 64” Smart Display TVs in Tourism and Information Centre  

Greenview Multiplex 
- Changed pass to membership  
- Altered titles to match Grande Cache  

 
- Weekend rate for Fieldhouse non-social and social functions  
-  Added Red Cross swim lessons, lifesaving instructor courses, fitness programming and additional drop 

in programs  
 
Protective Services 

- Fire Inspection Fees  
- Response to Fire Incidents 
- Response to Motor Vehicle Collision (MVC), Rescue and Dangerous Goods Incidents 

 
Finance and Administration  

- Mail Tube  
 
Infrastructure and Planning General  

- Road Allowance License fees revised, and application fee removed 
 
Environmental Services 
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- Water meter repairs are added to the owner’s responsibility  
- Water Connection/Disconnection Operational Fee 
- Call Outs  
- Installation fee to include asphalt, curb and gutter fees and deposit to be the total installation costs 
- Sewer rates 
- Correctional Institutions and fee added to sewer rates 
- Sewer snakes available only to contractors  
- Cleaning fee 

 
Operations  

- Road Bond changed to exempt GST status 
 
At First Reading, key areas for discussion included: 

- Double Check Heavy Harrow rates; 
- Adding a half day rate for the Grain Vacuum rentals; 
- Bringing together of Grande Cache and GRM Multiplex fees; 
- Removal of Response to Fire incidences fees of $600.00 as they are included in the fire services bylaw; 
- Fire inspection fees should be free of charge – administration would like to confirm if Council wants 

the service listing to be kept in Schedules of Fees with “Free of Charge” instead of the prices listed; 
- Animal Control Fees should be removed as they are covered in the respective bylaw for Grande Cache 

and remainder of Greenview;  
- Per 5 year term specified for Road Allowance Licenses. 

 
Administration made the following changes: 

- Snowplowing and dust control services made taxable instead of exempt; 
- Clarification of Agricultural Fieldman/ Agricultural Services Manager’s discretion – discretion only 

applies to cleaning fees and recovery of ASB equipment (based on hourly charge), not all Ag rental 
fees; 

- Clarification on per day/per hour/ per person in various sections; 
- Removal of duplicated provisions in recreation. 

 
BENEFITS OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

1. An updated fees listing will be in place and consolidated in one document.   
 

DISADVANTAGES OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
1. There are no perceived disadvantages to the recommended motion. 

 
ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED: 
Alternative #1: Committee of the Whole may provide additional recommended changes to Council. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATION: 
There are no financial implications to the recommended motion. 
 
STAFFING IMPLICATION: 
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There are no staffing implications to the recommended motion. 
 
PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT LEVEL: 
Greenview has adopted the IAP2 Framework for public consultation.  

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 
Inform  
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 
Inform - To provide the public with balanced and objective information to assist them in understanding the 
problem, alternatives, opportunities and/or solutions. 
  
PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 
Inform - We will keep you informed.  

 
FOLLOW UP ACTIONS: 
Administration will bring the bylaw with any revisions for third reading. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

• Bylaw 21-873 
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Bylaw 21-873           1   
 

BYLAW NO.  21-873 

of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 

 
 

A Bylaw of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16, in the Province of Alberta for the 
purpose of establishing rates and fees for the provision of goods and services, or on behalf of 

Greenview, as attached to this bylaw as the Schedules of Fees. 
 
Whereas, pursuant to Section 7 and 8 of the Municipal Government Act R.S.A 2000, Chapter M-
26 as amended, the Planning Act, Chapter P-9, R.S.A. and amendments thereto, and the 
Taxation Act, Chapter M-31, R.S.A. and amendments thereto, a municipal Council has the 
authority to pass a bylaw establishing fees for the provision of services; and  
 
Whereas, The Council of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16, duly assembled deems it 
expedient to revise the Schedules of Fees for the Municipality; 

Therefore, the Council of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16, duly assembled enacts as 
follows: 

1. Title 
1.1 This bylaw may be cited as the “Schedules of Fees Bylaw”. 

 
2. Definitions 

2.1 Greenview means the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16. 
 

3. Application 
3.1 This Bylaw establishes the rates, fees and charges for certain goods and services 

provided by Greenview. 
3.2 This Bylaw and the attached Schedules will be reviewed as required and 

amendments to any of the rates and fees must be made by Council bylaw in 
accordance with Section 191(1) of the Municipal Government Act. 

3.3 All fees, fines, rates, and penalties provided for in other current bylaws shall 
remain in full force and effect and may be charged in addition to the provisions 
stated in this Bylaw. 
 

4. Rates and fees 
4.1 The rates and fees are established ion the attached Schedules ‘A’ through ‘J’ and 

form part of this Bylaw. 
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BYLAW NO.  21-873 

of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 

5. Severability and Effect 
5.1 If any provision of this Bylaw is declared invalid for any reason by a court of 

competent jurisdiction, all other provisions of this Bylaw shall remain valid and 
enforceable. 

5.2 Bylaw 20-854 and any amendments thereto is hereby repealed.  
 

6. This Bylaw shall come into force and effect upon the day of final passing. 
 

Read a first time this 13th day of April, 2021.   
Read a second time this     th day of        , 2021. 
Read a third time and passed this       th day of            , 2021 

 
 
 
 
        ______________________________ 
        REEVE 
 
 
 
 
        ______________________________ 
        CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 
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BYLAW NO.  21-873 

of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 

AGRICULTURAL SERVICES – Schedule A 
All decisions being at the Agricultural Fieldman’s discretion 

 Description GST 
Status

* 

2021 
Rates 

Units 

1.  Haying or Pasturing Permits 
i. Application fee E $100.00  
ii. Plus Annual per Acre Charge E $15.00  
 
2. Spray Exemption Signs 
i. Spray Exemption Signs (One-Time Free Only)  T Free  
ii. Lost or Replacement Signs (each) T $30.00  

 
3. Guides 
i. Guide to Crop Protection - Chemical/Cultural  T $12.00  
ii. Weed Seedling Guide  T $10.00  

 
4. Picnic Table 
i. Non-Profit Organizations - Community Event  No charge  
ii. Private Affair, Non-Public Event - Maximum of 10 days T $10.00  per day 
iii. Delivery Charge, per loaded km T $2.00  per km 

 
5. Barbecue 
i. Non-Profit Organizations - Community Event  No charge  
ii. Private Affair, Non-Public Event – (Maximum of 10 days) T $100.00  per day 
iii. Deposit (All Organizations) E $200.00  
iv. Delivery charge (per loaded km) T $2.00  per km 

 
6. Weed & Insect Control Equipment 
i. Field Sprayer c/w GPS All Locations T $50.00  Each Day (3 Days Maximum 

if Lineup) 
ii. Boomless Sprayer Valleyview, Grovedale T $20.00  Each Day (3 Days Maximum 

if Lineup) 
iii. Water Tank on Trailer (For Spraying) Valleyview, Grovedale T $25.00  Each Day (3 Days Maximum 

if Lineup) 
iv. Estate Sprayer (Pull Type) All Locations T $20.00  Each Day (3 Days Maximum 

if Lineup) 
v. Estate Sprayer (3 Point Hitch) Valleyview T $20.00  Each Day (3 Days Maximum 

if Lineup) 
vi. Quad Mount Sprayer All Locations T $10.00  Each Day (3 Days Maximum 

if Lineup) 
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BYLAW NO.  21-873 

of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 

 Description GST 
Status

* 

2021 
Rates 

Units 

vii. Backpack Sprayer (15 Liters) Valleyview, Grovedale T $5.00  Each Day (3 Days Maximum 
if Lineup) 

viii. Granular Pesticide Bait Applicator (Holds 135 lbs Bran) 
Valleyview 

T $30.00  Each Day (3 Days Maximum 
if Lineup) 

 
7. Spreaders  
i. Manure Spreader Valleyview, Grovedale T $200.00  

$300.00 
Each Day (3 Days Maximum 

if Lineup) 
ii. Fertilizer Spreader Valleyview T $100.00  Each Day (3 Days Maximum 

if Lineup) 
 

8. Earth Moving Equipment  
i. 1000 Earth Mover All Locations T $200.00  Each Day (3 Days Maximum 

if Lineup) 
ii. 12’ Pull-Type Blade Valleyview T $50.00  Each Day (3 Days Maximum 

if Lineup) 
iii. Vee Ditcher Valleyview T $50.00  Each Day (3 Days Maximum 

if Lineup) 
 

9. Post Pounders  
i. Post Pounder All Locations T $125.00  Each Day (3 Days Maximum 

if Lineup) 
ii. Post Pounder All Locations T $65.00 ½ day rate/per item 

  
10. Bin Crane    
i. Bin Crane Valleyview, Grovedale T $100.00  Each Day (3 Days Maximum 

if Lineup) 
 

11. Cattle Equipment  
i. Cattle Squeeze All Locations T $25.00  Each Day (3 Days Maximum 

if Lineup) 
ii. Loading Chute All Locations T $25.00  

$50.00 
Each Day (3 Days Maximum 

if Lineup) 
iii. Panel Trailer Valleyview, Grovedale T $25.00  

$50.00 
Each Day (3 Days Maximum 

if Lineup) 
iv. Spare Panels Crooked Creek, Grovedale T Free First 3 

Days 
 

$5.00 Each Additional Day 
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BYLAW NO.  21-873 

of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 

 Description GST 
Status

* 

2021 
Rates 

Units 

v. Tag Reader Valleyview T Free $100.00 Deposit Required (3 
Days Maximum if Lineup) 

 
12. Conservation Equipment  
i. 50’ Heavy Harrow with Granular Applicator Valleyview T $150.00  Each Day (3 Days Maximum 

if Lineup) 
ii. 33’ Heavy Harrow with Granular Applicator Grovedale T $150.00  Each Day (3 Days Maximum 

if Lineup) 
iii. 30’ Land Roller Valleyview, Grovedale T $200.00  Each Day (3 Days Maximum 

if Lineup) 
iv. 14’ Heavy Disc Valleyview, Grovedale T $250.00  

$300.00 
Each Day (3 Days Maximum 

if Lineup) 
v. No Till Drill Valleyview T $150.00 

$300.00  
Each Day (3 Days Maximum 

if Lineup) 
 

13. Broadcast Seeders  
i Truck Mount Seeder Valleyview T $10.00  Each Day (3 Days Maximum 

if Lineup) 
ii. Quad Mount Seeder Valleyview T $10.00  Each Day (3 Days Maximum 

if Lineup) 
iii. Hand Seeder Valleyview T Free First 3 

Days 
$5.00 Each Additional Day 

iv. Three Point Hitch Mount Seeder T $15.00  
 

14. Water Pumping Equipment  
i. Water Pump and Pipe Trailer (AB. Agriculture Unit) Valleyview T $250.00  Each Day (3 Days Maximum 

if Lineup) 
 

15. Miscellaneous Equipment  
i Bag Roller Valleyview T $50.00  Each Day (3 Days Maximum 

if Lineup) 
ii. Survey Equipment Valleyview T $10.00  Each Day (3 Days Maximum 

if Lineup) 
iii. Metal Detector Valleyview T $10.00  Each Day (3 Days Maximum 

if Lineup) 
iv. Hay Sampler, Measuring Wheel, Bin Probe, Soil Sampler 

Valleyview 
T Free First 3 

Days,  
 

$5.00 Each Additional Day 
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BYLAW NO.  21-873 

of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 

 Description GST 
Status

* 

2021 
Rates 

Units 

v. Scare Cannons Valleyview T Free First 3 
Days 

$5.00 Each Additional Day 

vi. Rodent Traps (Two Styles) Valleyview, Grovedale T $10.00 
Each Week 

$100 Deposit Required  
(1 Week Maximum if Lineup) 

vii. Purchase Magpie Traps E $150.00   
viii. 
 

Grain Vacuum Valleyview, Grovedale T 
 

$50.00 
$150.00 

 

Each Day (3 Days Maximum 
if Lineup) 

Half Day Rate T $75.00 Single Half Day Rental 

ix. Bale Wagon Valleyview, Grovedale T $150.00  
$250.00 

Each Day (3 Days Maximum 
if Lineup) 

x. 
  

Pressure Washer on Trailer Valleyview T $50.00  Each Day (3 Days Maximum 
if Lineup) 

 
16. Recovery of A.S.B. Equipment 

**Minimum one hour charge for recovery of equipment at the discretion of Agricultural Services Manager**  
i. Recovery of Rental Equipment Requiring 1-ton min. for 

Transport 
T $100.00  per hour 

ii. Recovery of Rental Equipment Requiring Vehicle under 1-ton for 
Transport 

T $75.00  per hour 

iii. 
 

Cleaning and Removal of Contaminated Soil 
(Remediation Purposes for Club Root) 

T 
 

$60.00  per hour + $75.00 Disposal 
Fee 

iv. Repair of Damaged Rental Equipment due to Negligent Use E Full cost of 
repair 
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BYLAW NO.  21-873 

of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 

FAMILY AND COMMUNITY SUPPORT SERVICES – Schedule B 
 

 Description GST Status* 2021 Fee 
1. Home Support 

*This fee can be varied as evaluated and approved by the FCSS Manager. 
         E $20.00* Maximum 

Per Hour 
2. Summer Life Skills Day Camp          E $40.00 

 

RECREATION – Schedule C 
 

 Description GST 
Status

* 

Fee in $ Unit 

Recreation Grande Cache 
1. Grande Cache Arena Rentals (With Ice)    
i. Adult rate T $170.00 Per hour 
ii. Adult Non-Prime (Before 3:30 p.m. on 

Regular School Days) 
T $109.25 Per hour 

iii. Youth Rate T $88.25 Per hour 
iv. Youth Non-prime (Before 3:30 p.m. on 

Regular School Days) 
T $55.00 Per hour 

v. Public Skating Sponsorship T $148.00 Per hour 
 

2. Arena and Curling Rink Surfaces (No Ice)   
i. Adult Rate  T $76.00 Per hour 
ii. Youth Rate  T $38.00 Per hour 
iii. Maximum Day Rate T $373.00  

 
3. Aquatic Centre    
i. Private Rental T $134.50 Per hour 
ii. Lane Pool/ Swim Club T $88.50 Per hour 
iii. Wave Crashers (During Public Swim) T $107.00 Per session no time 
iv. Grande Bash (Private Rental) T $180.00 Per session built in time  
v. Extra Lifeguard T $30.50 Per hour  
vi. Sponsorship T $184.00 Per hour 

 
4. Locker Rental    
i. Annual (Private Locker) T $100.00  
ii. Lost or Damaged Key Replacement T $35.00  
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BYLAW NO.  21-873 

of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 

 Description GST 
Status

* 

Fee in $ Unit 

 Recreation Centre Fees – General 
Admittance 

   

5. Daily Pass    
i. Family T $14.50  
ii. Adult (18+) T $6.75  
iii. Youth (5-17) T $5.00  
iv. Senior (60-69) T $5.50  
v. Senior (70+) and Children (Under 5) T Free  
6. 10x Punch Pass    
i. Family T $115.75  
ii. Adult (18+) T $53.75  
iii. Youth (5-17) T $37.75  
iv. Senior (60-69) T $42.50  
v. Senior (70+) and Children (Under 5) T Free  

 
7. Monthly Pass Membership    
i. Family T $126.75  
ii. Adult (18+) T $58.75  
iii. Youth (5-17) T $41.00  
iv. Senior (60-69) T $46.00  
v. Senior (70+) and Children (Under 5) T Free  

 
8. 3-Month Pass Membership    
i. Family T $316.75  
ii. Adult (18+) T $146.25  
iii. Youth (5-17) T $101.25  
iv. Senior (60-69) T $114.25  
v. Senior (70+) and Children (Under 5) T Free  

 
9. 6-Month Pass Membership    
i. Family T $569.75  
ii. Adult (18+) T $262.25  
iii. Youth (5-17) T $182.75  
iv. Senior (60-69) T $205.25  
v. Senior (70+) and Children (Under 5) T Free  

 
10. Annual Pass Membership    
i. Family T $949.50  
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BYLAW NO.  21-873 

of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 

 Description GST 
Status

* 

Fee in $ Unit 

ii. Adult (18+) T $437.00  
iii. Youth (5-17) T $304.25  
iv. Senior (60-69) T $342.25  
v. Senior (70+) and Children (Under 5) T Free  

 
11. Personal Training Rates – One Person     
i. One Person 1 Session T $45.00  
ii. 3 Sessions T $131.25  
iii. 5 Sessions T $212.50  
iv. 10 Sessions T $412.50  
v. 20 Sessions T 800.00  

 
12. Small Group Personal Training Rates - 2 

People 
   

i. 1 Session T $65.00  
ii. 3 Sessions T $180.00  
iii. 5 Sessions T $275.00  
iv. 10 Sessions T $500.00  
v. 20 Sessions T $900.00  

 
13. Small Group Personal Training Rates - 3 

People 
   

i. 1 Session T $90.00  
ii. 3 Sessions T $247.00  
iii. 5 Sessions T $375.00  
iv. 10 Sessions T $675.00  
v. 20 Sessions T $1200.00  

 
 Recreation Centre Fees – Registered Programs  
14. Aquatics   Members Non-

Members 
 

 Lifesaving Parent & Tot Swim Lesson   T $45.00  10 – 30min session 
 Lifesaving Preschool Swim Lesson   T $45.00  10 – 30min session 
 Lifesaving Swimmer Swim Lesson   T $60.00  10 – 45min session 
 Lifesaving Adult / Fitness Swimmer Swim 

Lesson   
T  

$72.00 
 10 – 45min session 

 
 School Swim Lessons  $30.00  10 – 30 min session 
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BYLAW NO.  21-873 

of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 

 Description GST 
Status

* 

Fee in $ Unit 

 Private Swimming Lessons (6 sessions for 
price of 5) 

T $30.00  Per hour 

 Semi-Private Swimming Lessons (6 sessions 
for price of 5) 

T $25.00  Each/Per hour 

 Junior Lifeguard Club (session based) T $10.00 $12.00 Per hour 
 Red Cross Water Safety Instructor T $350.00   
 Red Cross Water Safety Instructor - 

RECERTIFICATION 
T $80.00 $80.00  

 Lifesaving Society – Aquatics Emergency care 
/ Standard First Aid 

T $140.00   

 Lifesaving Society – Lifesaving Instructor   $350.00   
 Lifesaving Society – Lifesaving Instructor 

RECERTIFICATION 
 $80.00   

 Lifesaving Society – Bronze Star T $115.00   
 Lifesaving Society – Bronze Medallion T $180.00   
 Lifesaving Society – Bronze Cross T $130.00   
 Lifesaving Society National Lifeguard T $350.00   
 Lifesaving Society National Lifeguard - 

RECERTIFICATION 
T $80.00 $80.00  

 
 Water Fitness (session based) T $8.00 $10.00 Per hour 
 Water Fitness (Drop-in) T $10.00 $12.00 Per hour 

 
15. Child and Youth Programming   Members Non-

Members 
 

i. Child Programming  T $6.00 $7.00 Per Session  
ii. Youth Programming  T $7.00 $9.00 Per Session  

 
16. Fitness Programming   Members  Non-

Members 
 

i. Child Programming  T $6.00 $7.00 Per Session  
ii. Youth Programming  T $7.00 $9.00 Per Session  
iii. Adult Programming  T $8.00 $10.00 Per Session  

 
17. Drop-in Registered Programs   Members Non-

Members 
 

i. Adult T $10.00 $12.00  
ii. Youth T $10.00 $12.00  
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BYLAW NO.  21-873 

of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 

 Description GST 
Status

* 

Fee in $ Unit 

iii. Child T $7.00 $9.00  
 

18. Meeting or Banquet Rooms and Curling Club 
Lounge 

   

i. Rental Rate with Clean-up  T $38.75  Per Hour 
ii. Association Rate/ Not-for-Profit  T $23.50  Per Hour 

 
19. Equipment Rental    
i. Portable Sound System  T $100.00  Per Event 
ii. Portable Stage T $170.00  Per Event 
iii. Portable Floor (Damage Deposit Required) T $100.00  Per Event 
iv. Tables (Not Included in the Facility Rental)  T $6.50  Per Table 
v. Chairs (Those not included in the Facility 

Rental)  
T $3.00  Per Chair 

vi. Boom Lift (Includes Operator)  T $140.00  Per Hour 
 

20. Advertising    
i. Wall Rink Board  T $425.00  Per Year 
ii. Ice Logo  T $650.00  Per Year 
iii. Zamboni  T $650.00  Per Side 

 
21. Administrative Items    
i. Labour (Clean-up, Set-up, etc.)  T $57.00  Per Person/Per Hour 
ii. Event and Equipment Rental Damage Deposit T $400.00  Per Booking 
iii. Photocopying, Black and White,  T $1.00  Per Document 
iv. Photocopying, Color T $1.00  Per Document 
v. Replacement Membership cards T $5.00  Per Card 

 
22. Ball Diamonds    
i. Rental Rate T $40.50  Per Game 
ii. Tournament Rate (Maximum Day Rate per 

Ball Diamond) 
T $121.50  

 
 

23. Grande Cache Campground    
i. Full Service (Includes Power, Water and 

Sewer) 
T $38.10  

$40.00 
Per Night 
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BYLAW NO.  21-873 

of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 

 Description GST 
Status

* 

Fee in $ Unit 

ii. Partial Service (Includes Power and Water) T $33.33  
$35.00 

Per Night 

iii. Open Tent area T $23.81  
$25.00 

Per Night 

iv. Monthly site rate (Full Service) T $975.00 
$1008.00 

30 Days 

v. Firewood  T $20.00 Wheelbarrow Load 
 

24. Grande Cache Tourism and Information 
Centre 

   

i. Chamber Room (used for meetings or 
workshops, sits 40-50 people)  
 
Includes: 20’ Television 64” Smart Display TV, 
DVD/VHS player, projector screen, flip chart, 
whiteboard, refrigerator, coffee maker, kettle 
 
*Note: if time extends beyond 9 hours, the 
cost is $30.00 per hour for every extra hour 

T $30.00 Per Hour 
T $150.00 Per Day 

ii. Theatre Room (Used for meetings, 
workshops, movies, sits 30-40 people) 
 
Includes: 64” Smart Display TV, projector 
screen, DVD, VHS player, flip chart, kitchen 
facilities 
 
*Note: if time extends beyond 9 hours, the 
cost is $30.00 per hour for every extra hour 

T $30.00 Per Hour 
T $150.00 Per Day 

iii. Mezzanine Level (used for receptions, open 
houses, book launches. Can be included with 
the Chamber Room) 
 
Includes: access to outside balcony 

 
*Note: if time extends beyond 9 hours, the 
cost is $30.00 per hour for every extra hour 

T $30.00 Per Hour 
T $150.00 Per Day 
T $50.00 Per Hour with Chamber 

Room 
T 250.00 Per Day with Chamber 

Room 

25. Eagles Nest Hall (Capacity up to 65 people 
with tables and chairs) 

T $12.50 Per Hour 
T $62.50 Per Day 
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 Description GST 
Status

* 

Fee in $ Unit 

 Grande Cache Cemetery                                                  
26. Open and Close Fees  May 15 to 

November 
15        

November 
16 to May 
14 

 

i. Full Casket Adult T $600.00 $700.00  

ii. Full Casket Child T $400.00 $500.00  

iii. Cremation T $450.00 $550.00  

iv. Surcharge (After 4:00 p.m. Working Days) T $150.00  
v. Disinterment T Double the cost of 

opening and closing 
 

 
27. Purchase of Plot T $550.00  

 
28. Columbarium Fees    
i. Niche Price (Includes Opening/Closing Fee) 

Note: Each Niche can Hold 2 Urns 
 $1,050.00  

 
 Recreation Greenview Regional Multiplex 

 

 Recreation Centre Fees – General Admittance   
29. Daily Pass    
i. Family T $19.50  
ii. Adult (18+) T $8.50  
iii. Youth (13-17) T $6.00  
iv. Child (3-12) T $4.50  
v. Senior (60-69) T $6.00  
vi. Senior (70+) and Children (Under 3) T Free  

 
30. 10x Punch Pass    
i. Family T $175.50  
ii. Adult (18+) T $76.50  
iii. Youth (13-17) T $54.00  
iv. Child (3-12) T $40.50  
v. Senior (60-69) T $54.00  
vi. Senior (70+) and Children (Under 3) T Free  
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* 
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31. Monthly Pass Membership    
i. Family T $110.00  
ii. Adult (18+) T $50.00  
iii. Youth (13-17) T $35.00  
iv. Child (3-12) T $25.00  
v. Senior (60-69) T $35.00  
vi. Senior (70+) and Children (Under 3) T Free  

 
32. 6-Month Pass Membership    
i. Family T $605.00  
ii. Adult (18+) T $275.00  
iii. Youth (13-17) T $192.50  
iv. Child (3-12) T $137.50  
v. Senior (60-69) T $192.50  
vi. Senior (70+) and Children (Under 3) T Free  

 
33. Annual Pass Membership    
i. Family T $1100.00  
ii. Adult (18+) T $500.00  
iii. Youth (13-17) T $350.00  
iv. Child (3-12) T $250.00  
v. Senior (60-69) T $350.00  
vi. Senior (70+) and Children (Under 3) T Free  

 
34. Recreation Fees - Childmind    
i. Per Child T $5.00 Per Hour 
ii. 10 x Punch Pass T $40.00  
iii. 20 x Punch Pass T $70.00  

  
 Recreation Centre Fees - (Corporate Rate – 15% Discount) 
35. 10x Punch Pass    
i. Family T $149.00  
ii. Adult (18+) T $65.00  
iii. Youth (13-17) T $46.00  
iv. Child (3-12) T $34.50  
v. Senior (60-69) T $46.00  
vi. Senior (70+) and Children (Under 3) T Free  
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* 

Fee in $ Unit 

36. Monthly Pass Membership    
i. Family T $93.50  
ii. Adult (18+) T $42.50  
iii. Youth (13-17) T $29.50  
iv. Child (3-12) T $21.50  
v. Senior (60-69) T $29.50  
vi. Senior (70+) and Children (Under 3) T Free  

 
37. 6-Month Pass Membership    
i. Family T $514.25  
ii. Adult (18+) T $233.75  
iii. Youth (13-17) T $162.25  
iv. Child (3-12) T $118.25  
v. Senior (60-69) T $162.25  
vi. Senior (70+) and Children (Under 3) T Free  

 
38. Annual Pass Membership    
i. Family T $935.00  
ii. Adult (18+) T $425.00  
iii. Youth (13-17) T $297.50  
iv. Child (3-12) T $212.50  
v. Senior (60-69) T $297.50  
vi. Senior (70+) and Children (Under 3) T Free  

 
Recreation Centre Fees – Fitness Centre 
40. Personal Training Rates – One Person     
i. One Person 1 Session T $45.00  
ii. 3 Sessions T $131.25  
iii. 5 Sessions T $212.50  
iv. 10 Sessions T $412.50  
v. 20 Sessions T 800.00  

 
41. Small Group Personal Training Rates - 2 

People 
   

i. 1 Session T $65.00  
ii. 3 Sessions T $180.00  
iii. 5 Sessions T $275.00  
iv. 10 Sessions T $500.00  
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v. 20 Sessions T $900.00  
 

42. Small Group Personal Training Rates - 3 
People 

   

i. 1 Session T $90.00  
ii. 3 Sessions T $247.00  
iii. 5 Sessions T $375.00  
iv. 10 Sessions T $675.00  
v. 20 Sessions T $1200.00  

 
Recreation Centre Fees – Facility Rentals  
43. Dance Studio A or B    
i. Hourly T $30.00  
ii. Daily T $100.00  
iii. Weekend T $150.00  

 
44. Dance Studio A & B    
i. Hourly T $50.00  
ii. Daily T $175.00  
iii. Weekend T $200.00  

 
45. Pool Rental Aquatic Centre    
i. Lane or Leisure Pool Rental (up to 35 People & 

1 Lifeguard)  
T $65.00 Per hour 

ii. Lane or Leisure Pool Rental (up to 70 People & 
2 Lifeguards) 

T $120.00 Per hour 

iii. Hot Tub Rental (up to 35 People & 1 Lifeguard) T $35.00 Per hour 
iv. Wibit Rental  T $35.00 Per Hour 

(with additional $200.00 
Damage Deposit) 

v. Hourly Charges for Groups    
 105-140 T $155.00  
 140-175 T $190.00  
 175-210 T $225.00  
 210-245 T $260.00  
 245-280 T $295.00  

 
46. Fieldhouse (1/3 of Gym) Rate – Per Court    
i. Daily (5:00am – 9:00pm) T $240.00  
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Status

* 

Fee in $ Unit 

ii. Weekday  T $30.00 Per hour 
iii. Weekend  T $50.00 Per hour 
iv. Special Youth Rate  T $20.00 Per hour 

 
47. Fieldhouse (Full Gym) Rate – All Courts    
i. Daily (5:00am-9:00pm) T 600.00 Weekdays 
ii. Weekend Social Function  T $1600.00 Per Day 
iii. Weekend Non-Social Function  T $720.00 Per Day 
iv Special Event Youth Rate  T $60.00 Per Hour 
v. Weekend Day Rate (Non-Social) T $720.00  
vi. Weekend Day Rate (Social Function) T $1600.00  

 
48. Stage Rental  T $500.00 $500.00 Deposit 

 
49. Dance Floor  T $500.00 $500.00 Deposit 

 
50. Commercial Kitchen and Bar     
i. Weekday  T $200.00 Per Day 
ii. Weekend  T $300.00 Per Day 

 
51. Board Room (A or B)    
i. Hourly T $30.00  
ii. Daily T $150.00  

 
52. Board Room (A and B)    
i. Hourly T $50.00  
ii. Daily T $250.00  

 
53. Party Room  

 
T $30.00 Per Hour 

(3 Hour rental Minimum 
with a $200.00 Damage 

Deposit) 
 

Recreation Centre Fees – Registered Programs  
54. Aquatics  Members  Non-

Members 
 

 Red Cross Swim Preschool (Session Based) T $45.00 $55.00  
 Red Cross Swim Kids Levels 1-6 (Session Based) T $45.00 $55.00  
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 Red Cross Swim Kids Levels 7-10 (Session 
Based) 

T $60.00 $75.00  

 Red Cross Swim @ School  T $23.00 N/A  
 Red Cross Swim Basics and Swim Strokes T $72.00 $88.00  
 Red Cross Swim Sports T $45.00 $55.00  
 Private Swimming Lessions (6 sessions for price 

of 5) 
T $30.00  Per Hour 

 Semi-Private Swimming Lessons (6 sessions for 
price of 5) 

T $25.00  Per Hour 

 Junior Lifeguard Club (Session Based) T $10.00 $12.00 Per Hour  
 Red Cross Water Safety Instructor  T $350.00   
 Red Cross Water Safety Instructor – 

RECERTIFICATION  
T $80.00 $80.00  

 Red Cross First Aid  T $140.00   
 

 Lifesaving Society – Bronze Star T $115.00   
 Lifesaving Society – Bronze Medallion  T $180.00   
 Lifesaving Society – Bronze Cross T $130.00   
 Lifesaving Society National Lifeguard  T $350.00   
 Lifesaving Society National Lifeguard – 

RECERTIFICATION 
T $80.00 $80.00  

 
 Water Fitness (Session Based) T $8.00 $10.00 Per Hour  
 Water Fitness (Drop-in) T $10.00 $12.00 Per Hour 

 
55. Child & Youth Programming   Members Non-

Members 
 

i. Child Programming  T $6.00 $7.00 Per Session  
ii. Youth Programming  T $7.00 $9.00 Per Session  

 
56. Fitness Programming   Members Non-

Members 
 

i. Child Programming  T $6.00 $7.00 Per Session 
ii. Youth Programming  T $7.00 $9.00 Per Session 
iii. Adult Programming  T $8.00 $10.00 Per Session 

 
57. Drop-in Registered Programs   Members  Non-

Members 
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i. Adult  T $10.00 $12.00  
ii. Youth T $10.00 $12.00  
iii. Child T $7.00 $9.00  

 
58. Johnson Park Campground     
i. Unserviced Site (includes firewood) T $20.00 Per Unit/Per night 

 
59. Moody’s Crossing     
i. Unserviced Site (includes firewood) T $20.00 Per Unit/Per night  

 
60. Shuttler Flats Provincial Recreation Area    
i. Group Use Area T $50.00 Per night 

 
61. Smoky River South Provincial Recreation Area    
i. Unserviced Site T $20.00 Per Unit/Per night 
     
62. Sheep Creek Provincial Recreation Area    
i. Unserviced Site  T $20.00 Per Unit/Per night 

 

PROTECTIVE/ENFORCEMENT SERVICES – Schedule D 
 

 Description GST 
Status* 

Fee in $ Unit 

Hamlet of Grande Cache Animal Control 
1. Licensing Fees for Dogs    
i. Female (Unaltered) Before February 1 E $30.00  
ii. Male (Unaltered) Before February 1 E $30.00  
iii. Altered Dog (Spayed or Neutered) Before 

February 1 
E $20.00  

iv. License after February 1 (In addition to 
the relevant fee above) 

E $10.00  

v. Replacement Tag E $5.00  
 

2. Dog Team/Kennel License 
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i. Kennel (Requires a Development Permit 
and Business License for Commercial 
Kennel) 

E Cost of Development 
Permit/business 

license where 
applicable 

 

ii. Per Dog Fee as listed above E As per Section 1  
3. Licensed Dog Impoundment            
i. First Impoundment E $50.00  
ii. Second Impoundment E $100.00  
iii. Third Impoundment E $150.00  
iv. All Subsequent Impoundments E $200.00  

 
4. Unlicensed Dog Impoundment    
i. First Impoundment E $100.00  
ii. Second Impoundment E $165.00  
iii. Third Impoundment E $215.00  
iv. All Subsequent Impoundments E $290.00  

 
5. Vicious Dog Impoundment            
i. First Impoundment E $200.00  
ii. Second Impoundment E $500.00  
iii Third and All Subsequent Impoundments E $1,000.00  

 
6. Other Domestic Animals Impoundment            
i. First Impoundment E $35.00  
ii. Second Impoundment E $50.00  
iii. Third and All Subsequent Impoundments E $75.00  

 
7. Livestock Impoundment            
i. First Impoundment E $150.00  
ii. Second Impoundment E $250.00  
iii. Third and All Subsequent Impoundments E $750.00  

 
8. Custodial Fees            
i. Dog Per Day  E $9.50  Plus Actual Cost to Board 
ii. Other Domestic Animal Per Day  E $2.00  Plus Actual Cost to Board 
iii. Livestock Per day E $25.00  Plus $10.00, Care and 

Sustenance per day and 
Veterinary Services 

iv. Disposal Charge for Pathological Waste E $0.30  Per pound, minimum of 
$7.00 per disposal 
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v. Euthanasia  E $35.00 In Addition to the Above 
Charges 

 
9. Animal Attractants            
i. Improper Storage of Animal Attractant E $500.00  
ii. Attempt/Feed Wildlife Purposely E $500.00  
iii. Disposal of Animal Attractant E $1,000.00  

 
Fire Services – All Locations 

1. Fire Inspection Fees    
i. Copy of Fire Inspection Report T $50.00 Each  
ii. After Hours Fire Inspection  T $120.00 Per hour  
iii. Special Event Fire Inspection  T $85.00 Each  
iv. Fire Inspection Services General  T $85.00 Each  
v. Occupant Load Calculation (includes 

card) 
T $85.00 Each  

vi. Property Search Request T $85.00 Each  
vii. Fire Extinguisher Training  T $25.00 Per person  
viii. Copy of Fire Investigation Report  T $125.00 Each  
ix. Fire Investigation Photographs  T $85.00 Each  

 
2. Response to Fire Incidents    
i. Within the MD of Greenview T $600.00 Per hour  
ii. Outside the MD of Greenview T $600.00 Per hour 

 
3. Response to Motor Vehicle Collision 

(MVC), Rescue and Dangerous Goods 
Incidents 

   

i. Within the MD of Greenview T $600.00 Per hour 
ii. Outside the MD of Greenview T $600.00 Per hour  
iii. Provincial Highways  T As per AB 

Transportation rates 
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FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION – Schedule E 

 

 

 

INFASTRUCTURE AND PLANNING GENERAL – Schedule F 
 

 Description GST 
Status 

Fee in $ Unit 

1. Road Closure  
i. Application Fee E $1,500.00  
ii. Sale of Road Allowance for the Purpose of Road 

Closure. As Determined by Accurate Assessment. 
E Fair Market Value  

 

 Description GST 
Status* 

Fee in $ Unit 

1. Photocopying    
i. Tax, Utilities, Minutes or Bylaws, and Other 

Documents  
T $1.00  Per page 

2. Documents    
i. Planning or Otherwise, Any Size T $10.00  Per Search  
ii. Faxed Copies (Incoming/Outgoing) T $1.00  Per Page 
iii. Access to Information (FOIP), Research T $25.00  Per Hour 

 
3. Taxes    
i. Tax Certificate to Registered Landowner E No charge  
ii. Tax Certificate to Others E $50.00  Per Roll Number 
iii. Tax Search to Others E $50.00  Per Roll Number 
iv. Online Tax Certificate to Others E $25.00  
v. Online Tax Search E $15.00  
vi. Tax Notification Charges E $75.00  

 
4. Assessment  
i. Assessment Record to Landowner E $5.00  Per Roll Number 
ii. Assessment Record to Others E $10.00  Per Roll Number 
iii. NSF Fee E $50.00  
     
5. Mail Tube T $15.00 Per Tube 
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2. Approaches  
i. Approach Application Request Fee (Non-

Refundable) 
E $175.00  Per Approach 

ii. Construction: Gravel Approach E $2000.00  Per Approach 
iii. Upgrade/Relocation: Gravel Approach E $2500.00  Per Approach 
iv. Construction: Asphalt Approach E $5000.00  Per Approach 
 Upgrade/Relocation: Asphalt Paved Approach E $5500.00  Per Approach 

 
3. Road Allowance License    
i. Application Fee E $100.00  
i. Road Allowance License Sign Fee E Free 

$100.00 
Per term 

ii. Road Allowance Sign Replacement E $30.00 
$50.00 

 

 
4. Inspections  
i. Seismic Pre-Inspections E $100.00  Per Occurrence 
ii. Seismic Post-Inspections E $100.00  Per Occurrence 
iii. Seismic Non-Compliance E $100.00 Per Occurrence 

 
5. Land Acquisition (Right-of-Way and Road Widening)  
i. Properties up to 40 Acres  T See Schedule “I”  
ii. Properties Over 40 Acres T $2400.00 Per Acre 
iii. Properties Minimum Payment T $150.00  Per Occurrence 
iv. On parcels more than 40 Acres, Where an Existing 

Residence is on the Property, for up to 50 Meters 
Each Side of the Residential Driveway 

T $3,000  Per Acre 

v. Borrow Pit Acquisition and Access and Damages T $1.00  Per m3 
vi. Shelterbelt Loss, per 5m Width, Tree Height Under 

10 feet 
T $1.50  Per m 

vii. Shelterbelt Loss, per 5m Width, Tree Height Over 
10 feet 

T $2.50  Per m 

 
6. Fencing    
i. Removal of Old Fence by Landowner T $1.25  Per m 
ii. Removal of Old Fence and Installation of New 

Fence by Landowner with Greenview Supplying 
Material 

T $3.75  Per m 

iii. Removal of Old Fence and Installation of New 
Fence by Landowner Including Labour and 
Materials 

T $6.25  
 

Per m 
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iv. Removal of Old Fence and Installation of New 
Fence by Greenview 

T No Compensation  

 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES – Schedule G 
Accounts for metered services and bulk accounts if not paid within 30 days of the billing date 

will incur a 1.5% penalty monthly. 

Where work is done at cost, the cost will include the amount expended by Greenview for all 
expenditures incurred doing the work, including administration. All invoices will be paid within 30 

days of billing. If not paid within 30 of billing, are subject to interest of 1.5% penalty monthly 

 Description GST 
Status* 

Fee  Unit 

 Water Meter/Replacement/Repairs (Owner 
Responsibility)  

Based on actual 
replacement/repair 

costs 

 

 
1. Water Connection/Disconnection Operational Fee   
i. Regular Hours T $50.00  per hour/per member of 

staff (1 hour min.) 
ii. After Hours/Call Out T $50.00 

$52.00 
per hour /per member 
of staff (1 hour min.) 

 
2. Hamlet Water Distribution Systems (Grovedale, Landry Heights, 

and Little Smoky) 
  

i. Residential Rate (0 - 30 m3/Month) E $3.50  per m3 
ii. Residential Rate (Over 30 m3/Month) E $4.00  per m3 
iii. Non-Residential Rate       E $4.00  per m3 
iv. Installation Fee (To install from Main Line to Property 

Line/ includes any asphalt, curb and gutter etc.) 
E $8,000.00  deposit (based on actual 

invoice) (total 
installation costs) 

v. Connection Fee (Rights to Connect) E $12,500.00  per service 
vi. Utilities Account Deposit E $100.00  

 
3. Hamlet Water Distribution Systems (Grande Cache, DeBolt and 

Ridgevalley) 
  

i. Residential Rate (0 - 30 m3/Month) E $3.50  per m3 
ii. Residential Rate (Over 30 m3/Month) E $4.00  per m3 
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iii. Non-Residential Rate       E $4.00  per m3 
iv. Installation Fee (To install from Main Line to Property 

Line/ includes any asphalt, curb and gutter etc.) 
E $8,000.00  deposit (based on actual 

invoice) (total 
installation costs) 

v. Connection Fee (Rights to Connect) E $500.00  per service 
vi Utilities Account Deposit E $100.00  

 
4. Rural Water Distribution System (Valleyview Rural)   
i. Residential Rate (0-30m3/Month) E $3.50  per m3 
ii. Residential Rate (Over 30 m3/Month) E $10.00  per m3 
iii. Non-Residential Rate E $10.00  per m3 
iv. Connection Fee E $12,500.00  per service 
v. Utilities Account Deposit E $100.00  

 
5. Rural Water Distribution System (Crooked Creek and Ridgevalley)   
i. Residential Rate (0-30 m3/Month) E $3.50  per m3 
ii. Residential Rate (Over 30 m3/Month) E $10.00  per m3 
iii. Non-Residential Rate E $10.00  per m3 
iv. Connection Fee E $12,500.00  per service 
v. Utilities Account Deposit E $100.00  

 
6. Water Point Facilities   
i. Potable Water Points Residential/Agriculture E $3.50  per m3 
ii. Potable Water Points Commercial E $8.50  per m3 
iii. Non-Potable Water Points E $2.00  per m3 

 
7. Gravity Wastewater Collection System (DeBolt, Grande Cache & 

Ridgevalley) 
  

i. Sanitary Service Installation Fee/Includes Asphalt, Curb 
& Gutter Etc. 

E $8,000.00  deposit (based on actual 
invoice) (total 

installation costs) 
ii. Connection Fee E $500.00  per service 

 
8. Gravity Wastewater Collection System (Grovedale)    
i. Sanitary Service Installation Fee E $8,000.00  deposit (based on actual 

invoice) (total 
installation costs) 

ii. Connection Fee E $12,500.00  per service 
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9. Low Pressure Wastewater Collection System (Little Smoky, Grovedale & Ridgevalley) 
i. Sanitary Service Installation Fee/includes asphalt, curb 

& gutter etc. 
E $8,000.00  deposit (based on actual 

invoice) (total 
installation costs) 

ii. Connection Fee E $500.00  per service 
 

10. Sewer Rates   
i. Residential – Single Family Dwelling E $1.00  per m3 (minimum 

$24.00) 
ii. Residential – Duplex (per dwelling unit) E $1.00  per m3 (minimum 

$24.00) 
iii. Residential – Multi Family Dwelling (per Self-Contained 

Dwelling Unit) 
E $1.00  per m3 (minimum 

$24.00) 
iv. Commercial – General Store E $1.00  per m3 (minimum 

$36.00) 
v. Commercial – Laundromat E $1.00  per m3 (minimum 

$56.00) 
vi. Commercial – Hotels (Rooms & Beer Parlor) E $1.00  per m3 (minimum 

$80.00) 
vii. Commercial – Cafes E $1.00  per m3 (minimum 

$48.00) 
viii. Commercial – Garages E $1.00  per m3 (minimum 

$48.00) 
ix. Commercial – Office E $1.00  per m3 (minimum 

$36.00) 
x. Commercial – Not Elsewhere Classified E $1.00  per m3 (minimum 

$36.00) 
xi. Community Halls & Other Recreation Facilities E $1.00  per m3 (minimum 

$48.00) 
xii. Churches E $1.00  per m3 (minimum 

$24.00) 
xiii. Schools (per Classroom) E $1.00  per m3 (minimum 

$24.00) 
xiv. Royal Canadian Legion Hall E $1.00  per m3 (minimum 

$24.00) 
xv. Senior Citizen’s Drop-In Centre E $1.00  per m3 (minimum 

$24.00) 
xvi. Correctional Institutions  E $1.25 per m3 (minimum 

$80.00) 
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11. Wastewater Lagoon   
i. Commercial/Industrial Tipping Rate E $10.00  per m3 

 
12. Lagoon Keys   
i. Key Fob (Initial/Replacement) T $100.00  

 
Grande Cache Sewer Rental  
Rental of the Electric Sewer Snake and or Electric Sewer Camera is available to Contractors only. Rentals must be returned 
clean. Failure to do so will result in a cleaning fee 
 
13. Electric Sewer Snake    
i. 4 Hour Minimum Charge T $70.00  
ii. Daily Rate T $90.00  
iii. Weekly Rate (5 Day Rental) T $400.00  

 
14. Electric Sewer Camera    
i. Refundable Deposit E $500.00  
ii. 4 hour Minimum Charge T $137.00  
iii. Daily Rate T $195.00  
iv. Weekly Rate (5 Day Rental) T $780.00  

 
15. Cleaning Fee T $35.00  

 
Waste Collection and Disposal   
16.   Residential Rates   
i. Residential Waste Collection Fee T $10.00  Per Month 
ii. Recycle Fee  T $10.00  Per Month 

 
17. Commercial Rates   
i. Commercial Waste Bin Rental T $50.00  Per Month  
ii. Recycle Fee T $10.00  Per Month  
iii. Waste Dumping Fee, Standard Service, per Bin T $80.00  Per Month 

 
16. Grande Cache Landfill Fees   
i. Greenview Residents  No Fees  
ii. Mixed Load Disposal Fee (Residents and Commercial) E $210.00  Per Tonne 
iii. Commercial Waste E $105.00  Per Tonne 
iv. Clean Mulch/Woodchips E $55.00  Per Tonne 
v. Class II Acceptable Soils E $55.00  Per Tonne 
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BYLAW NO.  21-873 

of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 

 Description GST 
Status* 

Fee  Unit 

vi. Burnable Wood (Excludes Creosote, Treated Wood and 
Similar Materials) 

E $55.00  Per Tonne 

vii. Metal E $55.00  Per Tonne 
viii. Cement/Concrete E $55.00  Per Tonne 
ix. Sump E $10.00 Per Tonne 
x. Freon E $50.00 Per unit for removal 

 

 

OPERATIONS – Schedule H 
Greenview’s Equipment Rates will be the same as the EOIP rates 

  Description GST 
Status

* 

Fee in $ Unit 

1. Snowplowing Signs   
i. Any Driveway up to 400 Meters E T $50.00  
ii. Any Driveway Greater than 400 Meters E T $50.00  $100.00 per hour 

for time over the 
first ½ hour 

iii. Lost or Replacement Signs T $30.00 Each 
 

2. Culverts – Used or Salvaged   
i. 500 mm or Less T $13.00  per m 
ii. 600 mm T $15.00  per m 
iii. 700 mm T $16.00  per m 
iv. 800 mm T $25.00  per m 
v. 900 mm T $28.00  per m 
vi. 1000 mm T $29.00  per m 
vii. 1200 mm or Greater T $30.00  per m 

 
3. Grade Blades   
i. Used T $5.00  per each blade 

 
4. Dust Control   
i. Application of Calcium Product for Residents and 

Landowners (up to April 15th Each Year) 
E T $150.00  per 200 m 

ii. Plus: for sections over 200 meters E T $5.35  per m 
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BYLAW NO.  21-873 

of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 

  Description GST 
Status

* 

Fee in $ Unit 

iii. Application of Calcium Product for Multi-Parcel 
Subdivisions 

E T $100.00  per 100 m 

iv. Application of Calcium Product for Industrial and Road Use 
Agreement Holders (up to April 15th Each Year) 
If in front of a residence, the industrial user will be charged 
the residential rate for a maximum distance of 200 meters 

E T $1605.00  per 300 m 

vi. Plus: for sections over 300 meters E T $5.35  per m 
 

5. Road Bond   
i. Overload Road Bond Fees (Non-Refundable Payment) TE $1,125.00  per km 
ii.  Plus: Security Deposit (Refundable Subject to Final 

Inspections) 
E   $6,375.00  per km 

iii. Fixed Fee for the TRAVIS MJ Permitting System E $15.00  per permit 
 

6. Community Aggregate   
i. Community Aggregate Payment Levy E $0.30  per tonne 

 
7. Equipment Rental   
i. All Equipment Rentals will be paid out of the previous 

year’s ARHCA Book. 
T 100% of previous year’s 

ARHCA rate 
 

 

 

 

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT – SCHEDULE I 
 

  Description  GST 
Status* 

Fee in $ Unit 

1. Planning Bylaw (New or Amended)    
i. Land Use Bylaw Amendment Application (Re-zoning) E $1,500.00  
ii. New Developer’s Area Structure Plan E $2,500.00  
iii. Amendments to any ASP and MDP or Minor ASP E $1,500.00   

 
2. Development Permits, General   
i. Residential - Single Detached Dwellings, Duplexes, 

Manufactured/ Modular/RTM/Suites) 
E $150.00 
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BYLAW NO.  21-873 

of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 

  Description  GST 
Status* 

Fee in $ Unit 

ii. Residential - Multiple Dwellings (Triplex/Fourplex/Row 
Housing/Apartments, etc.)  

E $75.00  per unit 

iii. All other Non-Residential/Mixed-Use/New Construction / 
Accessory Uses (Home Occupation / Accessory Buildings 
(Garages, Decks, Hot tubs, Pools, Wheelchair Ramps), 
Additions and All Other Uses) 

E $50.00  fee per 
$100,000.00 of 

completed project 
cost (up to a 

maximum of a 
$10,000.00 fee) 

iv. Signage – Permanent / Temporary / Renewal T $50.00  Per sign 
v. Variance Request E $150.00  
vi. Time Extension Request by Developer per Application E $150.00  

 
3. Subdivisions (including Bare Land Condominium Plans)   
i. Subdivision and Condominium Plan Applications, Single Lot 

or Consolidation 
E $450.00  

ii. Plus: each additional lot/unit created E $150.00  
iii. Plan of Subdivision Endorsement Fees E $150.00  per title created 
iv. Condominium Plan Endorsement Fees E $40.00  per unit 
v. Time Extension Request by Developer per Application E $500.00  

 
4. Subdivision and Development Appeal Board   
i. Development Appeal Fee (Refundable if Applicant is 

Successful in their Appeal) 
E $500.00  

ii. Subdivision Appeal Fee (Refundable if Applicant is Successful 
in their Appeal) 

E $500.00  

 
5. Development Agreement Review   
i. Residential: up to 4 Lot Subdivision E $1,500.00  
ii. Residential: Greater than 4 Lot Subdivision E $3,000.00  
i. All Other Recreational, Commercial and Industrial 

Subdivisions 
E $3,000.00  

 
6. Annual Business Licensing   
i. Business License Fee - New application (January 1) E $100.00  
ii. Business License- New Application (After July 1) or Annual 

Renewal 
E $50.00  

 
7. Business License Temporary/Special Event   
i. Resident  E $30.00  
ii. Non-Resident  E $50.00  
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BYLAW NO.  21-873 

of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 

  Description  GST 
Status* 

Fee in $ Unit 

8. Hawkers or Peddlers   
i. Resident Annual E $45.00  
ii. Resident per Day E $35.00  
iii. Non-Resident Annual E $130.00  
iv. Non-Resident per Day E $50.00  

 
9. Rural Addressing Signage    
i. Signage Permanent/ Replacement and Installation  T $50.00  

$150.00 
per sign 

 
10. Signage for Subdivisions   
i. Individual Lot Sign T $50.00  per sign 
ii. Large Address Sign with Address Tab for Subdivisions of 4 

Lots or Greater 
T $1,000.00  per sign 

 
11. Orthographic Printing Based on size and quality of paper, image and 

graphics 
  

ii. Colour 8 ½" x 11" Orthographic (Aerial) Photo T $10.00  
 

 

iii. Colour 11" x 17" Orthographic (Aerial) Photo T $20.00  
 

 

 
12. Landowner Map Pricing   
i. Hardcopy – Landowner Map (sheets 1-5).  Valleyview, 

DeBolt, Grovedale, Grande Cache and Greenview Overview 
Elevation 

T $25.00  per sheet 

 
13. Certificate of Compliance E $200.00  

 
14. Letter of Concurrence for Communication Tower E $100.00  
     
15. Environmental Site Assessment Inquiries E $200.00  Per parcel 

 

*Note: GST Status- ‘E’ refers to tax exempt or GST included in the listed rate or fee.  
‘T’ refers to taxable, or GST not included in the listed rate or fee. 
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BYLAW NO.  21-873 

of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 

 

Land Acquisition by Greenview for Right of Way and Road 
Widening – Schedule J 

 
Valleyview Area 
 

Titled Parcel 
Size in Acres 

 
RIGHT OF WAY FOR PROPERTIES UP TO 40 ACRES 

 Phase 1 Phase 2 Phase 3 Phase 4 Phase 5 
0-1 $ 30,000 $ 22,600 $ 16,600 $   13,600 $  12,600 
1-3 $ 12,600 $ 12,000 $ 8,750 $ 7,350 $  7,275 
3-5 $ 8,900 $ 8,600 $ 6,300 $ 5,300 $  5,250 

5-10 $ 6,100 $ 5,850 $ 4,350 $ 3,700 $  3,650 
10-20 $ 3,900 $ 3,900 $ 2,850 $ 2,700 $  2,600 
20-30 $ 2,800 $ 2,750 $ 2,700 $ 2,600 $   2,550 
30-40 $ 2,500 $ 2,500 $ 2,500 $ 2,500 $   2,500 
40+ $ 2,400 $ 2,400 $ 2,400 $ 2,400 $   2,400 

 

 DeBolt Area 

 

Grovedale Area 
 

Titled 
Parcel 
Size in 
Acres 

Landry Heights 
Price/Acre 

Grovedale 
Price/Acre 

Aspen Grove 
Price/Acre 

RIGHT OF WAY FOR PROPERTIES UP TO 40 ACRES 

 
Phase 1 

 
Phase 2 

 
Phase 3 

 
Phase 4 

 
Phase 5 

 
Phase 6 

0-1 $ 55,600 $ 43,600 $ 23,600 $ 49,000 $ 47,600 $ 30,600 $ 29,100 $ 26,600 $ 25,600 
1-3 $ 27,900 $ 22,200 $ 12,400 $ 25,100 $ 2,410 $ 15,400 $ 14,900 $ 13,700 $ 13,250 
3-5 $ 19,750 $ 15,750 $ 8,900 $ 17,750 $ 17,100 $ 10,950 $ 10,600 $ 9,800 $ 9,450 
5-10 $ 13,150 $ 10,550 $ 6,050 $ 11,850 $ 11,450 $ 7,400 $ 7,200 $ 6,650 $ 6,450 

10-20 $ 8,250 $ 6,650 $ 3,900 $ 7,450 $ 7,200 $ 4,750 $ 4,600 $ 4,250 $ 4,150 
20-30 $ 5,700 $ 4,600 $ 2,800 $ 5,200 $ 5,000 $ 3,400 $ 3,300 $ 3,050 $ 2,950 
30-40 $ 4,600 $ 3,600 $ 2,500 $ 4,050 $ 3,900 $ 2,700 $ 2,600 $ 2,500 $ 2,500 
40+ $ 2,400 $ 2,400 $ 2,400 $ 2,400 $ 2,400 $ 2,400 $ 2,400 $ 2,400 $ 2,400 

 

Titled Parcel 
Size in Acres 

 
RIGHT OF WAY FOR PROPERTIES UP TO 40 ACRES 

 Phase 1 Phase 2 Phase 3 Phase 4 Phase 5 Phase 6 
0-1 $  40,600 $    36,600 $   32,600 $  24,600 $  16,600   $  40,600 
1-3 $  20,600 $   8,600 $   16,400 $  12,600 $ 8,600 $  20,600 
3-5 $  14,750 $    13,250 $   11,600 $  9,050 $ 6,200 $  14,750 

5-10 $     9,900 $    8,900 $ 7,850 $  6,150 $ 4,250    $  9,900 
10-20 $ 6,250 $    5,650 $ 5,000 $  3,950 $ 2,850 $  6,250 
20-30 $ 3,810 $    3,950 $ 3,550 $  2,850 $ 2,700 $  3,810 
30-40 $ 3,450 $    3,150 $ 2,800 $  2,500 $ 2,500 $  3,450 
40+ $ 2,400 $    2,400 $ 2,400 $  2,400 $ 2,400 $  2,400 
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Schedules of Fees 
Bylaw 21-873

Township Grid

Highway Roads

Hydro Area

DeBolt Rural Phase 1

DeBolt Rural Phase 2

DeBolt Rural Phase 3

DeBolt Rural Phase 4

DeBolt Rural Phase 5

DeBolt Rural Phase 6

Green Zone

V. V. Rural Phase 1

V. V. Rural Phase 2

V. V. Rural Phase 3

V. V. Rural Phase 4

V. V. Rural Phase 5

Legend
Township Grid

Highway Roads

Hydro Area

DeBolt Rural Phase 1

DeBolt Rural Phase 2

DeBolt Rural Phase 3

DeBolt Rural Phase 4

DeBolt Rural Phase 5

DeBolt Rural Phase 6

Green Zone

V. V. Rural Phase 1

V. V. Rural Phase 2

V. V. Rural Phase 3

V. V. Rural Phase 4

V. V. Rural Phase 5

Legend
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 REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 

 
 
 

20.04.09   

 
SUBJECT: Greenview Fibreoptic Presentation 
SUBMISSION TO: COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE: May 18, 2021 CAO: DT MANAGER: KK 
DEPARTMENT: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT GM: DM PRESENTER: KK 
STRATEGIC PLAN: Quality of Life 

 
RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 
Provincial (cite) –N/A 
 
Council Bylaw/Policy (cite) – N/A 
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
MOTION: That Committee of the Whole accept the presentation regarding options for Greenview’s future 
fibre optic service offering for information, as presented. 
 
MOTION: That Committee of the Whole recommends that Council direct Administration to bring forward 
an Expression of Interest proposal to engage third parties that may wish to consider development of 
Greenview’s future fibre optic service offering. 
 
BACKGROUND/PROPOSAL: 
Administration has prepared an overview for Committee of the Whole to discuss and define potential next 
steps for developing the required level of service needs for Greenview ratepayers regarding internet service. 
While  
  
BENEFITS OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

1. The benefit of accepting the presentation is to allow the Committee of the Whole the opportunity to 
ask questions and provide feedback. 
 

DISADVANTAGES OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
1. There are no perceived disadvantages to the recommended motion. 

 
ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED: 
Alternative #1: Committee of the Whole has the alternative to amend or take no action to the recommended 
motions. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATION: 
There are no financial implications to the recommended motions. 
 
STAFFING IMPLICATION: 



 
 

 

There are no staffing implications to the recommended motions. 
 
PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT LEVEL: 
Greenview has adopted the IAP2 Framework for public consultation.  
 

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 
Inform  
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 
Inform - To provide the public with balanced and objective information to assist them in understanding the 
problem, alternatives, opportunities and/or solutions. 
  
PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 
Inform - We will keep you informed.  

FOLLOW UP ACTIONS: 
Administration will proceed with the Committee of the Whole’s recommended direction regarding 
Greenview future fiber optic service offering. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

• Presentation 
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